
 AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2025 – 10:00 AM 

GCTD ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITY 
1901 AUTO CENTER DRIVE 
OXNARD, CA  93036-7966 

www.GoldCoastTransit.org 
The meeting will be IN PERSON.  

Hybrid / Remote Participation for the Public is available via ZOOM Webinar    
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89308808819 

A. CALL TO ORDER – 10:00 am

B. ROLL CALL
Chair – Martha McQueen-Legohn, Mayor, City of Port Hueneme
Vice Chair – Rachel Lang, Councilmember, City of Ojai
Director – Matt LaVere, Supervisor District 1, County of Ventura
Director – Dr. Jeannette Sanchez-Palacios, Mayor, City of Ventura
Director – Gabriela Rodriguez, Councilmember, City of Oxnard

C. CEREMONIAL CALENDAR
o Pledge of Allegiance
o Employee Service Awards

November
Manuel Barbosa, Operator – 20 years 
James Beck, Director of Operations & Maintenance – 15 years 
Gustavo Hernandez, Operator – 5 years 
Don G. Prado, Operator – 5 years 

December 
Gabriel Magana, Service Worker – 10 years 

D. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
The GCTD Board of Directors will consider public comments for business matters that are not on the
agenda. Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. The presiding officer shall enforce the time limit.
Such matters cannot be discussed by the Board at the time of presentation but may be referred to the
general manager/secretary for administrative action or public report at a later meeting or scheduled on a
subsequent agenda for consideration. This rule shall not prohibit a member of the Board, at this time,
from briefly responding to a public statement, question, or proposed initiative, as provided in Government
Code Section 54954.2. Speakers are requested to complete a green speaker form from the Clerk of the
Board and file it with the Clerk before speaking. Public members may participate in the Board Meeting
either In Person at 1901 Auto Center Drive, Oxnard, CA, or by emailing or mailing their public comments
to the Clerk of the Board before 9:00 AM on the morning of the meeting. In addition, members may also
participate in the meeting by logging into Zoom HERE.

E. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORTS
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The Board of Directors may use this time to report on any activities in their respective jurisdictions that 
may be of interest to the District. 

F. AGENDA REVIEW  
The Board of Directors may use this time to make a motion to make changes to the agenda. 
 
G. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

1. General Manager’s Monthly Report 
Recommendation: The General Manager will provide a brief update on agency activities. 
Staff: Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 
 

H. CONSENT ITEMS 
All items listed under consent are to be considered routine by the governing body and will be 
enacted by one motion in the form listed unless items are removed for separate consideration. 
2. Minutes of October 1st, 2025 Board of Directors Meeting  

Recommendation: Approve the October 1st Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
Staff: Angelica Delgado, Clerk of the Board/Executive Assistant 

3. Report of Monthly Expenditures   
Recommendation: Receive Report of Expenditures for the Month of Oct / Nov 2025 
Staff: Angelica Salatan, Accounting Specialist 

4. Report of Monthly Budget/Actual Report 
Recommendation: Receive Report of Budget/Actual for the Month of Sept / Oct  2025 
Staff: Christine Feng, Chief Financial Officer/AGM 

5. Report of Contracts Awarded  
Recommendation: Receive Report of Contracts Awarded for the Months of Oct / Nov 2025 
Staff: Tanya Hawk, Inventory & Asset Management Coordinator  

6. Quarterly Investment Report 
Recommendation: Receive and File Quarterly Investment Report – 1st Quarter FY 2026 
Staff: Christine Feng, Chief Financial Officer/AGM 

7. Consider Approval of Contract with Coastal Occupational Medical Group for Drug and 
Alcohol Analysis Services 
Recommendation: Consider Award of Contract to Coastal Occupational Medical Group for 
Drug and Alcohol Analysis Services in the Amount of $240,000 for the period of two (2) Years 
and option years. 
Staff: Tanya Hawk, Inventory/Asset Management Coordinator 

8. Consider Approval of Resolution 2025-05 Approving Annual Update to Public 
Transportation Safety Plan (PTASP)   
Recommendation: Consider Approval of Resolution 2025-05 Approving Update to PTASP as 
required by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). This report has no financial impact. 
Staff: Alex Zaretsky, Director of Human Resources (Chief Safety Officer) 

 
I. FORMAL ITEMS - PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 
The GCTD Board of Directors will consider public comment on any item appearing on the agenda at the 
time that the agenda item has been called by the presiding officer and after the staff report has been 
given. Each speaker is limited to five (5) minutes of comment on all agenda items in total. Speakers are 
requested to complete a green speaker form, available from the Clerk of the Board or on the speaker’s 
podium, and file it with the Clerk before speaking. 

9. Consider Approval of Board of Directors Meeting Calendar for 2026  
Recommendation: Consider Approval Board of Directors Meeting Calendar for 2026 
Staff: Angie Delgado, Clerk of the Board & Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 
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10. Consider Election of Board of Officers for Calendar Year 2026 
Recommendation: Election of Board of Officers for Calendar Year 2026 
Staff: Angie Delgado, Clerk of the Board & Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 

 
11. Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Issue a Purchase Order for Eight (8) Low-

Floor CNG (Near Zero Emission) Replacement Buses from Gillig LLC 
Recommendation: Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Issue a Purchase Order in 
the amount $7,532,998 to purchase 8 Low Floor CNG (Near Zero Emission) buses from Gillig. 
(Pursuant to GCTD Bylaws purchases over $5 million shall be conducted by a weighted vote.) 
Staff: Marlena Kohler, Procurement Manager/DBE Officer & Lorne Henderson, Fleet Manager 
 

12. Receive Presentation from Auditor on Completion of FY 2025 Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report (ACFR)   
Recommendation: Receive Presentation from GCTD’s auditor Vasquez & Company LLC and 
Receive and File FY 2024-25 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)   
Staff: Christine Feng, CFO/Assistant General Manager 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 

13. 1st Quarter FY 26 Fixed Route and Demand Response Quarterly Report 
Recommendation: Receive Presentation on 1st Quarter Ridership and Outreach Activities 
Staff: Austin Novstrup, Planning Manager & Robbie Lucio, Mobility Management Coordinator 
 

14. Future Agenda Items  
Recommendation: Discussion of topics to be discussed at a future meeting. 
Staff: Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
None 

 
Holiday Bus Ribbon Cutting – Following today’s meeting, please join us in the GCTD courtyard as we 
unveil this year’s holiday bus. This year’s theme is: “The Holiday Express… Ride into the Magic”. The 
festive decorated bus will be circulating on various routes throughout the month of December offering 
free rides to all who board, and will also be making an appearance in the Oxnard Christmas Parade on 
December 6th. 
 
The next regular meeting of the GCTD Board of Directors will be held on January 7, 2026, at 10:00 AM 
at 1901 Auto Center Drive, Oxnard, CA 93036.   Copies of administrative reports relating to the Board 
agenda are available online at www.GoldCoastTransit.org or from the Clerk of the Board, Gold Coast 
Transit District, 1901 Auto Center Drive, Oxnard, CA, 93036-7966. 
 
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL 
ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT THE CLERK OF THE BOARD 
AT (805) 483-3959, Ext. 160, OR E-MAIL adelgado@gctd.org OR THROUGH THE CALIFORNIA RELAY 
SERVICE AT 711. NOTIFICATION 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING WILL ENABLE GCTD TO 
MAKE REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THE MEETING. 



General Manager’s Monthly Report – December 2025 

Welcome, New GCTD Employees 

Please join me in extending a warm welcome to our new 

Bus Operators for our Fixed Route. From left to right, 

Duran Alexander, Alma Ortiz, and Hector Valencia. 

They finished classroom training last week and will now 

begin on the road training! 

Congratulations to Doug Overton on his Retirement from GCTD! 

Please join me in wishing Mr. Doug Overton a very well deserved and happy retirement. 

Doug started with us in 2018 and worked with us the past seven years as a Bus Operator 

and also served as an SEIU Steward for several years as a valued part of our team.      

2025 Passenger Survey In Progress  – 

Last month, we launched an important survey to help us plan future service on fixed route and demand 

response.  So far, we’ve collected over 340 responses!  The input received will be used help us 

understand the needs of riders and plan future transit improvements. This survey takes about 10 minutes, 

and all responses are confidential.  Fill out the survey at www.gctd.org or on the bus! 

State of the Region Report for Ventura County – Featuring Transportation Data Now Available 

Several GCTD staff and the General Manager attended the Ventura County Civic Alliance event to 

launch the 2025 State of the Region Report. Published every two years, the report offers a data-driven 

overview of key aspects of Ventura County, including public health, safety, transportation, and more. 

Ventura County’s  transportation data was featured in the report, which is now available for review 

here: https://civicalliance.org/2025-state-of-the-region-report/. 

CTA Fall Conference - Long Beach 

Several GCTD staff and Board Members, attended the California Transit Association’s 60th Annual 

Conference in Long Beach. The event featured engaging sessions on key topics such as Bus Operator 

safety, Zero-Emission Bus (ZEB) transition progress, advancements in artificial intelligence, and more. 

One of the conference highlights was the keynote address by former U.S. Secretary of Transportation 

Pete Buttigieg.  

http://www.gctd.org/
https://civicalliance.org/2025-state-of-the-region-report/


Therapy Dogs of America Ventura County 

Last week, we had a special visit from Therapy Dogs of America - Ventura 

County. We learned about these remarkable working dogs and the important 

assistance they provide through therapeutic services.   

Annual Holiday Bus & Oxnard Downtown Christmas Parade 

Following today’s meeting, please join us in the GCTD courtyard as we unveil this year’s holiday 

bus. This year’s theme is “The Holiday Express… Ride into the Magic”  The festive decorated bus 

will be circulating on various routes throughout the month of December offering free rides to all who 

board, and will also be making an appearance in the Oxnard Christmas Parade on Saturday, 

December 6th. 

General Manager Activities & Meetings Attended 
• October 1 – Attended CalTrans Focus Group Meeting on State Transit Plan

• October 3 – Attended CTA Executive Committee meeting (virtual)

• October 8 – Attended Kick of Meeting with RideCo for New Demand Response Software

• October 9 – Attended Ventura Housing Breakfast and State of Housing Event

• October 10 – Held Coffee with GM and Opening of GCTD Pumpkin Patch

• October 15 – Attended ½ day Training Class thru Public Sector Human Responses

• October 16 – Participated in Great Shake Out Fire and Evacuation Drill

• October 17 – Meeting &  Facility Tour with Ventura County HSA Disaster and Recovery Team

• October 22 – Attended VCTC Team lunch at GCTD

• October 24-Oct 30 – out of office / on vacation

• November 4-7 – Attended CTA Fall Conference in Long Beach

• November 10 - Attended State of the Region Breakfast

• November 10 – Gave Presentation to Saticoy MAC Annual Transit Update

• November 18 – Held GCTD Manager Training on New Onboarding Tool (Continual Education and Training)

• November 20 – Held Quarterly Safety Awards Lunch / Safe Driving Awards

• November 24 – Hosted Therapy Dog Visit with Therapy Dogs of America

• November 25 – Held All Staff Meeting

Holiday Hours 

A reminder that GCTD will have reduced service and business hours on the following holidays:  No Bus 

Service on Christmas Day and New Year's Day.   The Administration Office will be closed on December 

24th & 25th, and New Year’s Day. 

### 



 

 

 

  

Item #2 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2025 – 10:00 am 

THIS MEETING WAS HELD IN PERSON & VIA ZOOM (HYBRID)  
  

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair McQueen-Legohn called the Regular Board of Directors of Gold Coast Transit District meeting to 
order at 10:03 am at the GCTD Administrative Facility, 1901 Auto Center Drive, Oxnard, California. 
 
B. ROLL CALL  
Chair – Martha McQueen-Legohn, City of Port Hueneme 
Vice Chair – Rachel Lang, City of Ojai    
Director – Matt LaVere, County of Ventura   
Director – Dr. Jeannette Sanchez-Palacios, City of Ventura 
Director – Gabriela Rodriguez, City of Oxnard 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 
Christine Feng, CFO/Assistant GM 
Angelica Delgado, Clerk of the Board   
Cynthia Duque, Director of Planning & Marketing 
James Beck, Director of Operations & Maintenance 
Austin Novstrup, Planning Manager 
Martin Rodriguez, Planner II 
Marlena Kohler, Procurement Manager & DBE Officer 
Andrea Meza, Planning & Marketing Manager 
Lorne Henderson, Fleet Manager 
Juan De La Rosa, Facilities Manager 
Wesley Cooksy, Planner I 
Robbie Lucio, Mobility Mgmt. Coordinator 
Veronica Navarro, Finance & Grants Analyst 
Tanya Hawk, Inventory & Asset Management Coordinator 
Gilbert Piñon, Assistant Operations Manager 
Dante McClain, IT Technician 
 
C. CEREMONIAL CALENDAR 
Director LaVere led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

▪ Will Cattlidge, Safety & Training Supervisor – 10 Yrs 
▪ Lisandro Rivera, Building Maintenance Worker – 10 Yrs 
▪ Alexander Almanza, Service Worker – 5 Yrs 

 
Ms. Rauschenberger and board members thanked employees for their years of service and dedication.  
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D. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
Teresa Romney, Executive Director, CASA of Ventura County, spoke during the general public 
comment. 
 
E. BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORTS 

None 
 
F. AGENDA REVIEW 
Director Dr. Sanchez-Palacios moved to Approve Agenda Review with no changes. Vice-Chair Lang 
seconded the motion.   
 
G. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. GM Update - Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 
Ms. Rauschenberger announced the launch of the Halloween Spooky Bus, which will be traveling through 
all routes in the community. She also welcomed several new employees: Bus Operators,  
Dispatcher/Reservationist, and Maintenance Coordinator to the GCTD team. 
 
Employees of the Quarter were recognized after being nominated by their peers for demonstrating 
GCTD’s core values in their respective departments. 
 
In mid-October, GCTD will launch its annual passenger survey, which this year will include demand 
response services. The survey aims to gather feedback from riders and community members to better 
understand travel needs and improve service. 
 
GCTD offered the community a free promotional ride to the Ventura ArtWalk, which passengers could 
access by downloading a free ride pass. Nearly 100 riders took advantage of the offer through the Token 
Transit app. Ms. Rauschenberger shared her excitement and appreciation for the strong participation and 
was pleased to see so many passengers using the service. 
 
Director LaVere thanked GCTD for its third year of partnership with ArtWalk and noted that the event 
organizers were very appreciative of the continued support. 
 
H. CONSENT AGENDA 
2. Minutes of September 3, 2025 Board of Directors Meeting  

Recommendation: Approve the August 3rd Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
Staff: Angelica Delgado, Clerk of the Board/Executive Assistant 

3. Report of Monthly Expenditures   
Recommendation: Receive Report of Expenditures for the Month of September 2025 
Staff: Angelica Salatan, Accounting Specialist 

4. Report of Monthly Budget/Actual Report 
Recommendation: Receive Report of Budget/Actual for the Month of August 2025 
Staff: Christine Feng, Chief Financial Officer/AGM 

5. Report of Contracts Awarded  
Recommendation: Receive Report of Contracts Awarded for the Month of September 2025 
Staff: Tanya Hawk, Inventory & Asset Management Coordinator 

 
Director LaVere moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 2 through 5. Director Rodriguez seconded 
the motion.   
 
The motion passed unanimously.  
 

I.  FORMAL ITEMS - PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 
The Gold Coast Transit District Board of Directors will consider public comment on any item appearing on 
the agenda when the presiding officer has called the agenda item and after the staff report has been given.  
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Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes of comment on all agenda items.  Public members must 
submit their requests by email to the Clerk of the Board before 9 am on the day of the Board Meeting.  
 
6. Consider Approval of Purchase of Six (6) Cutaway CNG Replacement Buses, Marlena Kohler, 

Procurement Manager & DBE Officer, and Lorne Henderson, Fleet Manager  
 
Mr. Henderson provided a presentation to the Board on vehicles that have reached the end of their 
useful life and the resulting impacts on service reliability and maintenance needs. Following his 
presentation, he recommended that the Board approve the purchase of six ARBOC low-floor cutaway 
vehicles in the amount of approximately $1.6 million. 
 
Ms. Kohler recommended that GCTD award a contract to Model 1 for the purchase of six (6) ARBOC 
Specialty Vehicles for $248,289.09 per vehicle, for a total of $1,489,734.53. The vehicles will replace 
aging paratransit units in GCTD’s GO ACCESS fleet. The purchase will be made through the California 
Association for Coordinated Transportation (CALACT) purchasing cooperative contract 20-01 and will 
be funded using a combination of federal grant funds and state/local funds for the non-federal match. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended the Board of Directors authorize General Manager to purchase six (6) ARBOC 
Transit vehicles from Model 1 Commercial Sales (formerly Creative Bus Sales) in the amount of 
$248,248.09 per vehicle for a total cost of $1,489,734.53 for all six (6) vehicles and authorize up to 
an additional 5% of total cost ($74,490) to cover minimal specification adjustments that may 
occur during the production of the vehicles, for a grand total of $1,564,224.53. In addition, allow 
the disposal of aged-out vehicles. 
 
Director Dr. Sanchez-Palacios moved to approve the Approval of Purchase of Six (6) Cutaway CNG 
Replacement Buses. Director Rodriguez seconded the motion. 

 
7. Receive and File Report: Year in Review -  GO Access and Flexible Services Update, Cynthia 

Duque, Director of Planning & Marketing, and Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager  
 
Ms. Duque noted that in October 2024, Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD) transitioned GO ACCESS 
paratransit and flexible services from a contracted model to a directly operated program, as 
recommended by the Ad Hoc Committee, approved by the Board of Directors, and aligned with the 
District’s Strategic Plan goals. Staff presented an update on the first year of GO ACCESS and Flexible 
Services under direct operation, highlighting cost savings, lessons learned, and goals for future 
improvements. It was recommended that the Board receive the report and provide feedback on the 
information presented. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
It is recommended that the Board Receive and File this report and provide any feedback to staff 
on material presented.  
 

J. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 

8. Operations & Maintenance Report, James Beck, Director of Operations & Maintenance 
 
James provided a verbal report on Operations activities. The report was filed and received. 
 

K. Future Agenda Items – Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager. 
 
Vanessa reported that future agenda would include year-end audit report.    
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There being no further business, Chair McQueen-Legohn adjourned the Board of Directors 
meeting at 10:42 am. 
 
Minutes recorded by Angelica Delgado, Clerk of the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________                                       ________________________ 
Vanessa Rauschenberger                                                 Chair Martha McQueen-Legohn 
Secretary of the Board of Directors                                   Board of Directors 
 
Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, the GCTD Board of Directors' next meeting will 
be on December 3, 2025, at 10:00 am.  Copies of administrative reports relating to the Board agenda are 
available online at www.gctd.org or from the Clerk of the Board, Angelica Delgado, at adelgado@gctd.org 
Gold Coast Transit District, 1901 Auto Center Drive, Oxnard, CA  93036.  

http://www.goldcoasttransit.org/
mailto:adelgado@gctd.org


DATE 

TO 

FROM 

SUBJECT 

Item #3a

December 03, 2025

GCTD Board of Directors 

Angelica Salatan, Accounting Specialist AP  

Consider the Approval of Expenditures for the Month of October 2025

Attached is a list of expenditures for the Month of October 2025  from the various GCTD 
Accounts. 

If any member of the Board wishes to review a particular item, please contact me to have 
the necessary documentation on hand for the meeting. 

Attachments: 
Accounts Payable Disbursement List – October 2025

GENERAL MANAGER'S CONCURRENCE

Vanessa Rauschenberger 
General Manager 

pvilla
Underline



Payee ReferenceDateAmount TypeOfGoods

DEPT. OF MOTOR VEHICLES 01-Oct-25 $45.00 DMV ETP RENEWAL

AGRITEC INTERNATIONAL LTD. 02-Oct-25 $122.45 HAZ MAT DISPOSAL SERVICES

AMERICAN MADE CLEAN INC 02-Oct-25 $525.00 SERVICES

ASWELL TROPHY 02-Oct-25 $229.43 AWARDS

CALTIP 02-Oct-25 $428,109.46 LIABILITY INSURANCE

CITI CARDS 02-Oct-25 $626.49 OFFICE SUPPLIES

CITY OF OXNARD 02-Oct-25 $2,013.19 MONTHLY RENT OTC

COUNTY OF VENTURA - IT SVCS. DEPT. 02-Oct-25 $683.21 REPEATER SITE RENTAL

CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC 02-Oct-25 $17,270.06 PARTS

DAVID R. LIDREN 02-Oct-25 $1,385.00 EMPLOYEE EVENTS

EDISON CO. 02-Oct-25 $27,918.51 ELECTRICAL POWER

FEDERAL EXPRESS CORP. 02-Oct-25 $13.64 MAIL SERVICES

GILLIG LLC 02-Oct-25 $9,055.42 PARTS

GLOBAL CTI GROUP, INC. 02-Oct-25 $720.00 SOL-GPS AND DIAGNOSTIC-VERIZON

GRAINGER 02-Oct-25 $506.47 MISC. PARTS/SUPPLIES

J N DESIGNS 02-Oct-25 $163.88 PRINTING/GRAPHICS SERV

LOS ANGELES TRUCK CENTERS, LLC 02-Oct-25 $3,596.94 PARTS/SERVICE

MACVALLEY OIL COMPANY 02-Oct-25 $36.26 FUEL

MISSION LINEN SUPPLY 02-Oct-25 $562.31 MAINTENANCE UNIFORMS

NATIONAL AUTO BODY&PAINT 02-Oct-25 $8,065.68 BODY WORK

NATIONAL DRIVE HEADQUARTERS 02-Oct-25 $24.00 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

NATURAL GREEN LANDSCAPE INC. 02-Oct-25 $4,480.00 LANDSCAPING SERVICES

OK RADIATOR SHOP INC. 02-Oct-25 $299.35 RADIATOR REPAIRS

PARKHOUSE TIRE, INC. 02-Oct-25 $684.81 TIRES

PARKHOUSE TIRE, INC. 02-Oct-25 $67.50 TIRES

PARTS AUTHORITY LLC 02-Oct-25 $803.31 PARTS

PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL 02-Oct-25 $214.99 POSTAGE MACHINE

RAYNE WATER CONDITIONING 02-Oct-25 $231.39 WATER COOLER BREAK ROOM

RED WING SHOE STORE 02-Oct-25 $475.68 SAFETY SHOES

SUPERIOR PRINTING & GRAPHICS, INC 02-Oct-25 $18.03 PRINTING SERVICES

THE AFTERMARKET PARTS COMPANY, LLC 02-Oct-25 $547.04 PARTS/BUSES

TRANSFOR CORPORATION 02-Oct-25 $346.00 WHEELCHAIR PARTS

TST PRIVATE SECURITY 02-Oct-25 $6,446.68 SECURITY SERVICES

AFFORDABLE AUTO GLASS 09-Oct-25 $471.32 AUTO GLASS REPAIR

APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 09-Oct-25 $2,803.20 TEMPORARY HELP

ASSURANT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 09-Oct-25 $1,325.69 DENTAL PREMIUMS

BENEFIT COORDINATORS CORP. 09-Oct-25 $12,051.10 DENTAL PREMIUMS

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 09-Oct-25 $26,624.00 GENERAL COUNSEL SERVICE

ENVISION VTA FD AUTO LLC 09-Oct-25 $7.87 PARTS

FLUID NETWORKS 09-Oct-25 $56.57 SERVICES

FORTRESS ARMORED SERVICES COMPANY 09-Oct-25 $433.51 ARMORED CAR SERVICES

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 09-Oct-25 $701.55 INTERNET PRVDER - PTSIT CNTOR

GMH INC 09-Oct-25 $1,557.50 HVAC

GREG'S PETROLEUM SERVICE, INC 09-Oct-25 $2,410.16 OIL SUPPLIER

KIMBALL MIDWEST 09-Oct-25 $1,737.75 PARTS

MACVALLEY OIL COMPANY 09-Oct-25 $11,342.73 FUEL

PLATINUM TOW AND TRANSPORT INC. 09-Oct-25 $390.00 TOWING SERVICES

PUBLIC RISK INNOVATION SOLUTIONS & MANAG 09-Oct-25 $83,188.42 WORKER'S COMP/EAP PROVIDER

PURE EARTH SYSTEMS, INC. 09-Oct-25 $400.00 TROUBLE SHOOTING, DIAGNOSTICS

RED WING SHOE STORE 09-Oct-25 $177.75 SAFETY SHOES

SUPERIOR PRINTING & GRAPHICS, INC 09-Oct-25 $111.98 PRINTING SERVICES

SUPERIOR SANITARY SUPPLIES 09-Oct-25 $1,799.71 SUPPLIES



TEAMSTERS LOCAL 186 09-Oct-25 $1,528.00 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

VASQUEZ AND COMPANY LLP 09-Oct-25 $19,423.33 AUDITOR

VENTURA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 09-Oct-25 $850.00 SMARTCARD SLS

VENTURA FEED & PET SUPPLIES, INC. 09-Oct-25 $213.35 SAFETY SHOES

VERIZON 09-Oct-25 $3,645.96 PHONE SRVC - CSC

VERIZON CONNECT FLEET USA LLC 09-Oct-25 $1,083.84 VEHICLE TRACKING SYSTEM

WEX HEALTH, INC. 09-Oct-25 $327.00 FSA ADMINISTRATION FEE

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 16-Oct-25 $38,567.50 GENERAL COUNSEL SERVICE

CALTIP 16-Oct-25 $37,241.43 LIABILITY INSURANCE

COASTAL OCCUPATIONAL MEDICAL GROUP 16-Oct-25 $4,640.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG SCREENS

CREATIVE BUS SALES 16-Oct-25 $604.89 PARATRANSIT BUS/VANS

FEDERAL EXPRESS CORP. 16-Oct-25 $23.54 MAIL SERVICES

FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC 16-Oct-25 $6.36 SUPPLIES

FIRST CALL AUTO PARTS 16-Oct-25 $21.83 PARTS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 16-Oct-25 $744.40 INTERNET PRVDER - PTSIT CNTOR

GENFARE LLC 16-Oct-25 $360.63 PARTS

GILLIG LLC 16-Oct-25 $1,241.81 PARTS

GRAINGER 16-Oct-25 $379.26 MISC. PARTS/SUPPLIES

GREG'S PETROLEUM SERVICE, INC 16-Oct-25 $527.25 OIL SUPPLIER

LAWSON PRODUCTS 16-Oct-25 $142.90 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

LIGHTGABLER 16-Oct-25 $112.50 LEGAL SERVICES

LOS ANGELES TRUCK CENTERS, LLC 16-Oct-25 $3,218.19 PARTS/SERVICE

MISSION LINEN SUPPLY 16-Oct-25 $572.91 MAINTENANCE UNIFORMS

MISSION LINEN SUPPLY 16-Oct-25 $562.31 MAINTENANCE UNIFORMS

NATIONAL AUTO BODY&PAINT 16-Oct-25 $6,824.63 BODY WORK

NATIONAL DRIVE HEADQUARTERS 16-Oct-25 $24.00 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

PARKHOUSE TIRE, INC. 16-Oct-25 $2,516.17 TIRES

PARTS AUTHORITY LLC 16-Oct-25 $3,010.38 PARTS

PLATINUM TOW AND TRANSPORT INC. 16-Oct-25 $1,968.81 TOWING SERVICES

PLEXUS GLOBAL 16-Oct-25 $45.05 BACKGROUND & DRUG SCREENING

RED WING SHOE STORE 16-Oct-25 $220.64 SAFETY SHOES

SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC 16-Oct-25 $442.61 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

SUPERIOR SANITARY SUPPLIES 16-Oct-25 $212.08 SUPPLIES

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 186 16-Oct-25 $150.00 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

TELENET VOIP, INC. 16-Oct-25 $270.00 MONITORING

THE ARC OF VENTURA COUNTY, INC. 16-Oct-25 $2,654.78 MONEY CNTERS/BUS CLNRS

THE GAS COMPANY 16-Oct-25 $41,341.03 NATURAL GAS

VENTURA COUNTY  AUTO SUPPLY 16-Oct-25 $98.47 PARTS

CITY OF OXNARD 20-Oct-25 $4,438.88 UTILITIES/TRASH

APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 23-Oct-25 $2,803.20 TEMPORARY HELP

BRADY INDUSTRIES OF CALIFORNIA LLC 23-Oct-25 $4,591.20 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

CLEAN ENERGY 23-Oct-25 $34,956.45 REPAIRS

ENVISION VTA FD AUTO LLC 23-Oct-25 $767.65 PARTS

FIRST CALL AUTO PARTS 23-Oct-25 $274.56 PARTS

GILLIG LLC 23-Oct-25 $114.72 PARTS

GLOBAL CTI GROUP, INC. 23-Oct-25 $360.00 SOL-GPS AND DIAGNOSTIC-VERIZON

INTERSTATE BATTERIES 23-Oct-25 $2,298.17 BATTERIES

LOS ANGELES TRUCK CENTERS, LLC 23-Oct-25 $1,630.92 PARTS/SERVICE

LYNETTE COVERLY 23-Oct-25 $3,565.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

MACVALLEY OIL COMPANY 23-Oct-25 $10,495.47 FUEL

MISSION LINEN SUPPLY 23-Oct-25 $552.60 MAINTENANCE UNIFORMS

OCEANVIEW PLUMBING & ROOTER 23-Oct-25 $225.00 PLUMBING

PARTS AUTHORITY LLC 23-Oct-25 $286.11 PARTS



PITNEY BOWES INC 23-Oct-25 $114.71 POSTAGE MACH

PLATINUM TOW AND TRANSPORT INC. 23-Oct-25 $871.25 TOWING SERVICES

RINGCENTRAL, INC. 23-Oct-25 $2,365.46 PHONE SRVC - CSC

ROSCO, INC. 23-Oct-25 $430.91 VEHICLE CAMERA

STORERITE INC. 23-Oct-25 $110.00 SHREDING SERVICES

SUPERIOR SANITARY SUPPLIES 23-Oct-25 $125.98 SUPPLIES

TELENET VOIP, INC. 23-Oct-25 $705.00 MONITORING

THE AFTERMARKET PARTS COMPANY, LLC 23-Oct-25 $104.28 PARTS/BUSES

U.S. BANK 23-Oct-25 $18,757.42 CALCARD PAYMENT

UNITED WAY OF VENTURA CO. 23-Oct-25 $72.00 P/R DEDUCTION

VENTURA COUNTY  AUTO SUPPLY 23-Oct-25 $555.44 PARTS

VENTURA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 23-Oct-25 $700.90 SMARTCARD SLS

YUVAL MILLER 23-Oct-25 $5,211.00 LEGAL SERVICES

CALIFORNIA HOSE, INC 30-Oct-25 $277.21 PARTS

CALTIP 30-Oct-25 $13,672.18 LIABILITY INSURANCE

CREATIVE BUS SALES 30-Oct-25 $204.49 PARATRANSIT BUS/VANS

EDISON CO. 30-Oct-25 $27,746.21 ELECTRICAL POWER

FIRST CALL AUTO PARTS 30-Oct-25 $253.79 PARTS

GILLIG LLC 30-Oct-25 $10,182.41 PARTS

GREG'S PETROLEUM SERVICE, INC 30-Oct-25 $2,360.97 OIL SUPPLIER

INFINITY CNG SERVICES, INC. 30-Oct-25 $1,175.00 CNG STATION REPAIR SERVICES

LOS ANGELES TRUCK CENTERS, LLC 30-Oct-25 $654.00 PARTS/SERVICE

M.O.DION & SONS, INC. 30-Oct-25 $667.23 FUEL

MOBILE CREATE USA, INC. 30-Oct-25 $677.35 2 WAY RADIO EQUIPMENT/SERVICE

OK RADIATOR SHOP INC. 30-Oct-25 $299.33 RADIATOR REPAIRS

ORKIN SERVICES OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 30-Oct-25 $180.00 PEST CONTROL

PARKHOUSE TIRE, INC. 30-Oct-25 $5,736.97 TIRES

PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL 30-Oct-25 $441.99 POSTAGE MACHINE

SUPERIOR SANITARY SUPPLIES 30-Oct-25 $2,641.62 SUPPLIES

TELCOM COMMUNICATION 30-Oct-25 $229.85 RADIO REPAIRS

THE AFTERMARKET PARTS COMPANY, LLC 30-Oct-25 $99.31 PARTS/BUSES

THE DETAIL SHOP INC 30-Oct-25 $824.72 SUPPLIES

THE GAS COMPANY 30-Oct-25 $876.56 NATURAL GAS

VENTURA COUNTY  AUTO SUPPLY 30-Oct-25 $846.01 PARTS

CalPERS Health for October 2025   EFT $317,422.42 HEALTH INSURANCE 

CalPERS Unfunded Liability for October 2025 EFT $162,161.00 UNFDED ACCRD LIAB CLASSIC

Life Basic/Supplemental insurance October 2025   EFT $14,494.07 LONG TERM DISABILITY PREMIUMS

CalPERS Pension Contributions PR 10/03/2025   EFT $69,756.90 PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

CalPERS Pension Contributions PR 10/17/2025   EFT $71,282.28 PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

CalPERS Pension Contributions PR 10/31/2025   EFT $70,880.95 PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL $1,713,224.93



DATE 

TO 

FROM 

SUBJECT 

Item #3b

December 03, 2025

GCTD Board of Directors 

Angelica Salatan, Accounting Specialist AP  

Consider the Approval of Expenditures for the Month of November 2025

Attached is a list of expenditures for the Month of November 2025  from the various GCTD 
Accounts. 

If any member of the Board wishes to review a particular item, please contact me to have 
the necessary documentation on hand for the meeting. 

Attachments: 
Accounts Payable Disbursement List – November 2025

GENERAL MANAGER'S CONCURRENCE

Vanessa Rauschenberger 
General Manager 

pvilla
Underline



GENFARE LLC

$200.00 GYM EQUIPMENT

06-Nov-25

$433.51 ARMORED CAR SERVICES

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

DYER SHEEHAN GROUP, INC.

06-Nov-25

06-Nov-25

$2,264.92 UNEMPLOYMENT CHARGES

$701.55 INTERNET PRVDER - PTSIT CNTOR

06-Nov-25

GYM PROVISIONS INC

$18,642.50 301 REDEVELOPMENT CONSULTING

06-Nov-25

$3,066.55 PARTS

$16,281.00 PARTS

06-Nov-25

FORTRESS ARMORED SERVICES COMPANY

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

06-Nov-25

06-Nov-25

$118.69 WATER COOLER BREAK ROOM

$1,075.30 GRAPHICS

STAPLES ADVANTAGE

RAYNE WATER CONDITIONING

SIGNOGRAPHICS 2000

$849.13 OFFICE SUPPLIES

SUPERIOR PRINTING & GRAPHICS, INC

$11,222.32 FUEL

06-Nov-25

MACVALLEY OIL COMPANY

06-Nov-25

06-Nov-25 $876.46 PRINTING SERVICES

THE AFTERMARKET PARTS COMPANY, LLC

06-Nov-25

NATIONAL DRIVE HEADQUARTERS $24.00 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

06-Nov-25

06-Nov-25

ASSURANT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

$525.00 SERVICES

BENEFIT COORDINATORS CORP.

06-Nov-25

06-Nov-25

Payee TypeOfGoods

CITY OF OXNARD

ReferenceDate Amount

COUNTY OF VENTURA - IT SVCS. DEPT.

$12,222.30 DENTAL PREMIUMS

$2,067.69 MONTHLY RENT OTC

$683.21 REPEATER SITE RENTAL

CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC

06-Nov-25 $1,411.17 DENTAL PREMIUMS

AMERICAN MADE CLEAN INC

06-Nov-25

$1,815.99 MAINTENANCE UNIFORMS

$4,888.45 ADVERTISING SERVICES

LORI'S MOBILE NOTARY

13-Nov-25

THE ARC OF VENTURA COUNTY, INC.

THE GAS COMPANY

KIMBALL MIDWEST

GREG'S PETROLEUM SERVICE, INC

PARKHOUSE TIRE, INC.

$30,000.00 ELECTRICAL

$4,743.48 OIL SUPPLIER

13-Nov-25

$648.42 INTERNET PRVDER - PTSIT CNTOR

$625.00 NOTARY SERVICES

$43,133.17 NATURAL GAS

VENTURA FEED & PET SUPPLIES, INC.

INVERTER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

13-Nov-25

13-Nov-25

13-Nov-25

$5,700.00 HVAC

13-Nov-25

$1,270.35 SUPPLIES

$3,098.23 MONEY CNTERS/BUS CLNRS

13-Nov-25

13-Nov-25

13-Nov-25 $436.61 SAFETY SHOES

$99.42 PARTS

SUPERIOR SANITARY SUPPLIES

13-Nov-25

MIGUEL GOMEZ-MORALES

MISSION LINEN SUPPLY

PROFORMA

13-Nov-25

13-Nov-25

13-Nov-25

$2,758.34 TIRES

PREMIER ELECTRICAL A JONES GROUP CORP

THERAPY DOGS OF SANTA BARBARA

FROG ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.

13-Nov-25

$55.80 SERVICES

13-Nov-25

$250.00 EMPLOYEE EVENTS06-Nov-25

$38,939.25 GENERAL COUNSEL SERVICE

13-Nov-25

$5,857.76 SECURITY SERVICES

CALTIP

13-Nov-25

06-Nov-25

06-Nov-25

$18,693.82 LIABILITY INSURANCE

CITY OF OXNARD 12-Nov-25

FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC

06-Nov-25

13-Nov-25 $43.09 SUPPLIES

$4,968.95 UTILITIES/TRASH

VIEWFINDERS VISUAL COMMUNICATIONS

13-Nov-25

VOGUE SIGN COMPANY

$819.38 AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY

TST PRIVATE SECURITY

$54.63 BUS DECALS

FLUID NETWORKS

$1,994.85 SUPPLIES

VERIZON CONNECT FLEET USA LLC

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

$472.00 ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

06-Nov-25

$541.92 VEHICLE TRACKING SYSTEM

06-Nov-25

AMERICAN PLASTICS CORP

$149.56 PARTS/BUSES

$95.98 INTERNET PRVDER - PTSIT CNTOR

ANTHONY TAITAI CUSTOMER REFUND GO ACCESS

AFFORDABLE AUTO GLASS

20-Nov-25

ANGELINA VASQUEZ

EZ LANDSCAPE SERVICES

FIRST CALL AUTO PARTS

CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC

$50.00

$92.47 PARTS

$5,200.00 LANDSCAPING SERVICES

$96.00

APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES

$35,762.60 PARTS

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

CHRISTINE FENG 20-Nov-25

AGRITEC INTERNATIONAL LTD.

$2,471.10 PRINTING SERVICES

20-Nov-25

$122.45 HAZ MAT DISPOSAL SERVICES

$389.40

CENTER FOR TRANSPORTATION AND THE ENVIRO

14-Nov-25

EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT

20-Nov-25

$3,212.36 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT

$17,000.00 MEMBERSHIP DUES

DCH (OXNARD) INC $14.84 REPAIRS/SUPPLIES

$251.80 EXP REIMBURSEMENT

ENVISION VTA FD AUTO LLC $245.90 PARTS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT

$5,571.36 TEMPORARY HELP

$300.00 AUTO GLASS REPAIR

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

CHIHARU ENDO



$93.04 PARTS

THE AFTERMARKET PARTS COMPANY, LLC

20-Nov-25

$280.34 INDUSTRIAL CLEANERS

CalPERS Health for November 2025  

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

RUBBER NECK SIGNS 20-Nov-25

VASQUEZ AND COMPANY LLP

$1,618.00 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

20-Nov-25

TRAVEL & MEETINGS REIMBURSEMENT

WEX HEALTH, INC.

$220,857.00 WORKER'S COMP/EAP PROVIDER

BANK 20-Nov-25

$4,194.87 PARTS

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 186

20-Nov-25

VANESSA RAUSCHENBERGER 20-Nov-25

VERIZON

20-Nov-25

$1,009.49 TIRES

ROBERT LUCIO

20-Nov-25

$13,479.26 CALCARD PAYMENT

VENTURA COUNTY  AUTO SUPPLY

20-Nov-25

$328.50 FSA ADMINISTRATION FEE

20-Nov-25

PUBLIC RISK INNOVATION SOLUTIONS & MANAG

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

$223.80

$4,751.69 SERVICES

$4,547.25 PARTS/BUSES

20-Nov-25

PARKHOUSE TIRE, INC.

EFT $320,863.27 HEALTH INSURANCE 

$342.00 TUITION AND BOOK REIMBURSEMENT

$497.49 SUPPLIES

STORERITE INC.

TRANSFOR CORPORATION

$7,608.11 AUDITOR

$2,168.17 PHONE SRVC - CSC

U.S. 

$395.00 WHEELCHAIR PARTS

ZEP MANUFACTURING CO.

PARTS AUTHORITY LLC

$110.00 SHREDING SERVICES

20-Nov-25

$256.00RACHEL LANG 20-Nov-25

TRAVEL & MEETINGS REIMBURSEMENT

20-Nov-25

SUPERIOR SANITARY SUPPLIES 20-Nov-25

$218.48 SUPPLIES

$251.80 EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT

THE DETAIL SHOP INC

EFTCalPERS Pension Contributions PR 11/14/2025  

CalPERS Unfunded Liability for November 2025 $162,161.00 UNFDED ACCRD LIAB CLASSIC

TOTAL

EFT $14,843.02 LONG TERM DISABILITY PREMIUMS

$1,162,801.29

$70,433.90 PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

EFT
Life Basic/Supplemental insurance November 2025  

JAMES BECK 20-Nov-25 $383.81 EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT

JONATHON CASTANEDA

20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

GRAINGER $853.57 MISC. PARTS/SUPPLIES

GILLIG LLC

INTERSTATE BATTERIES 20-Nov-25

$4,427.86 PARTS

$1,567.34 BATTERIES

LOWE'S

LYNETTE COVERLY

EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT

$4,540.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

20-Nov-25

$978.61 PARTS

20-Nov-25

KIMBALL MIDWEST 20-Nov-25

20-Nov-25

$210.80

$2,707.79 SUPPLIES

MARTHA MCQUEEN-LEGOHN

20-Nov-25



 

 

 

 
 

Item #4 
 
Date:              December 3, 2025 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Catherine Tran, Fiscal Analyst 
  Christine Feng, Chief Financial Officer/AGM 
   
Subject: Consider Acceptance of September & October 2025 Actual vs. Budget  

Financial Analysis Report 
 

 
 
This report summarizes the financial activities for September & October 2025, comparing actual 
performance with the budgeted amounts for Gold Coast Transit District.  
 
Overview: 
 
In September 2025, the Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD) experienced a monthly surplus of 
$644,016, primarily due to well-managed expenses, prior period adjustments, and receipt of 
SB125 State Operating Assistance funds.  In October 2025, the Gold Coast Transit District 
(GCTD) experienced a monthly surplus of $991,065, primarily due to well-managed expenses 
and receipt of federal funds 

Revenues 

Total revenues for September came to $3.33 million and for October were $5.13 million. Key 
highlights include: 

• Operating Revenues were 21% under budget in September and 14% under budget 
in October due to timing of fare reimbursement and decrease in fare revenue  

• Non-Operating Revenues were 32% under budget in September, totaling $28K, 
reflecting a reduction in other non-operational income from energy credits. In October, 
the District was 45% over budget from energy credits received.  

• Federal Assistance funding was received in October for Operating Assistance. 
• State Assistance funding was applied to Operating Assistance to cover the deficit.  
• Local Assistance were all in line with expectations. 

Year-to-date (YTD), revenues represent 36.17% of the annual budget, indicating Federal 
Assistance and State Assistance funding Claimed to assist District ‘s Operations on time. 
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Expenses 

Total expenses were $2.69 million in September and $4.14 million in October. The main 
cost drivers were: 

• Services expenses increased 51% over budget in September, driven by an increase in 
legal expenditure.  

• Salary/Wage expenses were 44% over budget, due to three pay periods occurring in 
the month of October.  

• Causality and Liability expenses were 251% over budget in October due to the 
second quarter CalTIP liability Insurance premium payment. 

YTD, total actual operating expenses are 32.94% of the annual budget. Our monthly targeted 
budget expenses are 33.3% of the annual budget. The variance is only 0.36%. 

Overall, September and October monthly budget reports reflect ongoing monitoring of federal 
and state funding disbursements and expenses. The District’s overall budget reflects sound 
financial management and is aligned with long-term goals. 

 

 
 
      
General Manager’s Concurrence 
 
 



September 2025 
Actual 

September 2025 
Budget 

Variance     Over 
(Under) Budget YTD actual Annual Budget 

Percentage of 
Annual Budget

Revenues:   
Operating revenues 171,558.94$          216,666.67$          -21% 536,466.83$         2,600,000.00$       20.63%
Non- Operating Revenues 59,123.94               87,500.00              -32% 116,443.92           1,050,000.00         11.09%
Local Assistance 1,669,026.92         1,669,026.92         0% 5,007,080.75        20,028,323.00       25.00%
State Assistance * 1,438,819.46          600,448.17            140% 2,995,791.54        7,205,378.00          41.58%
Federal Assistance ** -                           779,543.58            -100% 772,746.00           9,354,523.00         8.26%

Total Revenues 3,338,529.26$       3,353,185.32$       0% 9,428,529.04$      40,238,224.00$     23.43%
  

 * State Operating Assistances of SB125 funding to cover Operating deficit.  
 ** Federal Operating Assistances for eligible expenses have yet to receive. 

 
Expenses:

Salary/Wage 1,207,178.95$       1,350,367.42$       -11% 3,647,925.02$      16,204,409.00$     22.51%
Fringe Benefits 827,873.40             1,068,470.04         -23% 2,877,068.30        12,821,640.00       22.44%
Services 160,063.31             106,173.83            51% 332,023.20           1,274,086.00         26.06%
Materials and Supplies 260,717.03            270,697.14            -4% 658,644.39           3,248,366.00         20.28%
Utilities *** (33,394.66)             36,416.67              -192% 69,221.76             437,000.00            15.84%
Casualty and Liability -                          136,374.99            -100% 291,711.65           1,636,500.00         17.83%
Miscellaneous 48,681.72               45,916.68              6% 113,993.69           551,000.00            20.69%
Debt Service  115,375.50            -100% 459,800.00           1,384,506.00         33.21%
Members Contribution 223,393.08            223,393.08            0% 670,179.25           2,680,717.00$       25.00%

Total Expenses 2,694,512.83$       3,353,185.32$       -19.64% 9,120,567.26$      40,238,224.00$     22.67%
  

*** Prior period adjustment.  
 

   
Surplus or (Deficit) 644,016.42$          307,961.78$         

    
 

GOLD COAST TRANSIT DISTRICT

Financial activities summary ( Actual v.s. Budget)

September 2025 (FY 2026)



October 2025 
Actual 

October 2025 
Budget 

Variance     Over 
(Under) Budget YTD actual Annual Budget 

Percentage of 
Annual Budget

Revenues: 
Operating revenues 185,352.91$          216,666.67$          -14% 721,819.74$         2,600,000.00$       27.76%
Non- Operating Revenues * 127,181.31             87,500.00              45% 243,625.23           1,050,000.00         23.20%
Local Assistance 1,669,026.92         1,669,026.92         0% 6,676,107.67        20,028,323.00       33.33%
State Assistance 393,925.64             600,448.17            -34% 3,389,717.18        7,205,378.00          47.04%
Federal Assistance  2,750,981.00          779,543.58            253% 3,523,727.00        9,354,523.00         37.67%

Total Revenues 5,126,467.78$       3,353,185.32$       53% 14,554,996.82$    40,238,224.00$     36.17%
   

* Energy credits.

  

 
Expenses:

Salary/Wage ** 1,946,614.80$       1,350,367.42$       44% 5,594,539.82$      16,204,409.00$     34.52%
Fringe Benefits 1,032,253.85          1,068,470.04         -3% 3,909,322.15        12,821,640.00       30.49%
Services 129,686.28             106,173.83            22% 461,709.48           1,274,086.00         36.24%
Materials and Supplies 248,522.23            270,697.14            -8% 907,166.62           3,248,366.00         27.93%
Utilities 60,980.16              36,416.67              67% 130,201.92           437,000.00            29.79%
Casuality and Liability *** 479,023.07            136,374.99            251% 770,734.72           1,636,500.00         47.10%
Miscellaneous 14,929.44               45,916.68              -67% 128,923.13           551,000.00            23.40%
Debt Service -                          115,375.50            -100% 459,800.00           1,384,506.00         33.21%
Members Contribution 223,393.08            223,393.08            0% 893,572.33           2,680,717.00$       33.33%

Total Expenses 4,135,402.91$       3,353,185.32$       23.33% 13,255,970.17$    40,238,224.00$     32.94%
  

**  Three pay periods in the month of October.

***  Quarterly Liability Premium payment.

 

   
Surplus or (Deficit) 991,064.86$          1,299,026.64$      

   
 

GOLD COAST TRANSIT DISTRICT

Financial activities summary ( Actual v.s. Budget)

October 2025 (FY 2026)



December 3, 2025   Item #5 

TO GCTD Board of Directors 

FROM Tanya Hawk, Inventory and Assets Management Coordinator 

SUBJECT Report of Contracts Awarded 

 SUMMARY 

As requested by the Board of Directors on December 2, 2020, and in accordance with the 

GCTD Purchasing Resolution, staff is to provide a monthly report of all purchases issued by this 

agency. The attached report lists all purchase orders awarded since the October Board 

meeting.  

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S CONCURRENCE 

_________________________________ 
Vanessa Rauschenberger 
General Manager 



Contracts/PO Awarded Report

October Through November 2025

PO# Item Description Vendor Name City Cost

A0010377
ANNUAL RENEWAL 
OPENGOV E- PROCUREMENT 

OpenGov Inc PASADENA  $      12,220.00 

A0010378
REAL PROPERTY 
REDEVELOPMENT 
CONSULTING

DYER SHEEHAN 
GROUP, INC.

VENTURA  $    100,000.00 

P0030349
PROVIDING DRONE 
FOOTAGE

VIEWFINDERS 
VISUAL 
COMMUNICATION
S

PALM DESERT  $           819.38 

M0051593
LAMP CLEAR LED LICENSE 
PLATE, HOUSING BRACKET 
LICENSE PLATE LAMP,

CREATIVE BUS 
SALES

CHINO  $           107.52 

M0051594
DEVICE, AFTER CLEANING 
CATALYST

PURE EARTH 
SYSTEMS, INC.

NORTHRIDGE  $           400.00 

M0051595
DEVICE, AFTER CLEANING 
CATALYST

PURE EARTH 
SYSTEMS, INC.

NORTHRIDGE  $           400.00 

M0051598 SENSOR, CAT TEMP
CUMMINS PACIFIC 
LLC

VENTURA  $           755.54 

M0051599
BLOWER MOTOR-FORD 
TRANSIT

PARTS 
AUTHORITY LLC

VENTURA  $           150.94 

M0051600 ROD, PUSH 8.9
CUMMINS PACIFIC 
LLC

VENTURA  $           936.11 

M0051602

CLAMP, 4 IN EXHAUST, 
CLAMP, BAND, CLAMP, BAND, 
CLAMP, V-BAND, CLAMP, 5 IN, 
CLAMP, BAND SCR MTG (CAT)

GILLIG LLC LOS ANGELES  $           623.16 

M0051603

50830 PARTS WASHER 
SERVICE, 51830 PARTS 
WASHER SERVICE, 90837 
PARTS WASHER SERVICE, 
90837 PARTS WASHER 
SERVICE, 8863 PW SAMPLE, 
100005 CHEMISTRY FEE, 
100030 RECOVERY FEE, 
90837 PW SERVICE

SAFETY-KLEEN 
SYSTEMS, INC.

DALLAS  $        1,313.02 

M0051604 DOOR LOCK ACTUATOR TEAM NISSAN OXNARD  $           557.26 

PURCHASING 

PARTS



Contracts/PO Awarded Report

October Through November 2025

M0051605

HEAD LAMP BULB 
(HALOGEN), PCV VALVE 
ASSEMBLY, IGNITION COIL, 
ALTERNATOR-FORD 
TRANSIT, GL-8699 
ALTERNATOR CORE CHARGE

PARTS 
AUTHORITY LLC

VENTURA  $        1,546.91 

M0051606
REAR BRAKE PADS- NEW 
FORD TRANSIT & SUN VISOR 
CLIPS

ENVISION VTA FD 
AUTO LLC

OXNARD  $           256.32 

M0051607
ECM PROGRAMMING LABOR 
(3509) & ECM PROGRAM 
OTHER

LOS ANGELES 
TRUCK CENTERS, 
LLC

PASADENA  $           500.02 

M0051609

CONE, BEARING, OUTER, 
FRONT, REGULATOR, ALT, 
PUMP, POWER STEERING, 
SWITCH, MOMENTARY PUSH 
BUTTON ( WITH METAL 
BRACKET), HOUSING SHELL, 
MIRROR, LAMP ASSY, & 
AMBER MARKET/CLEARANCE

GILLIG LLC LOS ANGELES  $        2,131.65 

M0051611

VALVOLINE PREMIUM BLUE 
9200 15W-40, STATE 
RECYCLING FEE, 
REGULATORY FEE

GREG'S 
PETROLEUM 
SERVICE, INC

DELANO  $        1,891.72 

M0051612 CLAMP, V BAND 4.75
CUMMINS PACIFIC 
LLC

VENTURA  $           183.57 

M0051613 RADIATOR CAP-MV 1
VENTURA COUNTY 
AUTO SUPPLY

OXNARD  $             49.11 

M0051614 MICRO SWITCH
CREATIVE BUS 
SALES

CHINO  $             91.90 

M0051615 BRACKET TENSION LINK
CREATIVE BUS 
SALES

CHINO  $             50.31 

M0051616
235/65R17 TIRES & CA 
RECYCLING FEE

PARKHOUSE TIRE, 
INC.

BELL GARDENS  $           641.42 

M0051617
205/55R16 TIRES, CA 
RECYCLING FEE

PARKHOUSE TIRE, 
INC.

BELL GARDENS  $           779.85 

M0051618
SPANNER LOCK NUT (WIPER 
MOTOR)

GILLIG LLC LOS ANGELES  $             95.64 



Contracts/PO Awarded Report

October Through November 2025

M0051619

COMBINATION 
LAP/SHOULDER SEAT BELT & 
L-TRACK UPPER SHOULDER
BELT FITTING

TRANSFOR 
CORPORATION

BLUFFTON  $           346.00 

M0051620

DIRECT CONNECT WIPER 
BLADE, DIRECT CONNECT 
WIPER BLADE, DIRECT 
CONNECT WIPER BLADE, 
FILTER-OIL, BATTERY, BXT-65-
850 BATTERY CORE

PARTS 
AUTHORITY LLC

VENTURA  $           576.85 

M0051621
TCM PROGRAM LABOR ( 
4062),  & TCM PROGRAM  
OTHER ( 4062)

LOS ANGELES 
TRUCK CENTERS, 
LLC

PASADENA  $           500.02 

M0051622
CARRIER ASM 
(DIFFERENTIAL)

GILLIG LLC LOS ANGELES  $        6,923.75 

M0051624

KIT, OVERHAUL, HEAD, 
CYLINDER, 4933818D 
CYLINDER HEAD CORE & 
4933818D CYLINDER HEAD 
CORE CREDIT

CUMMINS PACIFIC 
LLC

VENTURA  $        9,619.18 

M0051625

PASSENGER SEAT BELT-
FORD TRANSIT, AIR DRYER 
DESICCANT CARTRIDGE, 
R107794 CORE, & AIR DRYER 
PURGE VALVE KIT

CREATIVE BUS 
SALES

CHINO  $           995.51 

M0051627
CARTRIDGE KIT, CORE, 
PURGE VALVE & 
MAINTENANCE KIT

LOS ANGELES 
TRUCK CENTERS, 
LLC

PASADENA  $           168.00 

M0051628 GROOVED TIMING BELT GENFARE LLC ELK GROVE  $           352.88 

M0051629 GASKET, & CYLINDER HEAD
CUMMINS PACIFIC 
LLC

VENTURA  $           630.47 

M0051630

BODY LABOR, PAINT LABOR, 
FRAME, MATERIALS PAINT, 
MATERIALS BODY, SUBLET-
R&R WINDSHIELD, MISC HAZ 
WASTE/VOC

NATIONAL AUTO 
BODY&PAINT

GOLETA  $        8,065.68 

M0051631 FG CC2826 DRUM-BLUE, 
LOS ANGELES 
TRUCK CENTERS, 
LLC

PASADENA  $        1,248.47 
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M0051632

SENSOR, KNOCK, SENSOR, 
OIL PRESSURE, SET, MAIN 
BEARING, BOLT, CYLINDER 
HEAD, INSULATION, WATER 
INLET TUBE, EGR COOLER, 
BELT, ALT, HOSE, EGR 
WATER PLUMBING, 90, 
ELBOW, PLAIN STREET PIPE, 
SENSOR, BREATHER FILTER 
PRESSURE, & SEAL, O-RING

CUMMINS PACIFIC 
LLC

VENTURA  $        6,623.90 

M0051633

TIRE - CUTAWAY REAR, CA 
RECYCLING FEE, TIRE - FORD 
TRANSIT & CA RECYCLING 
FEE

PARKHOUSE TIRE, 
INC.

BELL GARDENS  $           548.54 

M0051634 FILTER OIL
LOS ANGELES 
TRUCK CENTERS, 
LLC

PASADENA  $        1,448.39 

M0051635

REGULATOR, ALT, VALVE, 
SPRING BRAKE SR1, 
REGULATOR, ALT , & 
BRACKET GAS SPRING

GILLIG LLC LOS ANGELES  $        2,272.56 

M0051636
HUBODOMETER  525 REV, 
PUMP, W/S WASHER, DUST 
CAP, SMALL PROTECTIVE

THE 
AFTERMARKET 
PARTS COMPANY, 
LLC

MINNEAPOLIS  $           654.94 

M0051638 IGNITION COIL SCREW BOLT FRN of Tulsa,LLC
BROKEN 
ARROW

 $             25.55 

M0051639 IGNITION COIL SCREW BOLT
ENVISION VTA FD 
AUTO LLC

OXNARD  $               7.87 

M0051641 SENSOR, OXYGEN
CUMMINS PACIFIC 
LLC

VENTURA  $        1,718.91 

M0051643
DEVICE, AFTER CLEANING 
CATALYST

PURE EARTH 
SYSTEMS, INC.

NORTHRIDGE  $           400.00 

M0051645 HARDWARE KIMBALL MIDWEST COLUMBUS  $           857.87 

M0051646 HARDWARE KIMBALL MIDWEST COLUMBUS  $           879.88 

M0051647
LABOR, LABOR SEP 8TH & 
TRUCK CHARGE

GMH INC OXNARD  $        1,557.50 
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M0051648

SPARK PLUG, STARTER 
MOTOR-CUTAWAY, SA-1026 
STARTER CORE PO # 
M0051648, REAR BRAKE 
PADS- CUTAWAY, COIL - 
IGNITION, FUEL INJECTION 
THROTTLE BODY & MOTO, 
ELEMENT - AIR, ALTERNATOR 
ASSEMBLY 225 AMP

PARTS 
AUTHORITY LLC

VENTURA  $        1,866.28 

M0051649

VALVOLINE PREMIUM BLUE 
9200 15W-40, BATTERY, & 
BAGM48H6760 BATTERY 
CORE

GREG'S 
PETROLEUM 
SERVICE, INC

DELANO  $        3,332.93 

M0051652 PRESSURE CAP ASSM 16LB GILLIG LLC LOS ANGELES  $        6,824.63 

M0051653

BODY LABOR 4056, PAINT 
LABOR, PARTS, MATERIALS 
PAINT, MATERIALS BODY, & 
MISC HAZ WASTE / VOC

NATIONAL AUTO 
BODY&PAINT

GOLETA  $        2,150.00 

M0051654
SEAL, RECT RING, FILLER 
CAP, BELT, WATER PUMP, 
SPARK PLUG

LOS ANGELES 
TRUCK CENTERS, 
LLC

PASADENA  $        4,020.91 

M0051656
PARKING BRAKE SHOES, 
REAR

PARTS 
AUTHORITY LLC

VENTURA  $           165.30 

M0051657
BATTERY - INTERSTATE, CA 
BATTERY FEE

INTERSTATE 
BATTERIES

VENTURA  $        2,147.64 

M0051658
DV602- MOUNTING BRACKET, 
STSC201- HIGH MOUNTED 
1080P CAMERA

ROSCO, INC. JAMAICA  $           409.69 

M0051659

SAE OW-20 MOTOR OIL, 
STATE RECYCLING OIL 
GALLON, REGULATORY 
COMPLIANCE FEE, SAE 5W-
30 MOTOR OIL, & STATE 
RECYCLING OIL GALLON

GREG'S 
PETROLEUM 
SERVICE, INC

DELANO  $           527.25 
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M0051660

PRESSURE CAP ASSM 16 
LBS, COVER GASKET, HYD 
RESERVOIR, KIT, NOISE 
ISOLATOR, SENSOR KIT, 
BELT ASM, WHEELCHAIR, 
PLATE PIVOT, WINDSHIELD 
WIPER MOTOR, STREET SIDE 
FRONT, SPRING, TRANSOM 
LATCH RETURN, 
REGULATOR, ALT 
INDICATOR, AIR 
RESTRICTION, WIPER , 
MOTOR ASM, BRACKET, BIKE 
RACK MTG, BUMPER FRONT, 
PIN, SPRING, PLUG 
MAGNETIC SENSOR ASM, 
FILTER KIT, FUEL , WIPER 
BLADE REFLECTOR, RED 
RECTANGLE

GILLIG LLC LOS ANGELES  $        6,230.70 

M0051661 MOTOROLA MI C PMMN4090A
TELCOM 
COMMUNICATION

OXNARD  $           221.23 

M0051663
AUX14 BATTERY & CA 
BATTERY FEE

INTERSTATE 
BATTERIES

VENTURA  $           150.53 

M0051666

CALIBRATE AND TEST 
CARBON MONOXIDE 
SENSORS, & SERVICES- 
SYSTEM REPORT

INFINITY CNG 
SERVICES, INC.

PORTER 
RANCH

 $        1,175.00 

M0051667
KIT, ACTUATOR TURBO 
SERVICE, CORE-4030945

LOS ANGELES 
TRUCK CENTERS, 
LLC

PASADENA  $           654.00 

M0051668
SAE 5W-30 MOTOR OILCA 
RECYCLING FEE, & CA 
MOTOR OIL FEE

M.O.DION & SONS, 
INC.

LOS ANGELES  $           667.23 

M0051669 PARKING BRAKE PEDAL ASSY
ENVISION VTA FD 
AUTO LLC

OXNARD  $           570.37 

M0051670

PCV VALVE ASSEMBLY, 
SERPENTINE BELT  6-
GROOVE 136-INCH-
CUTAWAY, HEAD LAMP BULB 
(HALOGEN)

PARTS 
AUTHORITY LLC

VENTURA  $           684.51 

M0051671
REAR A/C COMPRESSOR-
CUTAWAY

VENTURA COUNTY 
AUTO SUPPLY

OXNARD  $           413.95 

M0051672

EXTERIOR DOOR HANDLE 
PAD (SLIDING DOOR), 
ENGINE MOUNT INSULATOR 
6.8L-LEFT, ENGINE MOUNT 
INSULATOR 6.8L-RIGHT

ENVISION VTA FD 
AUTO LLC

OXNARD  $           311.42 
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October Through November 2025

M0051673

SCREW, HEX FLANGE, HEAD 
CAP, GASKET, EXHAUST 
MANIFOLD, SEALING 
WASHER, M14, SCREW 
FRACTURE RESISTANT, BOLT 
CYLINDER HEAD

CUMMINS PACIFIC 
LLC

VENTURA  $           242.32 

M0051674

GLASS MNT 764-869 
ANTENNA,MINI UHF CRIMP, 
MOTOTRBO POWER 
CABLES,MB8U COAX CABLES

COMMUNICATION 
ENTERPRISES INC.

BAKERSFIELD  $        1,099.39 

M0051675 FILTER OIL,GASKET, OIL PAN
LOS ANGELES 
TRUCK CENTERS, 
LLC

PASADENA  $           702.44 

M0051676 SUPPLIES
SUPERIOR 
SANITARY 
SUPPLIES

OXNARD  $        1,507.84 

M0051678 WATER PUMP-CHRYSLER
PARTS 
AUTHORITY LLC

VENTURA  $           119.20 

M0051679
DRIVE BELT- CHRYSLER & 
WATER PUMP-CHRYSLER

FIRST CALL AUTO 
PARTS

SPRINGFIELD  $           181.03 

M0051680 OIL FILTER HOUSING KIT
VENTURA COUNTY 
AUTO SUPPLY

OXNARD  $           750.58 

M0051681 DETAIL SUPPLIES
THE DETAIL SHOP 
INC

OXNARD  $           824.72 

M0051684

VALVOLINE PREMIUM BLUE 
9200 15W-40, STATE 
RECYCLING OIL GAL, 
REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 
FEE, GEARLUBE 80W90 GL5 & 
STATE RECYCLING OIL GAL

GREG'S 
PETROLEUM 
SERVICE, INC

DELANO  $        2,360.97 

M0051685 SUPPLIES
SUPERIOR 
SANITARY 
SUPPLIES

OXNARD  $           629.88 

M0051686 SUPPLIES
SUPERIOR 
SANITARY 
SUPPLIES

OXNARD  $           503.90 

M0051690 SPARK PLUG-CHRYSLER
FIRST CALL AUTO 
PARTS

SPRINGFIELD  $             72.76 

M0051694
ALTERNATOR-MV 1 
&ALTERNATOR-MV 1- CORE

FIRST CALL AUTO 
PARTS

SPRINGFIELD  $           248.28 

113,039.38$     

101,651.57$     

136,280.11$     

Parts Total

Local (Ventura County)

Purchasing Total



Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

December 3, 2025 

Board of Directors 

Veronica Navarro, Finance and Grant Analyst 

Receive and File Quarterly Investment Report – 1st Quarter FY 2026 

Item #6

EXECTIVE SUMMARY 

Gold Coast Transit District 
Investment Income Report (July 1st – September 30th, 2025) 

Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD) reported a total investment income of $142,182.54 for the 
period July 1st to September 30th, 2025, reflecting interest, dividends, and other income 
earned across various investment accounts in accordance with GCTD’s Investment Policy, 
established in April 2024. 

Key Highlights 

1. Significant Investment Income Contributions

o The SB 125 Operating Fund generated the highest returns, earning

$104,175.18, accounting for 73% of total investment income. The SB 125 Capital

Fund yielded $15,264.63, also contributing 11% of the total income.

o Special Funds Capital Reserve contributed $16,009.38,
representing 9% of total income.

2. Consistent Growth Over the Period

o July 2025 recorded the highest monthly earnings, totaling $52,021.23.
o This strong performance was primarily driven by returns from the SB 125 Operating

Fund ($36,807.45) and the Special Funds Capital Reserve ($8,004.69).

3. Diversified Investment Performance
o The Money Market Account and LAIF Account provided stable yet modest

returns, contributing $784.30 and $1,232.31, respectively.
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Investment Policy Compliance & Outlook 

The investment performance aligns with GCTD’s Investment Policy objectives, 
emphasizing capital preservation, liquidity, and yield optimization. The strong returns 
from SB 125 funds indicate effective investment strategy implementation. 

The positive investment performance in Q1 positions the District well for the upcoming 
fiscal periods throughout the year, reinforcing financial stability and growth potential. 

General Manager’s Concurrence 

Vanessa Rauschenberger



GOLD COAST TRANSIT DISTRICT
Investment Income
July 1 - September 30, 2025

Money Market LAIF Special Funds COP Lease COP Project COP Reserve SB 125 SB 125 Total

Account Account Capital Reserve Payment Fund Fund Fund Capital Fund Operating Fund 
1010610001 1013000001 1410200001 1410111001 1410221001 1410112001 1010510003 1010500003

July 31, 2025 Interest, Dividends & Other Income 341.14$    -$   8,004.69$   569.73$    1,045.25$      25.70$     5,227.27$     36,807.45$     52,021.23$         
August 31, 2025 Interest, Dividends & Other Income 248.95   - 8,004.69 115.70   1,084.87   0.09   5,122.87   36,142.68   50,719.85   

September 30, 2025 Interest, Dividends & Other Income 194.21   1,232.31  - 116.05 1,088.10   671.25  4,914.49   31,225.05  39,441.46  

Total 784.30$    1,232.31$   16,009.38$    801.48$     3,218.22$     697.04$    15,264.63$    104,175.18$    142,182.54$     



DATE: December 3, 2025 Item #7

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Tanya Hawk 
Inventory/Asset Management Coordinator 

SUBJECT: Consider Award of Contract to Coastal Occupational Medical Group for 
Drug And Alcohol Analysis Services 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A competitive bid process for Drug and Alcohol Analysis Services began with the issuance of 
Request for Proposal (RFP) 25-08 on June 18, 2025, for Drug and Alcohol Analysis.  GCTD utilizes 
these services in order to comply with GCTD’s FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy, which incorporates 
mandated federal and state requirements. The RFP was publicized on our website, and on 
OpenGov, the e-procurement cloud software GCTD utilizes for procurements. Two (2) proposals 
were received. All proposals were evaluated and considered responsive.  An evaluation team 
independently evaluated and scored each proposal. At the conclusion of the evaluation process, 
Coastal Occupation Medical Group received the highest score overall.  Their proposal is considered 
fair and reasonable based on adequate competition.  

It is therefore recommended the Board of Directors authorize award of a contract to Coastal 
Occupational Medical Group (COMG) for Drug and Alcohol Analysis Services for a two-year 
base period with an option to extend to three one-year periods. The total not-to-exceed 
amount of $96,000 for the two-year base period and $48,000 for each of the three-option years, 
if exercised, for a grand total not-to-exceed $240,000. 

II. BACKGROUND

Staff began the competitive bid process with the issuance of Request for Proposal (RFP) 25-08 for 
Drug and Alcohol Analysis Services on June 18, 2025. The purpose of the RFP was to locate a 
qualified company that would perform Drug and Alcohol Analysis Services for Gold Coast Transit 
District.  The selected company would have to be familiar with GCTD’s Drug and Alcohol Policy, this 
would include testing on any GCTD employee, whether scheduled or random.  This policy ensures 
compliance with applicable federal regulations governing workplace anti-drug programs in the transit 
industry and is vital in order to maintain a safe, healthful and productive work environment for all 
employees and general public.  

These services must be provided 365 days per year (except for six holidays a year), 7 days a week 
from operating hours 3:30 am to 1:00 am.  GCTD currently has 194 safety sensitive employees and 
37 non-safety sensitive employees.  

GCTD will need DOT and Non-DOT occupational medical services including pre-employment 
physicals, job functions analysis, and a complete range of alcohol and drug testing services. 
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Services include return to duty, reasonable suspicion, wellness and random and post-accident 
testing.  Provider must be Certified Medical Review Officer (MRO) and must be registered with 
National Registry of Certified Medical. 

The RFP was publicized on our website, and OpenGov, where thirteen (13) companies were 
notified and downloaded the RFP. Two (2) of those submitted a proposal. 

The RFP required each company to submit general background, qualifications and experience and 
records of past experience, references and information regarding companies’ integrity 

The following companies submitted a response by July 23,2025 deadline: 

• Coastal Occupational Medical Group (COMG)

• Statcare Urgent & Walk-in Medical Care

All responses were evaluated and considered to be responsive.  The regulations require selection 
of the “most highly qualified” company without consideration of price.  An evaluation committee 
consisting of four (4) GCTD employees (Alex Zaretsky, Christine Feng, Ana Prez and Chiharu 
Endo-Lee) evaluated the two (2) submissions.  Separately, each committee member evaluated 
and scored the submissions using the evaluation criteria identified in the RFP and listed below in 
their relative order of importance: 

• Qualifications and Experience (worth 40 points)

• Records of Past Experience (worth 30 points)

• Cost (worth 30 points)

COMG received the highest score overall among all four (4) evaluators and because of this and 
the fact COMG is the incumbent, staff determined that interviews were not necessary and 
concluded the evaluation process, GCTD confirmed that COMG was not listed in the excluded 
parties’ list system, nor are there any complaints filed with the Better Business Bureau.  COMG 
has provided excellent services for many years, while under contract with GCTD and staff has 
no issues with continuing this partnership.  As a result, COMG was determined to be a 
responsive, responsible firm capable of meeting GCTD’s requirements. 

A price analysis was conducted on COMG’s proposed rates.  The following are the proposed rates 
per service for GCTD’S Drug and Alcohol Analysis that were submitted by the two (2) companies 
for a two (2) year base period.    

COMG STATCARE 

Description Rates Rates 

Pre-Employment (Yearly Testing Approximately) $120.00 $115.00 

Post-Accident (Yearly Testing Approximately) $120.00 $115.00 

Randoms (Monthly Testing Approximately 8-14) $120.00 $115.00 

Reasonable Suspicion (Yearly Testing Approximately 1-2) $120.00 $115.00 

Return to Duty (Yearly Testing Approximately 1-6) $120.00 $115.00 

PHYDOT/FTA Medical Examinations (License Renewals) (Yearly Testing 
Approximately) $120.00 $155.00 

PHY: Physical Examination - Pre-Placement Job function analysis (Job function 
analysis on file) (Yearly Testing Approximately 10-15) $100.00 $250.00 



Consider Award of Contract for Drug and Alcohol Services      December 3, 2025 
Page 3 of 3 

Return to Work Medical History (employee long term leave) (Yearly Testing 
Approximately 10-15) $85.00 $250.00 

Medical Re-certifications (Yearly Testing Approximately) $120.00 $155.00 

NON- DOT Pre-Employment (All other employees non-Safety Sensitive) (See Scope of 
Work) (Yearly Testing Approximately 1-6) $75.00 $365.00 

NON- DOT Pre Employment Drug and Alcohol Testing (Completed at initial WC exam) 
(See Scope of Work) (Yearly Testing Approximately 1-10) $95.00 $115.00 

PHY: Physical Examination - Pre-Placement Job function analysis on file (Yearly 
Testing Approximately 1-5) $100.00 $250.00 

Return to Work Phys/History (employee long term leave) (Yearly Testing Approximately 
1-10) $85.00 $250.00 

Industrial Injury (Scope of Work) (Yearly Testing Approximately 1-4) 
Per WC Fee 

Schedule $300.00 

Employee Wellness Programs (Scope of Work) (Safety Sensitive) 

No cost 
when 

conducted 
during 
onsite 

health fair $250.00 

Prescription Drug and over the counter Medication review (Monthly Testing 
Approximately 1-5) 

Per WC Fee 
Schedule $250.00 

Sleep Apnea Testing (As needed) (Monthly Testing Approximately 1-5) (Yearly Testing 
Approximately 1-4) 

Refer to 
PCP $300.00 

Hepatitis B Vaccination (only requested by employees) (Monthly Testing Approximately 
1-5) $110.00 $220.00 

Influenza Virus Vaccine (See  Scope of Work) 
(Yearly Testing Approximately 90-100) $40.00 $75.00 

COMG rates overall are lower than Statcare’s.  Also, COMG current contract rates are $35-$110 
depending on the service they provide to our agency, therefore, their proposed rates have not 
increase much from current rates. Based on the rates submitted by all companies and experience 
and knowledge of members of the Selection Committee, COMG’s rates are determined to be fair 
and reasonable and in line with those generally charged in this area for services similar to those 
being bid in the company’s proposal. Therefore, COMG’s is determined to be a responsive, 
responsible company capable of meeting GCTD’s requirements. 

III. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider approving the award of a contract 
to Coastal Occupational Medical Group (COMG) for Drug and Alcohol Analysis Services 
for a two-year base period with an option to extend to three one-year periods. The total 
not-to-exceed amount of $96,000 for the two-year base period and $48,000 for each of the 
three-option years, if exercised, for a grand total not-to-exceed $240,000 over five-years. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S CONCURRENCE 

Vanessa Rauschenberger 
General Manager  
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TO 

FROM 

SUBJECT 

Item #8
December 3, 2025 

GCTD Board of Directors 

Alex Zaretsky, Director of Human Resources 

Annual Recertification Gold Coast Transit District’s Public Transportation 
Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) Resolution No. # 2025-05 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY  

Last year, Gold Coast Transit District’s Board of Directors recertified the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) required Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP).  

In accordance with the Public Transportation Agency Plan (PTASP) the Final Rule requires all 
agencies that receive FTA’s Urbanized Area Formula Grants to set safety performance targets in 
a Safety Plan that is reviewed and recertified every year. 

This report provides a report on safety performance data and benchmarks from the last year, 
and it is recommended that the Board Consider Recertification of the PTASP safety targets, with 
no changes from the targets established last year. 

The Safety Performance Measures with definitions and specific subcategories: 
The data compares the safety targets from last year to this year's actuals by fiscal year. 

1. Major Events-Safety Events: total number of reportable events /and rate per total vehicle
revenue miles. This includes all safety and security / major events as defined by the NTD, any
accident, incident or occurrences, e.g., collisions, fires (suppressions), hazardous material
spills, pedestrian collisions and vehicle collisions, other safety events other than immediate
transport on medical attention.

2. Fatalities: total number of reportable fatalities / and rate per total vehicle revenue miles. A
death due to a collision, fire, hazardous material spill, acts of god, or transit worker fatality.

3. Injuries: total number of reportable injuries /and rate per total vehicle revenue miles).
Any damage or harm to persons that require immediate medical attention away from the
scene. Transit Worker Injury Rate / VRM ,  Assaults on Transit Workers /  VRM.

4. System Reliability: Major mechanical system failures, e.g., breakdown of brakes, engine
cooling. The mean distance between major mechanical failures.
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Recertification of GCTD’s Safety Targets for FY 2026 (no changes recommended at this time) 

Safety Performance Targets 

Specify performance targets based on the safety performance measures established under the National 

Public Transportation Safety Plan. 

Mode of Transit 
Service 

Fatalities Injuries 
Major 
Safety 
Events 

System 
Reliability 
/Failures 

per 100k VRM 

Fatalities 
Rate 

per 100 k 
VRM 

Injuries 
Rate 

per 100k 
VRM 

Safety 
Events Rate 

 per 100k 
VRM 

Fixed Route 0 4 10 27,160 0 .27 .22 

Demand Response 0 1 2 51,439 0 .32 .22 

Actual Data from July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025 (the subcategories are included): 

The data from the actual events are compared to last fiscal year and to the performance targets, 
show an overall decrease in safety reportable events. The decrease is suitable for GCTD and is 
primarily based on high focus on value-added safety training.  One target area that was not met 
was system reliability due to aging fleet vehicles.  It is anticipated these issues will improve as the 
new bus replacements are placed into service. 

1. Major Events / Collisions: The total number of reportable events and the rate per total vehicle
revenue miles. In this category, GCTD achieved its goal of being below the performance target
(bus accidents), with just two major events on the fixed route and one on-demand response.
Well below our target of ten and two, respectively.

Mode of Transit Service 
Major 

Events 

Major 
Events / 

VRM 

Collision 
Rate / 
VRM 

Pedestrian 
Collision / 

VRM 

Vehicle’s 
Collision / 

VRM 

Fixed Route 2 .10 .10 0 .10 

Demand Response 1 .12 .12 0 .12 

Targets Fixed 10 .22 0 0 0 

Targets DR 2 .22 0 0 0 

2. Fatalities: Total number of reportable fatalities / and rate per total vehicle revenue miles. In
this category, GCTD recorded zero fatalities, consistently meeting the target.

Mode of Transit Service Fatalities 
Fatality 

VRM 

Fatality 
Transit 
Worker 

Fatality Transit 
Worker / VRM 

Fixed Route 0 0 0 0 

Demand Response 0 0 0 0 

Targets Fixed 0 0 0 0 

Targets DR 0 0 0 0 
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3. Injuries / Transit Workers: Total number of reportable injuries /and rate per total vehicle
revenue miles).  For this category, GCTD reported three verbal assaults to our operators, with
no physical assaults. One employee was transported by ambulance from an accident. GCTD
achieved its goal of being below the performance target.

Mode of Transit 
Service 

Injuries 
Injury Rate 

VRM 

Transit 
Worker 

Injury / VRM 

Assault on 
Transit 

Workers 

Assault on 
Transit 

Workers / 
VRM 

Fixed Route 3 .16 0 3 .16 

Demand Response 1 .12 0 0 0 

Targets Fixed 4 .27 0 0 0 

Targets DR 1 .32 0 0 0 

4. System Reliability: Mean distance between major mechanical failures.  In this category, GCTD
did not meet the performance targets, mainly due to an aging fleet, repairs to demand-
response vehicles, catalytic converter issues, and farebox breakdowns. GCTD is working at
replacing its aging fleet with a newer fleet to address these issues.

Mode of Transit Service System Reliability VRM /Failures 

Fixed Route 18,255 

Demand Response 31,121 

Targets Fixed 27,160 

Targets DR 51,439 

Database Collection (PTASP Documentation) 

GCTD uses Track-it Manager, a transit-specific software database, to assist in PTASP 
documentation. All PTASP records are in a single, easy-to-search cloud platform. Reports on 
Accident Management, Hazard, and Incident Tracking are easy to complete. All pertinent 
information related to a report, whether it is an accident or a safety hazard, is readily available. 
The database is populated by Transit Supervisors and the Safety and Training Supervisors and 
reviewed by the safety committee and the PTASP staff, and then reported to the NTD (National 
Transit Database).  

Safety and Security Review Committee (SRC) 

The SRC comprises senior and management personnel, or their designees, and frontline 
employees. The SRC discusses ongoing safety and security concerns; it meets quarterly to 
review current concerns, identify root causes, and, with the team and the agency’s executive 
leadership, resolve and approve mitigation measures.  



December 3, 2025 
PTASP Annual Certification 
Page 4 of 5 

Plan Updates Made 

Each transit agency (entity) must review its program and policy for the annual recertification. 

Last year, a full policy update was completed and approved by the Board.  

This year, the only changes made to the PTASP Policy and Injury and Illness Prevention Policy 
were updating the Organizational Chart. Both policies are otherwise compliant with no changes 
required. 

RECOMMENDATION 

This report has the following action items for the Board of Directors. 

Consider approval of Resolution 2025-05 GCTD’s annual recertification of the PTASP targets 
(no changes to targets) and receive and file safety performance data. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S CONCURRENCE 

Vanessa Rauschenberger 
General Manager 
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RESOLUTION No. 2025-05 
Annual Re-Certification 

Gold Coast Transit District  
Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan 

WHEREAS, Gold Coast Transit District had in effect a Resolution providing Gold Coast Transit 
District with a Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan on June 3, 2020, Resolution 2020-04,  
and the Annual Recertifications, 2021-06, 2022-11, 2023-08, 2024-10 

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2018, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) published the Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) Final Rule, which requires certain operators of public 
transportation systems that receive federal funds under FTA's Urbanized Area Formula Grants to 
develop safety plans that include the processes and procedures to implement Safety 
Management Systems (SMS).   

WHEREAS, the rule applies to all operators of public transportation systems that are recipients 
and sub-recipients of federal financial assistance under the Urbanized Area Formula Program (49 
U.S.C. § 5307). The plan must include safety performance targets. Transit operators must also 
certify that they have a safety plan in place that meets the rule's requirements by December 31, 
2020. The certification must be updated and approved by the transit agency annually. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, on December 3, 2025, at the Board of Directors 
meeting, Gold Coast Transit District’s Accountable Executive Vanessa Rauschenberger, along 
with the Board of Directors and Chair for GCTD, approve for recertification the District’s Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan, the data, and Safety Management System Plan (SMS). 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED RESOLUTION -No. 2020-04, on the 3rd day of June 2020. / Version: 1.0 
APPROVED AND RECERTIFIED -No. 2021-06, on the 1st Day of September 2021. / Version: 2.0 
APPROVED AND RECERTIFIED -No. 2022-11, on the 7th Day of December 2022. / Version: 3.0 
APPROVED AND RECERTIFIED -No. 2023-08, on the 4th Day of October 2023. / Version: 4.0 
APPROVED AND RECERTIFIED -No. 2024-10 on the 6th Day of November 2024. / Version: 5.0 
APPROVED AND RECERTIFIED -No. 2025-05 on the 3rd Day of December 2025. / Version: 60 

CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR GOLD COAST TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Martha McQueen-Legohn, Chair of the Board of Directors 

ATTEST: I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2025-05 was duly approved by the Board of 
Directors of Gold Coast Transit District at a regular meeting held on the 3rd day of December 2025. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S CONCURRENCE 

Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2018-07-19/pdf/2018-15167.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2018-07-19/pdf/2018-15167.pdf
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grants/urbanized-area-formula-grants-5307


Item #9 DATE 

TO 

FROM 

December 3, 2025

GCTD Board of Directors

Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 

SUBJECT Consider Approval of Board of Directors Meeting Schedule for 2026 

1. Executive Summary

Regular meetings of the Gold Coast Transit District Board of Directors are held at 10:00 AM on 
the first Wednesday of each month. These meetings are held in person at GCTD's 
Administration Office at 1901 Auto Center Drive, in Oxnard, CA.  A remote option (hybrid) 
meeting is also available to the public and the Board in cases permitted under state law.

The Board meeting schedule has been amended in the past to accommodate holidays, 
and special events such as the California League of Cities Annual Meeting,  American 
Public Transportation Association (APTA) conferences and other industry conferences.

• CalAct Spring Conference  - April 13 - 16, 2026, Pechanga Resort, Temecula - no conflict
• SCAG Regional Conference - May 7-8, 2026, Palm Desert, CA - no conflict
• APTA TRANSform Conference - October 4 - 7, 2026 in Chicago, IL - conflict
• California Transit Association Annual Conference - October 28 - 30, 2026 in Monterey, CA - no conflict
• League of CA Cities Conference - November 16 - 18, 2026 in San Francisco, CA -  no conflict

Please review the dates below and let me know if any adjustments to the 
proposed Board of Directors Meeting Schedule for 2026 as listed below are needed. 

May 6
June 3
July 1 
August – Dark 

September 2
October 7 - tentative 
November 4 
December 2 
January 6, 2027 

2. Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider, amend if necessary, and approve 
the proposed monthly Board meeting schedule for calendar year 2026. 

January 7
February 4
March 4
April 1 



Item #10
DATE 

TO 

FROM 

December 3, 2025

GCTD Board of Directors  

Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager 

SUBJECT Consider Election of Board Officers for 2026 

1. Executive Summary

Annually the Board of Directors elects a Chair and Vice Chair as defined in Section 1.1(a) of the 
District Bylaws.  The Bylaws dictate that the election is to be held at the first meeting in 
December of each calendar year, with the new Chair and Vice Chair taking their positions at the first 
meeting in January of the following year. 

2. Background

The Board officers for the past five(5) years are listed below: 

2021 – Chair Randy Haney, City of Ojai – Vice Chair Bryan MacDonald, City of Oxnard
2022 – Chair Bryan MacDonald, City of Oxnard – Vice Chair Matt LaVere, County of Ventura 
2023 – Chair Matt LaVere, County of Ventura – Vice Chair Mike Johnson, City of Ventura 
2024 – Chair Mike Johnson, City of Ventura - Vice Chair Martha McQueen-Legohn, City of Port Hueneme
2025 – Chair Martha Mc-Queen-Legohn, City of Port Hueneme - Vice Chair Rachel Lang, City of Ojai

3. Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Directors elect from its members a Chair and Vice Chair for 
calendar year 2026. 



Item #11 
DATE December 3, 2025 

TO GCTD Board of Directors 

FROM Marlena Kohler, Purchasing Manager/DBE Officer

SUBJECT Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Purchase Eight (8) Low Floor CNG 
Replacement Buses from Gillig LLC  

________________________________________________________________________ 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

It is recommended that GCTD award a contract to Gillig, LLC for the purchase of eight
(8) Low Floor CNG Replacement Buses. GCTD fixed route fleet currently has eight (8)
2009 NABI buses that exceed their respective Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
minimum useful life expectancy, which is 12 years.  The average mileage of these nine
buses is 575,000.

The cost for each of the new Gillig buses is approximately $895,135 for the 35 ft and 
$901,737 for the 40ft.  GCTD plans to purchase six (6) 35-foot buses for a total cost of 
$5,370,810 and two (2) 40-foot buses for a total cost of $1,803,474.  The total cost for all 
eight (8) buses would be $7,174,284 with the additional 5% for each bus 
($44,756/$45,086) to cover minimal specification adjustments for a grand total of 
$7,532,998. Price includes tax, license and registration fees. 

II. BACKGROUND

In September 2024, the Board of Directors approved the purchase of nine (9) 40 ft CNG
Gillig buses.  At that time, GCTD staff conducted research with bus manufacturers to
locate possible CNG bus options that would be available to GCTD for assignment.  One
was located, Washington State (WSDOT) Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, which
had options available that could meet our requirements. The cooperative still has options
available to purchase this type of bus.

Almost immediately after purchasing last year’s Gillig, staff requested another quote from
Gillig for eight (8) buses. After working out configuration changes, a quote for 35 ft and 40 ft
buses was received on November 21, 2025. The price for each 35 ft bus was quoted at
$895,135 and for the 40 ft was $901,737. The configuration for these eight (8) buses is very
similar to the September nine (9), the price for each of those 40 ft buses was $762,688, which
is an approximate 22% increase from prior order.  The current tariff situation has had a severe
impact on the cost of bus purchases throughout the bus manufacturing industry. Based on
this and WSDOT’s RFP process, staff have determined that Gillig’s quote is fair and
reasonable.
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A majority of this purchase will be funded by a Federal Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality (CMAQ) grant with the remaining balance funded with State and Local Funds. 

The information regarding the WSDOT Cooperative obtained prior to September’s board 
approval is still valid.  In April 2021, Washington State awarded a five (5) year contract to 
Gillig LLC for the provision of transit buses/coaches including all related integral and/or 
peripheral equipment, products, component parts, materials, and supplies (collectively 
termed Equipment or Products), together with related warranty, maintenance and repair, 
or other services (collectively termed Services) necessary to provide and maintain 
products in accordance with the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) technical 
specification and operational performance standards, pursuant to the State of 
Washington’s Request For Proposal #06719, dated March 4,2020 (the RFP) and the 
Contractor's proposal, dated August 22, 2024, in response.   

WSDOT Cooperative Agreement met all FTA requirements and in accordance with the 
awarded WSDOT Cooperative Agreement’s process. Staff verified that our final file included 
documentation substantiating our determination. Such documents included a copy of the 
solicitation, contract, Buy America, pre-award or Post Delivery audits, and 
request/authorization documents.  Staff was able to download all necessary documentation 
from the WSDOT’s website.    

The determination to purchase the buses from Gillig using WSDOT competitively awarded 
Cooperative Agreement is still accurate. 

As with the prior purchase, GCTD staff submitted a Purchase Request to WSDOT for the 
purchase of the eight (8) buses.  As of the date of this board report, the official approval has 
not been received.  Staff see no reason the approval will not be obtained since at the time of 
the prior purchase, staff were notified there were still several options available.  However, 
staff will not move forward with the issuance of a purchase order without official approval 
from WSDOT.  

To complete GCTD’s procurement process, a responsibility determination was then 
conducted on Gillig.  The System for Award Management (SAM) was checked for this 
contractor and no results were found, nor were there any complaints filed with the Better 
Business Bureau (BBB). Beginning in 2014, GCTD has ordered over thirty (30) Gillig buses 
with basically the same configuration.  Maintenance staff has not had any major issues with 
any of the buses received.  Therefore, Gillig is considered to be a responsive and 
responsible firm capable of meeting GCTD’s requirements.  

Additionally, staff are requesting approval to dispose of the five (5) of the eight (8) 2009 
NABI buses, that are to be replaced by the purchase of these eight (8) Gillig buses by 
selling them to the highest bidder through JJ Kane Auctions (formerly known as Ken 
Porter’s Auctions).  The other three (3) will be used as contingency buses but may at a 
later date be sent to JJ Kane for auction. 

III. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to
purchase six (6) 35-foot and two (2) 40-foot Low Floor CNG Replacement Buses
from Gillig, LLC in the amount of $895,135 and $901,737 per bus respectively for a
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total cost of all eight (8) buses of $7,174,284 and authorize up to an additional 5% 
for each bus ($44,756/$45,086) to cover minimal specification adjustments for a 
grand total of $7,532,988.  

 
 
General Manager’s Concurrence 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Vanessa Rauschenberger 



Item # 12 

Date:   December 3, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Christine Feng, CFO & Assistant General Manager 

Subject: Consider Acceptance of GCTD FY 2025 Audited Financial Reports – 
  Presented by Roger Martinez, Partner, Vasquez CPA firm. 

EXECTIVE SUMMARY 

The Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD) has contracted with Vasquez CPA firm to audit its 
FY 2025 Financial Reports. 

Roger Martinez, Partner of Vasquez CPA Firm, will present FY 2025 Audited Financial 
Statements to the Board for its consideration and acceptance.  

The management of the Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD) offers all parties interested in the 
financial position of the District with this narrative overview and analysis of the District’s financial 
performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The Hard copy of Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Reports ( ACFR) will be provided to Board in the future Board meeting. The electronic 
version of ACFR will be available on the GCTD website. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board accept the FY 2025 Audited Annual Financial 
Report as presented by Roger Martinez, Partner, Vasquez CPA Firm. 

General Manager’s Concurrence 

Vanessa Rauschenberger 
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TO BE UPDATED BY THE DISTRICT 

November X, 2025 
Letter of Transmittal 
Gold Coast Transit District  
Oxnard, CA 
 
Members of the Board and Community: 
 
We are pleased to present GCTD’s FY 2025 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. The State of 
California requires the Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD) to prepare annual financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The financial statements are then 
audited by independent certified public accountants.  
 
The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is designed to provide a complete financial picture of the 
District and includes the independent auditors’ report, a management discussion, the audited financial 
statements as well as supplementary information including budget results and statistical information. 
The preparation of this report was made possible by GCTD’s Finance Department staff, led by 
Christine Feng, Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager, who leads the team to improve 
and streamline our processes. Readers desiring an analytical overview of the basic financial 
statements or the District’s financial activities may refer to the Management's Discussion and Analysis 
in the Financial Section. 
 
Management assumes sole responsibility for the information contained in this report, including its 
presentation and the adequacy of its disclosures. To the best of our knowledge, this report is complete 
and reliable in all material respects. To provide a reasonable basis for making this representation, we 
have established a comprehensive system of internal controls designed to protect the District's assets 
from loss, to identify and record transactions accurately and to compile the necessary information to 
produce financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed the likely benefits, the District’s internal control 
system intends to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.  
 
To test the performance of the internal control system, the District contracted independent auditing 
services from Vasquez + Company LLP, a certified public accounting firm licensed to practice in the 
State of California. The auditor expressed an opinion that the District’s financial statements are fairly 
stated in all material respects and in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. This conclusion is the most favorable kind and is commonly known as an “unmodified” 
or “clean” opinion. 
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Some noteworthy highlights during FY 2025 include: 
 
Integration of Paratransit into GCTD Facility 
In FY 2025, GCTD successfully completed its first nine months of directly operated paratransit service 
from its Operations and Maintenance Facility. In January 2024, the Board of Directors authorized staff 
to proceed with transitioning paratransit operations in-house to achieve fiscal savings, streamline 
processes, and fully utilize existing facility resources. Over the following months, staff across all 
divisions worked diligently to prepare for the transition, including recruitment, training, and system 
integration. On September 29, 2024, GCTD officially launched direct operations, welcoming 40 new 
demand-response employees to the District. In October 2025, staff presented a year-end update to 
the Board, reporting projected first-year savings of more than $700,000, primarily from reduced 
overhead, administrative, and facility costs. This successful transition represented a multi-disciplinary 
effort involving collaboration among Human Resources, Operations, Maintenance, Planning, Finance, 
and IT, and has strengthened GCTD’s ability to manage service quality and resources more effectively. 
 
Ridership Growth 
In FY 2025, GCTD remained focused on its core mission of providing safe, reliable, and accessible public 
transportation, delivering more than 3.7 million passenger trips throughout western Ventura County on both 
fixed-route and flexible services. GCTD concluded the fiscal year with a 1.2% increase in total ridership 
compared to the previous year. This growth was supported in part by the Ventura County Youth Ride Free 
Program, launched in 2022, which provides unlimited free rides to youth ages 18 and under, as well as 
older students currently enrolled in high school. The program, funded through California’s Cap-and-Invest 
program, continues to encourage youth mobility while contributing to systemwide ridership recovery. 
 
Safe Rides Program 
GCTD continued operation of its successful Safe Rides program, which includes both the Late Night Safe 
Rides and Sunrise Safe Rides services. The program provides early morning demand-response 
transportation from 4:30 a.m. to 7:00 a.m., as well as late-night service during hours when traditional transit 
options are unavailable. The rebranding to Safe Rides: Morning and Night Transportation reflects this 
expanded service window and unified identity.  Since its launch, the program has experienced steady 
ridership growth, serving primarily riders traveling to early-morning medical appointments—including 
dialysis treatments—and workers commuting to early shifts. The program continues to be fully grant-funded. 
 
GO Now Microtransit Pilot 
GCTD’s pilot Microtransit service, GO Now, concluded its final year of operation in FY 2025. Throughout 
the pilot period, staff gained valuable insights into the potential and limitations of flexible, on-demand transit 
models within GCTD’s service area. However, several factors - including lower than expected ridership and 
productivity - indicated that the service was not sustainable for long-term operation.  The cost per passenger 
trip for Microtransit was found to be significantly higher than that of fixed-route bus services, including routes 
with lower performance. Based on this analysis, staff recommended discontinuing the service at the 
conclusion of the grant period. The GCTD Board of Directors authorized the end of the GO Now service 
effective October 2025. 
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Fuling Partnership with City of Oxnard Continues 
GCTD took a creative approach to leveraged it resources to generate more revenue in support of its 
services.  With FTA approval to utilize the GCTD facility for incidental use, GCTD entered into an agreement 
with the City of Oxnard to fuel their fleet of CNG refuse vehicles.  In the absence of a city-owned CNG 
fueling station, GCTD identified this as an opportunity to support the city’s clean approach to waste 
management and generate additional revenue for our District.  To date, this has been a successful 
partnership that has been mutually beneficial for both parties.  
 
Zero Emissions Transition Planning 
In October 2023, issued an RFP for the design, build and maintenance of a Hydrogen Fuel Station. The 
station will be funded by an FTA Low or No Emissions grant aimed at supporting the District’s and California 
Air Resources Board goal of transitioning transit fleets to zero emissions by 2040. Over the last year, staff 
has meet weekly to plan for this historic project and prepare accordingly.  The GCTD Board of Directors 
approved an award for the Build, Design, and Maintenance Services to Clean Energy in the amount of 
$10,867,479, as of October 2025 staff have been meeting weekly on the design and planning of the station. 
 
I want to recognize the incredible work and outstanding accomplishments here at GCTD, made possible by 
our dedicated employees and the support of our Board of Directors and community partners. We look 
forward to new opportunities that will continue to make GCTD an even better place to work and, more 
importantly, guarantee the safe and efficient delivery of our mission – one ride at a time.  
  
 
Sincerely,  

 
_____________________ 
Vanessa Rauschenberger                                              Christine Feng                                  
General Manager                                                                Chief Financial Officer/ Assistant General Manager 
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Gold Coast Transit District 

 
Organizational Information 

 
 
About Us 
 
Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD) provides public fixed-route and paratransit service in the cities of 
Ojai, Oxnard, Port Hueneme, and San Buenaventura, and the unincorporated areas of Ventura 
County. With 3.7 million passenger trips provided in FY 2025, GCTD is the largest public transportation 
operator in Ventura County. The fleet includes 61 buses, all powered by clean natural gas supplied by 
an on-site CNG fueling station and 28 paratransit vehicles with 80% powered by natural gas. 
 
Our Mission 
 
GCTD's mission is to provide safe, responsive, convenient, efficient, and environmentally responsible 
public transportation that serves the diverse needs of our community. 
 
History 
 
GCTD was founded in 1973 (originally named "South Coast Area Transit") when the cities of Ojai, 
Oxnard, Port Hueneme, and San Buenaventura executed a Joint Powers Agreement that created 
"SCAT" to develop and operate local and intercity public transportation in western Ventura County. 
 
Prior to 1973, Ventura Transit City Lines operated local service in San Buenaventura and Ojai, and 
Oxnard Municipal Bus Lines served Oxnard and Port Hueneme. Following a national trend, the bus 
systems that flourished through the mid-century began to decline in the 1960's. The outlook for public 
transit systems in California brightened in 1971 when the State Legislature created a source of 
dedicated transportation funding through passage of the Transportation Development Act (TDA). The 
availability of TDA funds to local governments provided an impetus for forming a single regional transit 
entity to operate coordinated transit services across municipal boundaries and in some unincorporated 
areas of western Ventura County. The County of Ventura joined SCAT in October of 1977. By February 
of 1980 the transit functions in western Ventura County were consolidated into a single administrative, 
operating and maintenance facility on a three-acre site at 301 East Third Street in Downtown Oxnard. 
 
In the 1990's, SCAT began operation of ACCESS, a regional paratransit service providing curb-to-
curb transportation for people with disabilities and senior citizens. 
 
In June 2007, SCAT's Joint Powers Agreement was amended to rename the District from South Coast 
Area Transit to Gold Coast Transit. The change in name was intended to help distinguish the District 
from the 11 other agencies named SCAT around the nation and to better connect the service to the 
community it served. 
 
In October 2013, Governor Brown signed into law Assembly Bill (AB) 664, which formed the Gold 
Coast Transit District. The district legislation was initiated in response to Senate Bill (SB) 716, which 
required that all TDA funds in Ventura County be used solely for public transit purposes. Formation of 
a transit district allows GCTD’s Board of Directors and staff to have greater flexibility in implementing 
service improvements by looking beyond jurisdictional borders in order to meet the public’s transit 
needs efficiently and effectively. 
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In 2014, GCTD was named Small Agency of the Year by the California Transit Association. In 2015, 
GCTD unveiled a new logo and bus paint scheme to coincide with the purchase of replacement buses. 
The new colors reflect GCTD’s commitment to quality public transportation, and evokes the District’s 
vision of a more modern, clean, and efficient future. 
 
In 2019, the District opened the new 15-acre Administration and Operations Facility at 1901 Auto 
Center Drive in Oxnard that will allow GCTD to better meet the growing transit needs of the community. 
 
In 2020, the District responded to the global COVID 19 Pandemic, maintained service and 
implemented safety measures to keep passengers and employees safe. 
 
In 2023, the District celebrated its 50th anniversary. 
 
In July 2024, the District implemented a fare increase for the first time in over a decade, and in a 
historic move, transitioned its Paratransit and Flexible Services from a contract model, to directly 
operated, adding over 40 new employees to the District. 
 
Statistics  
 
Service Area: Cities of Ojai, Oxnard, Port Hueneme, and San Buenaventura (Ventura) as well as the 
County of Ventura  
 
Population Served: 431,114  
 
Total System Annual Passengers: (FY 2025) 3.7 million  

• 61 - fixed-route buses  
• 28 - paratransit buses and vans  

 
Fuel Type: 100% Natural Gas for Fixed-Route, and 80% Natural Gas for Demand Response. 
 
Board of Directors  
 
GCTD is governed by a Board of Directors. Each of GCTD's five-member agencies appoint one 
elected official from its governing body to serve on the Board of Directors and a second to serve as 
an alternate member. The Board of Director’s regular monthly meetings are held on the first 
Wednesday of each month at 10:00 a.m. 
 
GCTD's Leadership 
 
GCTD’s General Manager is appointed by, and reports to, the Board of Directors (Board). The General 
Manager is charged with carrying out the Board’s policies and directives and has full charge of the 
operation of GCTD’s services, facilities, and administration of business affairs. GCTD's Management 
Team for FY 2025 was comprised of: 
 
• General Manager - Vanessa Rauschenberger  
• Chief Financial Officer / Assistant General Manager – Christine Feng  
• Director of Operations & Maintenance – James Beck  
• Director of Planning & Marketing – Cynthia Torres-Duque  
• Director of Human Resources – Alex Zaretsky  
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Employees 
 
GCTD has 249 employees, the majority of whom operate or maintain buses. Service Employees 
International Union Local 721 represents all bus operators, most maintenance employees, and five 
administrative staff members. International Brotherhood of Teamsters Local 186 represents all 
supervisors. Paratransit. In January 2024, the Board authorized staff to move forward with integration 
of GCTD paratransit services into GCTD's facility to be directly operated at the conclusion of the 
current contract with MV Transportation ending September 2024. On October 1, 2024, GCTD staff 
completed the transition, onboarding over 40 employees — most of whom were former contractor 
staff. This move supported the District’s goals of maximizing use of its facility, streamlining operations, 
and reducing overall program costs. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Gold Coast Transit District 
Oxnard, California 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Gold Coast Transit District (District), which comprise 
the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2025, and related statements of revenue, expenses, and 
changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the District as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in its 
financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Notes 1 and 6, the District implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2025. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 have been restated to 
reflect the impact of the new standard. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including 
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there 
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 
 
• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 
• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 

that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related 
Ratios, Schedule of Contributions – Pension Plan, Schedule of Changes in the Net Other 
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability and Related Ratios be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as a whole. The Schedules of Changes 
in Local Transportation Funding of the District is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
 
Other Information  
 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not 
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and 
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other 
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.   
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information  
 
The financial statements of the District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, were audited by 
other auditors, whose report, dated November 6, 2024, expressed an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented with the basic 
financial statements herein, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, is consistent in all material 
aspects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate report dated 
November _, 2025, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 
Glendale, California 
November _, 2025 
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance 
of Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD, or the District) introduces the basic financial statements of GCTD 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. We encourage readers to consider the information presented 
here, the transmittal letter in the Introductory Section, and the statements and related notes in the 
Financial Section. 
 
OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHTS  
 
GCTD provides bus and paratransit services in Ojai, Oxnard, Port Hueneme, Ventura, and 
unincorporated Ventura County. The service area is approximately 91 square miles, with a population 
of approximately 431,114. 
 
GCTD owns 89 revenue vehicles, primarily fueled with clean-burning compressed natural gas (CNG) 
from GCTD's fueling station. In FY 2025, GCTD vehicles carried approximately 3.7 million passengers 
while traveling over 2.8 million miles in revenue service. 
 
GCTD operates a fleet of 61 fixed-route buses. In FY 2025, GCTD fixed-route buses operated 
2,023,532 miles of revenue service and provided 3,583,780 passenger boardings, an increase of 1.5% 
and over 50,000 trips from the previous year. 
 
In FY 2025, the ACCESS paratransit system traveled 840,731 miles of revenue service and provided 
105,359 trips for passengers, an 8.3% decrease from the previous year. In October 2024, GCTD 
transitioned GO ACCESS paratransit and flexible services from a contracted model to a directly 
operated program.  The paratransit fleet, which consists of 28 vehicles, including 8 MV1 vans, 
10 gasoline Ford Transit vans, 8 cutaway vans, and 2 electric vans are owned by GCTD. 
 

 
 
Fixed Route Bus Ridership- Unliked Passenger Trips from FY2016 to FY2025 

 

 
  

Revenue 
Miles FY2025 FY2024 % Change

Fixed Passenger Route 2,032,532    3,583,780    3,530,560    1.51%
ACCESS Paratransit One-Way Trips 840,731       105,359       114,914       -8.31%

Total Boardings 3,689,139    3,645,474    1.20%
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Access Paratransit Ridership- One Way Trips from FY2016 to FY2025 
 

 
 

GCTD differs from most transit operators in Southern California as it provides transit services without 
any direct local sales tax measure, tax levy, or dedicated general fund support. The primary funding 
source available to GCTD for supporting transit services has historically been the Local Transportation 
Funds (LTF) from a quarter-cent state sales tax provided by the Transportation Development Act 
(TDA) of 1974. 
 
In FY 2015, Gold Coast Transit, a joint powers authority (JPA), became Gold Coast Transit District as 
a result of state legislation. As a transit district, GCTD directly receives all LTF funds allocated to its 
member jurisdictions. GCTD’s enabling legislation also allows its members to claim from GCTD a 
portion of its LTF funds for transit services (not provided by GCTD) that the member funds or operates. 
In FY 2025, GCTD received $21,184,826 in gross LTF funding and provided its members with 
$2,857,502 in net LTF funding. 
 
GCTD's second-largest source of operating revenue is Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grants. 
Under Federal Section 5307, public transit systems in Urbanized Areas (UZA) receive funding for 
capital, planning, job access, reverse commute projects, and operating expenses. The allocation of 
these grants is done based on a federal formula. Section 5307 is a federal program that provides funds 
for GCTD's operating activities. In FY 2025, GCTD received $7,170,762 from the FTA Urbanized Area 
Formula Program (§5307). Of this amount, $3,125,525 was used for capital expenditures to replace 
five CNG buses, and $3,627,038 was eligible for operating and preventive maintenance activities. 
GCTD also received $778,199 from other operating programs and $52,212 from the American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA) Route Planning Restoration Program. Funding is available through a discretionary 
process to eligible recipients or subrecipients of Urbanized Area Formula funds (§5307). GCTD 
expended $404,027 in capital from the FTA Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities Formula Program (§5310). 
 
Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Formula Program 5339 provides funding, based on a formula, to 
replace, rehabilitate, and purchase buses and related equipment, and to construct bus-related 
facilities. In addition to the formula allocation, there are two discretionary components: the Bus and 
Bus Facilities Discretionary Program and the Low or No-Emissions Bus Discretionary Program. GCTD 
had eligible expenses of $281,106.  
 
Another revenue source for GCTD is State Transportation Assistance (STA). It is an important funding 
source for other transit priorities in Ventura County, such as Metrolink and Ventura County 
Transportation Commission (VCTC) Intercity Transit. In FY 2025, GCTD received STA funds of 
$317,251 to support its operating activities.  
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
• GCTD’s total net position for FY 2025 is $35,291,790, a 12% decrease from last year’s restated 

net position of $39,979,249. 
 

• Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased from $85,100,573 in FY 2024 to 
$91,039,412 in FY 2025, an increase of $5,939,139, due mainly to the increase in cash and cash 
equivalents.  

 
• Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources increased from $45,121,024 in FY 2024 to 

$55,747,622 in FY 2025, an increase of $10,626,598 due mainly to the increase in unearned 
revenue from SB125 Transit Program Funding received by GCTD in FY 2025. 

 
• In FY 2025, GCTD’s operating revenues increased by 8.50% from $3,430,505 to $3,721,985 while 

passenger boardings increased by 29.1% from FY 2024. 
 

• Total operating expenses before depreciation were 5.39% higher in FY 2025, mainly driven by an 
increase in miscellaneous expenses. 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
This annual financial report consists of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the 
financial statements, including notes to the financial statements and required supplementary 
information. GCTD’s financial statements offer key, high-level financial information about its activities 
 
GCTD’s basic financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) promulgated by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. GCTD is structured as an enterprise fund with revenues normally recognized when 
earned, not when received. Expenses are recognized when incurred, not when paid. Capital assets 
are capitalized and (excluding land) depreciated over their estimated useful lives. See the notes to the 
basic financial statements for a summary of GCTD’s significant accounting policies. 
 
The statement of net position includes information on all GCTD’s assets and deferred outflows of 
resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. 
Changes in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether GCTD's financial position is 
improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents information regarding 
how GCTD’s net position changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. All changes in net 
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, and amounts 
are measurable, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
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Analysis of the Statement of Net Position 
 

 
The most significant portion of GCTD's net position is its net investment in capital assets, such as 
buses, buildings, improvements, and equipment. GCTD uses these capital assets to provide services 
to its passengers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  
  

2024
2025 (as restated)

Assets
Current assets $ 17,908,697     $ 12,111,656     
Capital assets (Net) 62,250,850     61,519,139     
All other assets 2,697,894       2,601,393       

Total assets 82,857,441     76,232,188     

Deferred outflows of resources 8,181,971       8,868,085       
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 91,039,412     $ 85,100,273     

Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 14,820,739     $ 3,693,632       
Non-Current liabilities 39,636,766     39,902,893     

Total liabilities 54,457,505     43,596,525     

Deferred inflows of resources 1,290,117       1,524,499       

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 43,082,939     41,719,080     
Restricted for capital acquisitions 2,794,858       2,799,978       
Restricted for proceeds from bond issuance debt covenant 2,697,894       2,601,393       
Unrestricted (deficit) (13,283,901)   (7,141,202)     

Total net position 35,291,790     39,979,249     
Total liabilities, deferred inflows 

of resources, and net position $ 91,039,412     $ 85,100,273     

Statement of Net Position
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Restricted net position refers to funds set aside or specifically awarded to fund the purchase of future 
capital projects and transit vehicle acquisitions. The remaining unrestricted deficit net position is 
primarily the result of the net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources, 
recorded in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 68. In FY 2025, the District had 
$2,794,858 in Restricted Fund as local funding match for capital acquisition, such as replacement bus 
purchases in the next few years. On June 30, 2025, the District had the remaining $2,697,894 in the 
Restricted Fund from bond issuance to cover the debt covenant. There are three different funds in the 
debt covenant. The Payment Fund totaling $954,446 is to prepare for the upcoming principal and 
interest payments on July 1st, 2025. The Reserve Fund totaling $1,418,102 is a 4.6% increase from 
FY 2024. The Project Fund totaling $325,346 is a 4.4% increase from the FY 2024 total of $311,500. 
GCTD remains committed to maintaining a stable debt profile and ensuring that COPs are used 
strategically. Additional information related to GCTD’s bond issuance debt covenant can be found in 
the Debt Administration Note #9 – Long-term Debt in the Notes to Financial Statement. 
 
The following chart shows GCTD’s total assets breakdown: 
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REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 
In FY 2025, GCTD operating revenues increased by 8.50% from $3,430,505 to $3,721,985, while 
passenger boardings increased by 29.1% from FY 2024. This is due to the program “youths ride free” 
and to a 19.7% increase in fixed-route revenues, totaling $353,907. Additionally, the paratransit fare 
revenues increased by 9.4% or $31,903 in FY 2025. However, passenger boardings decreased by 
8.3%. The increase in operating revenues was primarily due to a 19.7% increase in fixed route 
revenues to $2,152,280 from $1,798,373 and an increase in advertising to $270,448 from $250,057. 
 
California regulations require that a transit service claimant for TDA funds have a system-wide ratio of 
fare and local revenues to operating cost of at least 20% or that the claimant realize a farebox recovery 
ratio (FBRR) of 20% for fixed route service and 10% for paratransit service. In July 2021, Governor 
Newsom signed State Assembly Bill 149 (AB149). AB149 temporarily protects transit agencies from 
financial penalties for failing to meet their FRR Target due to the pandemic through FY 2023. AB149 
also includes several permanent changes to the FRR calculation. These changes benefit transit 
agencies and exclude certain costs related to demand response and Microtransit services, security 
expenses, ticketing improvements, and government mandates. AB149 also allows the exclusion of 
costs for new or significantly altered routes. If the FRR target is still not met after the above cost 
exclusions, AB149 includes additional provisions that allow for free and discounted fares to be valued 
at full fare and for the inclusion of all non-state grant revenue in the FRR calculation. GCTD achieved 
its mandated minimum farebox recovery ratio of 20% combined for FY 2025, with fixed route and 
paratransit both at 20%. 
 
Operating loss before depreciation increased $1,568,608 or 5.05% from $31,064,683 to $32,633,291. 
The most significant factors for the increase were higher salaries and wages from the transition of GO 
ACCESS paratransit and flexible services from a contracted model to a directly operated program. 
 

  
  

2024
2025 (as restated)  $ Change

Operating revenues $ 3,721,985     $ 3,430,505     $ 291,480        
Operating expenses (36,355,276) (34,495,188) (1,860,088)   

Operating loss before depreciation (32,633,291) (31,064,683) (1,568,608)   
Depreciation (4,041,727)   (3,801,267)   (240,460)      

Operating loss (36,675,018) (34,865,950) (1,809,068)   
Non-operating revenues/(expenses), net 31,987,559   32,889,048   (901,489)      

Change in net position (4,687,459)   (1,976,902)   (2,710,557)   
Net position, as restated
Beginning of year 39,979,249   41,956,151   (1,976,902)   
End of year $ 35,291,790   $ 39,979,249   $ (4,687,459)   

Condensed Statements of Activities and Changes in  Net Position
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Revenues 
 
A summary of revenues for the year ended June 30, 2025, which includes the change from the prior 
year, is as follows: 
 

 
Operating Revenues  
 
GCTD Passenger Fares  
 
Passenger fares are set by the Board of Directors (Board) and changed when deemed necessary by 
the Board. The most recent fare increase was approved during FY 2010 when the Board approved a 
two-phase fare increase. The first phase took effect on January 24, 2010, and the second on August 
21, 2011. The base cash fare for GCTD fixed-route buses is $2.00. By policy, the paratransit fare is 
automatically set at twice the fixed route fare, or $4.00.  
 
As of June 30, 2023, youths (up to the age of 18) are allowed to ride for free. 
 
  

Percentage Percentage
2025 of Total 2024 of Total

Operating revenues
Fixed route passenger fares $ 2,152,280   5.46% $ 1,798,373   4.58%
Paratransit fees 371,096      0.94% 339,193      0.86%
Advertising 270,448      0.69% 250,057      0.64%
Other operating 928,161      2.35% 1,042,882   2.66%

Total operating revenues 3,721,985   9.44% 3,430,505   8.75%

Non-operating revenues
Local transportation funds, net 21,184,826 53.72% 21,382,371 54.51%
Federal grants 7,908,107   20.05% 11,062,007 28.20%
State funding 6,132,005   15.55% 2,555,522   6.52%
Other and investment 487,946      1.24% 792,893      2.02%

Total Non-operating revenues 35,712,884 90.56% 35,792,793 91.25%
Total revenues $ 39,434,869 100.00% $ 39,223,298 100.00%
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GCTD last restructured its fare schedule in July 2024. GCTD's current fare structure is as follows: 
 

 
 
Fixed Route Passenger Fares  
Passenger fare revenues for fixed route bus service increased by $353,907 from FY 2024 to FY 2025. 
 
Paratransit Fares  
Paratransit fare revenues increased by $31,903 or 9.4% due to an increase in fare prices for the 
Demand Response program. However, GCTD’s FY 2025 paratransit boardings decreased by 8.3% 
from FY 2024. 
 
Note: To provide relief to transit operators, the State of California has suspended enforcement of the 
California regulations until FY 2026 that require that a transit service claimant for TDA funds have a 
system-wide ratio of fare and local revenues to operating cost of at least 20%, or that the claimant 
realize a farebox recovery ratio (FBRR) of 20% for fixed route passenger service and 10% for 
paratransit service. GCTD met both farebox recovery ratios, with 20% for fixed route and 20% for 
paratransit. The combined farebox ratio was 20%. 
 
Advertising Income  
 
GCTD has been selling commercial bus advertising since FY 2007 and continues attracting advertising 
contracts from local and national entities. In FY 2025, GCTD generated $270,448 in advertising 
revenues, 8.2% more than the previous year. GCTD anticipates continued advertising revenue growth 
in the coming years.  
 
  

Cash Fares (One Way) Fare amount Multi-Ride Ticket or Monthly Pass Fare Amount
Adult $ 2                  Adult:
Youth (through age 18) Free $ 2                  15-Ride $ 25                
Seniors (65-74 years of age with GCTD ID or proof of age) $ 1                  31-Day Pass $ 65                
Medicare (with Medicare Card) $ 1                  Youth:
Disabled (ADA card or GCTD ID) $ 1                  15-Ride $ 15                
Seniors 75+ (with GCTD ID or proof of age) Free 31-Day Pass $ 40                
Children under 45" tall (when accompanied by paid fare) Free Reduced Fare (Senior/Disabled)
Day Pass (One-Day/Unlimited Boardings) $ 5                  15-Ride $ 12                
Day Pass for Seniors/Medicare/Disabled $ 2                  31-Day Pass $ 32                
Late Night Safe Ride $ 5                  

GCTD ACCESS (Paratransit) FARES

Cash Fares (One Way) Multi-Ride Ticket or Monthly Pass
ADA Certified or Senior $ 4                  Book of ten tickets - ADA Certified or Senior $ 40

Senior Nutrition (registered with County program) Donation 

GCTD FIXED ROUTE RATES
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Other Operating Revenue  
 
Alternative Fuel Excise Tax Credit 
GCTD has received funds from the federal Alternative Fuel Excise Tax Credit program for several 
years due to its use of CNG as a vehicle fuel. The federal Alternative Fuel Excise Tax Credit program 
expired on December 31, 2024. In FY 2025, GCTD received $445,771. 
 
Energy Credit Revenue - Commencing in FY 2015, GCTD generates and sells both Low Carbon Fuel 
Standard (LCFS) credits (State of California) and Renewable Identification Number (RIN) credits (U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency) from its use of renewable natural gas to fuel the fleet. The market 
for these credits can be volatile and is based on regulation and demand; however, GCTD has benefited 
from the program. In FY 2025, GCTD received $482,390 from the generation and sale of state and 
federal credits.  
Non-Operating Revenues  
 
Local Transportation Funds (LTF)  
 
In July 2014, Gold Coast Transit became Gold Coast Transit District (GCTD) after Governor Brown 
signed state legislation in October 2013. As a Transit District, GCTD is now entitled to claim the entire 
amount of state LTF apportioned by population to its member jurisdictions. GCTD's enabling legislation 
also allows GCTD members to claim from the District a portion of its LTF funds for eligible transit 
services (not provided by the District) that the member funds or operates. For FY  2025, GCTD claimed 
$21,184,826 in LTF funds, out of which $2,857,502 was claimed by GCTD's members for their transit 
service requirements.  
 
Federal Grants  
 
GCTD’s second-largest source of operating revenue is FTA grants. Federal Section 5307 grants are 
allocated according to a federal formula and have remained relatively stable over the past 10 years. 
Section 5307 is the core program providing federal funds for GCTD operating activities.  
 
In FY 2025, GCTD expended a total of $7,908,107 in federal funding, with $4,097,449 towards 
operating expenses and $3,810,658 towards capital expenses. GCTD expended $4,045,237 in 
Section 5307 grant funds for eligible operating activities, and $3,125,525 towards the replacement of 
four CNG buses, two electric cars, and two hybrid SUVs in FY 2025. Additional capital expenses of 
$404,027 were expended towards five replacement paratransit vehicles for Enhanced Mobility of 
Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities. GCTD also expended $52,212 in ARPA funding in FY 2025. 
Section 5339 provides capital funding to replace, rehabilitate and purchase buses and facilities. GCTD 
expended $281,106 in 5339 funds towards eligible capital expenses. 
 
State Funding  
 
STA and SGR - GCTD receives funding from the STA and State of Good Repair (SGR) programs. In 
FY 2025, the State Controller’s Office (SCO) allocated GCTD $317,251 in STA funds and $53,044 in 
SGR funds. These funds can be used for eligible activities, such as local matching for Federal grants, 
operating activities, and preventive maintenance. GCTD also received state and local grants 
amounting to $5,684,351. 
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GCTD participates in the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) and receives funding for 
approved mobility projects. GCTD received $77,359 in LCTOP funding for Route 23 operations. 
Additionally, GCTD receives SB125 grant funding through California CLASS for various operating and 
capital asset projects. In FY 2025, GCTD expended $3,122,260 on capital expenses and $117,413 on 
operating expenses. 
 
Other Revenue and Investment  
 
Investment earnings include interest earnings and fair market adjustments on temporary investments 
held in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), investments in California CLASS 
and money market funds at US Bank. GCTD gained $173,301 in FY 2025 and an increase of $134 
from the previous year, due to favorable market changes. 
 
Other revenue consists of the sale of equipment, scrap material, and insurance proceeds. GCTD 
earned $314,511 from these revenue sources in FY 2025. 
 
The following chart shows the major sources of operating and non-operating revenues for the year 
ended June 30, 2025, as a percentage of total revenues: 
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Expenses  
 
A summary of expenses for the year ended June 30, 2025, including the amount and percentage of 
change from the prior year, is shown below: 
 

 
 
Total operating expenses before depreciation were 5.39% higher, mainly driven by a 185.21% 
increase in miscellaneous expenses from $606,720 to $1,730,424, and a 25.31% increase in salaries 
and wages from $11,760,428 to $14,736,532, for a total increase of $2,976,104. Benefits also 
increased by 9.82% from $11,039,357 to $12,123,299. Some of the cost drivers for the increase 
include medical and pharmaceutical inflation, employee workers' compensation, and additional 
unfunded pension liability contributions. 
 
Insurance claims increased by 15.78% to $1,883,844 due to higher liability insurance, commercial 
property, earthquake, and other insurance. 
 
Service expenses decreased by 57.40% due to the transition of GO ACCESS paratransit and flexible 
services from a contracted model to an in-house, directly operated program. As a result, this transition 
reduced contract fees and mark-ups. 
  

2025 2024 $ Change % Change
Operating expenses

Salary and wages $ 14,736,532  $ 11,760,428  $ 2,976,104    25.31%
Benefits 12,123,299  11,039,357  1,083,942    9.82%
Services 2,788,900    6,546,276    (3,757,376)   -57.40%
Materials 2,683,219    2,513,462    169,757       6.75%
Utilities 409,058       401,878       7,180           1.79%
Insurance 1,883,844    1,627,067    256,777       15.78%
Miscellaneous 1,730,424    606,720       1,123,704    185.21%

Operating expenses
before depreciation and amortization 36,355,276  34,495,188  1,860,088    5.39%

Depreciation and amortization 4,041,727    3,801,267    240,460       6.33%
Total operating expenses 40,397,003  38,296,455  2,100,548    5.48%

Non-operating expenses
Interest expense 867,823       888,649       (20,826)        -2.34%

Total expenses $ 41,264,826  $ 39,185,104  $ 2,079,722    5.31%
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The following chart shows major cost categories and the percentage of operating expenses for the 
year ended June 30, 2025: 
 

 
ECONOMIC AND STRATEGIC FACTORS  
 
GCTD operates a facility that can accommodate its current and potential growth. The commitment 
GCTD made to taking on long-term debt for addressing the future transit needs with the larger facility 
continues to be important in State and Federal transit funding. 
 
Despite the growing economy, LTF, GCTD's primary funding source, appears to have stabilized. 
Although the District has committed to future public transit needs by developing a new, larger operating 
base, GCTD may be vulnerable to another significant economic downturn, similar to the one the 
country experienced in 2008. Meanwhile, Ventura County remains the most populous county in 
California that still needs to pass a dedicated transportation tax. This limits GCTD's ability to grow and 
provide a more robust transit service to the community and hinders GCTD's ability to compete for state 
and federal grant funds. Ventura County voters failed to approve a one-half cent sales tax in November 
2016 to fund necessary road and transportation improvements. However, Measure AA received over 
64% approval in the four cities GCTD serves. Other high-population counties in California have 
recognized the need for local funding to support transit services. GCTD's future public transit needs 
will remain constrained until this issue is successfully addressed. 
 
GCTD has a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Service Employees International Union 
(SEIU). Currently, approximately 80% of GCTD's workers are represented by SEIU employees 
working under the current agreement, valid until June 30, 2027.  
 
GCTD negotiated a three-year contract with Teamsters Local 186 during FY 2023, which represents 
17 supervisors whose previous contract expired on June 30, 2023. The new agreement is valid until 
June 30, 2026.  
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GCTD has been using compressed natural gas (CNG) to power its buses, paratransit fleet, and most 
of its service vehicles since 1995. GCTD owns and operates a natural gas compression station. GCTD 
continued to realize benefits from its contract with Clean Energy, which provides GCTD with renewable 
natural gas at a discount from the published commodity price and revenue from GCTD’s sale of LCFS 
credits (State of California) and RIN credits (U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)) generated 
from its use of CNG as a fuel. 
 
GCTD placed five CNG buses into service during FY 2025. As GCTD transitions to zero-emission 
hydrogen buses, the CNG bus fleet will continue to operate for several years. The Board of Directors 
of GCTD has shown a forward-thinking approach by committing to purchasing zero-emission buses 
for the future fleet. 
 
Throughout its history, GCTD (and its predecessor agencies, Gold Coast Transit and South Coast 
Area Transit) has been constrained from growth by the limitations of its revenue. Increased revenue 
from the additional LTF funds available to GCTD when it became a District in 2014 allowed it to 
proceed with debt funding to complete and move into a new facility to prepare for future growth. GCTD 
aims to explore new revenue sources to enhance service for Western Ventura County. 
 
GCTD actively seeks out all relevant grant opportunities. It is important to note that discretionary grants 
do not provide recurring revenue. GCTD has implemented several initiatives to increase revenues, 
such as on-board advertising sales and the generation and sale of LCFS and RIN credits. GCTD will 
continue to pursue revenue opportunities from these initiatives aggressively, and Senate Bill 1 (SB1), 
California's Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, has the potential to help fill the gap. Identifying 
and implementing a local means of financial support for Ventura County transit is pivotal for 
sustainability. 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS  
 
During FY 2025, GCTD added five compressed natural gas-powered buses, one Nissan Leaf electric 
car, three Hyundai Ioniq 5 cars, two Chrysler Pacifica hybrid compact SUVs, three Ford Transit Nor-
Cal Mobility Vans, five farebox collection systems, and one Avigilon Hardened Server, totaling 
$4,410,881. GCTD had a total of $62,250,850 and $61,519,139 invested in capital assets as of June 
30, 2025 and 2024, respectively 
 
Capital asset acquisitions are capitalized at cost. Acquisitions are typically funded primarily using 
federal grants with matching local funds. Over the past decade, GCTD has received state grants from 
the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account 
(PTMISEA) and California Office of Emergency Services (Cal-OES) Safety and Security programs. 
These grants can match federal funds but do not require local matching funds. Note 4 in the Notes to 
Financial Statements provided more detailed information on capital asset activities.  
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
GCTD’s long-term debt consists of a Certificate of Participation, lease payable, and SBITA payable.   
 
On March 2, 2017, the District issued Series 2017 Certificates of Participation (Certificates) in the par 
amount of $22,000,000 for the construction of its new operations and maintenance facility. The 
California Transit Finance Corporation acted as Special Counsel in connection with the sale, 
execution, and delivery of the principal amount of Certificates of Participation. The District pledged 
farebox revenues to repay the certificates. The Certificates were issued with coupon interest rates 
ranging between 4.00% to 5.25% and a net premium on the issuance of $1,716,093, which is being 
amortized over the life of the debt service. The Certificates are scheduled to mature on July 1, 2047. 
Interest payments are due on July 1st and January 1st while principal payments ranging between 
$340,000 to $1,350,000 are due on July 1st each year. The Certificates maturing on or before July 1, 
2027, are not subject to optional prepayment. The Certificates maturing on or after July 1, 2028, are 
subject to optional prepayment on any date on or after July 1, 2027, at a prepayment price equal to 
the principal amount of the Certificates to be prepaid, plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment, 
without premium. 
 
During FY 2025, GCTD made principal payments of $455,000 on the COPs. The District also reduced 
its lease liability by $17,640 and its SBITA payable by $42,710. These reductions reflect GCTD’s 
ongoing commitment to managing long-term obligations and maintaining financial sustainability. 
 
For more detailed information on the District’s long-term debt activity, refer to Note 9 – Long-Term 
Debt, Note 7 – SBITA Payable, and Note 8 – Lease Liability in the Notes to the Financial Statements, 
and the Ratio of Outstanding Bonds by Type – 2016 to 2025 in the Statistical Section. 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION  
 
This financial report is designed to provide an overview of GCTD’s financial operations and condition 
to its members, customers, stakeholders, and other interested parties. If you have any questions 
regarding the information provided in this report or wish to request additional financial information, 
please contact Christine Feng, CFO/ Assistant General Manager, at Gold Coast Transit District, 
1901 Auto Center Drive, Oxnard, California, 93036.
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2025
2024

(Restated)
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 15,654,375   $ 4,743,120   
Receivables:

Accounts, net of allowance 132,428     125,254    
Interest 35,607       20,121      

Due from other governments 1,080,009     5,980,686   
Inventories and prepaid expenses 1,006,278     1,242,475   

Total current assets 17,908,697   12,111,656 
Non-current assets:
Restricted - investments (Note 2 and 3) 2,697,894     2,601,393   
Capital assets - not being depreciated (Note 4) 9,705,445     9,353,397   
Capital assets - being depreciated, net (Note 4) 52,545,405   52,165,742 

Total noncurrent assets 64,948,744   64,120,532 
Total assets 82,857,441   76,232,188 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related deferred outflows of resources (Note 10) 6,804,495     7,498,648   
Other Post Employement Benefits (OPEB)-related deferred outflows
   of resources ( Note 11) 1,377,476     1,369,437   

Total deferred outflows of resources 8,181,971     8,868,085   
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 91,039,412   $ 85,100,273 

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,382,423     $ 2,050,501   
Customer deposits and unearned revenue (Note 5) 11,514,935   14,856        
Due within one year:

Compensated absences (Note 6) 1,337,365     1,058,302   
Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangement (SBITA) payable (Note 7) 43,778          42,710        
Lease liability (Note 8) 12,615          17,640        
Certificates of Participation (COPs) payable (Note 9) 529,623        509,623      

Total current liabilities 14,820,739   3,693,632   

Non-current liabilities:
Due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (Note 6) 352,661        306,235      
SBITA payable (Note 7) 27,372          71,150        
Lease liability (Note 8) 5,914            18,529        
COPs payable (Note 9) 19,966,711   20,496,334 
Net pension liability (Note 10) 17,527,808   17,470,234 
Net OPEB liability (Note 11) 1,756,300     1,540,411   

Total noncurrent liabilities 39,636,766   39,902,893 
Total liabilities 54,457,505   43,596,525 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related deferred inflows of resources (Note 10) 317,560        582,192      
OPEB-related deferred inflows of resources ( Note 11) 972,557        942,307      

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,290,117     1,524,499   

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (Note 12) 43,082,939   41,719,080 
Restricted proceeds from bond issuance (Note 3) 2,697,894     2,601,393   
Unrestricted Deficit (Note 13) (10,489,043) (4,341,224)  

Total net position 35,291,790   39,979,249 
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 91,039,412   $ 85,100,273 

June 30
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2025
2024

(Restated)
OPERATING REVENUES
Passenger fares:

Fixed route $ 2,152,280     $ 1,798,373     
Paratransit 371,096        339,193        

Advertising revenue 270,448        250,057        
Other operating revenue 928,161        1,042,882     

Total operating revenues 3,721,985     3,430,505     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 14,736,532   11,760,428   
Employee benefits 12,123,299   11,039,357   
Services 2,788,900     6,546,276     
Materials 2,683,219     2,513,462     
Utilities 409,058        401,878        
Insurance claims 1,883,844     1,627,067     
Other operating expenses 1,730,424     606,720        

Total operating expenses before depreciation 36,355,276   34,495,188   

Operating loss before depreciation (32,633,291) (31,064,683) 
Depreciation and amortization expense (4,041,727)   (3,801,267)   

Operating loss (36,675,018) (34,865,950) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Local transportation funding 21,184,826   21,382,371   
Federal grants 7,908,107     11,062,007   
State transit assistance 317,251        350,687        
State and local grants 5,737,395     2,132,693     
Low carbon transit operations program 77,359          72,142          
Investment earnings 173,435        243,642        
Pass-through to other agencies (2,857,502)   (2,015,096)   
Interest expense (867,823)      (888,649)      
Other non-operating revenues 314,511        549,251        

Total non-operating revenues, net 31,987,559   32,889,048   
Change in net position (4,687,459)   (1,976,902)   

NET POSITION:
Beginning of year 39,979,249   41,956,151   
End of year $ 35,291,790   $ 39,979,249   

Year ended June 30
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2025
2024

(Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and others $ 15,214,890     $ 3,671,602       
Payments to employees (13,685,848)   (10,543,637)   
Payments to vendors and suppliers (17,149,948)   (22,422,586)   

Net cash used in operating activities (15,620,906)   (29,294,621)   

Cash flows from non-capital and related financing activities:
Federal, state, and local operating grants 35,147,579     32,879,842     
Pass-through payments to other agencies (2,857,502)     (2,015,096)     
Other non-capital funding 391,870          74,258            

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 32,681,947     30,939,004     

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital assets acquisition and construction (4,792,554)     (3,008,792)     
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 19,116            –                     
Principal payments on SBITA payable (42,710)          (59,464)          
Principal payments on lease liability (17,640)          (16,628)          
Principal payments on long-term debt (455,000)        (435,000)        
Interest paid on long-term debt (922,446)        (899,524)        

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (6,211,234)     (4,419,408)     

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment earnings 61,448            178,120          

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,911,255     (2,596,905)     

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 4,743,120       7,340,025       
End of year $ 15,654,375     $ 4,743,120       
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2025
2024

(Restated)
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Operating loss $ (36,675,018)   $ (34,865,950)   

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,041,727       3,801,267       
Inventory writeoff 640,499          –                     

Change in assets - (increase)decrease:
Accounts receivable (7,174)            (30,962)          
Due from other governments 4,900,677       410,672          
Inventories and prepaid items (404,302)        (118,261)        

Change in deferred outflows of resources - (increase) decrease:
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 694,153          723,802          
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB (8,039)            100,734          

Change in liabilities - increase(decrease):
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (668,078)        237,210          
Customer deposits and unearned revenue 11,500,079     (20,352)          
Compensated absences 325,489          66,970            
Net Pension liability 57,574            509,179          
Net OPEB liability 215,889          (119,634)        

Change in deferred inflows of resources - increase(decrease):
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (264,632)        (264,632)        
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 30,250            275,336          

Total adjustments 21,054,112     5,571,329       
Net cash used in operating activities $ (15,620,906)   $ (29,294,621)   

Non-cash investing, capital and financing transactions:
Change in fair-value of investments $ (134)               $ (47,889)          
Amortization of bond premium (discount), net $ 54,623            $ 54,623            
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NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION  
 
The Gold Coast Transit District (District), a special district of the State of California, 
was created in 1973 by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the Cities of 
Ojai, Oxnard, Port Hueneme, and San Buenaventura (Ventura) for the purpose of 
operating a public transportation system within and about western Ventura County. 
Subsequent to the initial creation of the District, the City of Santa Paula and the County 
of Ventura (the County) were added as participating members. Each participating 
government agency is represented on the District’s Board of Directors. On October 5, 
1994, the City of Santa Paula withdrew from the joint powers authority agreement and 
surrendered its representation on the Board. Santa Paula’s member equity was 
reallocated to the other members during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. As of 
July 1, 2014, Gold Coast Transit became known as Gold Coast Transit District. 
 
The principal business activity of Gold Coast Transit District (District) is to provide 
public transportation service to customers in the geographic area known as western 
Ventura County, located in Southern California. The District's principal sources of 
revenue are from Local Transportation Funding as well as various other state and 
federal grants.  
 
The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on 
the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61, The 
Financial Reporting Entity (GASB Statement No. 61). The District is the primary 
governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board 
that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally 
separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are 
financially accountable. The District is financially accountable if it appoints a voting 
majority of the organization’s governing body and: 1) It is able to impose its will on that 
organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. 
 
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING  
 
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business 
enterprise, where the intent of the District is that the costs (including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. 
 
The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the 
related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives 
(or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, 
include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from grants, 
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied.  
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NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 
 
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)  
 
Operating revenues are those generated from the District's primary operations. The 
District reports a measure of operations by presenting the change in net position from 
operations as operating income in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes 
in net position. Operating activities are defined by the District as all activities other than 
financing and investing activities (interest expense and investment income), grants 
and subsidies, and other infrequently occurring non-operating transactions. Operating 
expenses are those essential to the District's primary operations. All other expenses 
are reported as non-operating expenses. 
 
Operating Fund  
Operating Fund accounts for all revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by 
law or contractual agreements to some other funds. General operating and capital 
improvement costs not paid from other funds are paid from this fund.  
 
Local Transportation Funding, Article No. 4 (LTF), received by the County from the 
State of California and then subsequently distributed to the District and its member 
entities based on their requested appropriation throughout the fiscal year, is also 
accounted for in the Operating Fund.  
 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) is also accounted for in the 
Operating Fund. State SB125 Grant funding also provides additional Operating 
Assistances. 
 
C. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of 90 days or less, when purchased, to be cash 
equivalents. Cash deposits are reported at the carrying amount, which reasonably 
estimates fair value. 
 
Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term investments, which are 
reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash deposits are reported at carrying 
amount, which reasonably estimates fair value. Investments in governmental 
investment pools are reported at fair value based on the fair value per share of the 
pool’s underlying portfolio. 
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NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 
 
C. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
 
Investments (Continued) 
In accordance with fair value measurements, the District categorizes its assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of the 
inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs 
used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within different levels of 
the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities recorded on the balance sheet are categorized based 
on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:  
 

Level 1 – Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
investments, such as stocks, corporate, and government bonds. The 
District has the ability to access the holding and quoted prices as of the 
measurement date.  

 
Level 2 – Inputs, other than quoted prices, that are observable for the asset or 

liability either directly or indirectly, including inputs from markets that are 
not considered to be active. 

 
Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable. Unobservable inputs reflect the District’s 

own assumptions about the factors market participants would use in 
pricing an investment, and are based on the best information available 
in the circumstances. 

 
Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts  
Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts owed by customers for advertising 
revenue and by other governmental agencies. As of June 30, 2025 and 2024, all 
accounts receivable are considered to be collectable by the District. 
 
Materials and Supplies Inventory  
The materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of bus replacement parts, 
vehicle maintenance supplies, tires, and oil. Inventory is valued at cost using a 
weighted average method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time that 
individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed. 
 
Prepaids  
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 
are recorded as prepaid expenses.  
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NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 
 
C. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
 
Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA)  
The primary objective is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information 
about the government’s leasing activities. The District has established a single model 
for SBITA accounting based on the principle that SBITAs are financings of a right-to-
use underlying asset. As a lessee, the District is required to recognize a SBITA liability 
(payable) and an intangible right-to-use SBITA asset. At the commencement of a 
SBITA, the District initially measures the SBITA liability at the present value of 
payments expected to be made during the SBITA term. Subsequently, the SBITA 
liability is reduced by the principal portion of SBITA payments made. The SBITA asset 
is initially measured as the initial amount of the SBITA liability, adjusted for SBITA 
payments made at or before the SBITA commencement date, plus certain initial direct 
costs. Subsequently, the SBITA asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its 
useful life. The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a 
remeasurement of its SBITA and will remeasure the SBITA asset and SBITA payable 
if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the 
SBITA payable. 
 
Leases 
The primary objective is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information 
about the government’s leasing activities. The District has established a single model 
for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of a right-to-use 
underlying asset. As a lessee, the District is required to recognize a lease liability 
(payable) and an intangible right-to-use leased asset. At the commencement of a 
lease, the District initially measures the lease liability at the present value of payments 
expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced 
by the principal portion of lease payments made. The leased asset is initially measured 
as the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or 
before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, 
the leased asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life. The District 
monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease 
and will remeasure the leased asset and lease payable if certain changes occur that 
are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease payable. 
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NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 
 
C. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
 
Capital Assets  
Capital assets are stated at cost or at their estimated fair value at date of donation. It 
is the District’s policy to capitalize assets costing over $5,000. The provision for 
depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated service 
lives of the capital assets. Estimated service lives for the District’s classes of assets 
are as follows: 
 

 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources  
In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future 
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a 
future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. 
 
Unearned ̶ Local Transportation Funding  
Authorized and received Local Transportation Funds (LTF) that exceed current year 
expenditure requirements are deferred to future periods. 
 
  

Description Estimated Lives
Revenue vehicles - fixed route 5 - 12 years
Revenue vehicles - paratransit 4 - 7 years
Buildings and buildings improvements 5 - 50 years
Equipment 3 - 20 years
Right-of-use assets 4 - 6 years
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NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 
 
C. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
 
Compensated Absences  
District policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation and sick leave up 
to a defined maximum amount. Accumulated vacation time is accrued at year-end to 
account for the District’s obligation to the employees for the amount owed. Sick leave 
can be accumulated, but, under District policy, is not paid until retirement, death, or 
voluntary termination with a minimum of ten years of service. Payment for sick leave 
shall be made in an amount of 50% of accrued sick leave upon retirement, death or 
voluntary termination of the qualified employee. In 2025, the District implemented 
GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. In accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 101, a liability is recorded for unused vacation, sick, and similar 
compensatory leave balances, since the employees’ entitlement to these balances 
accumulates, is attributable to services already rendered, and it is more likely than not 
that virtually all of these balances will be liquidated by either paid time off or payments 
upon termination or retirement. 
 
Pensions  
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS) plans, and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 
are reported at fair value.  
 
The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:  
 

Valuation Date – June 30, 2023  
Measurement Date – June 30, 2024  
Measurement Period – July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

 
Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)  
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Gold Coast Transit District Retiree Benefits Plan (“the 
Plan”) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the 
Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market 
investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a 
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.  
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NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 
 
C. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
 

Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued) 
 

Valuation Date – June 30, 2024  
Measurement Date – June 30, 2024  
Measurement Period – July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

 
Net Position  
Net position is classified into three components: net investment in capital assets, 
restricted, and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 
 

Net investment in capital assets –This component of net position consists of capital 
assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balances of debt for those capital assets.  

 
Restricted – This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net 
position use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through 
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments 
or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.  

 
Unrestricted net position – This component of net position consists of net position 
that does not meet the definition of "net investment in capital assets" or "restricted".  

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they 
are needed. 

 
D. USE OF ESTIMATES  
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 
 
E. NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
 

The District receives LTF under provisions of the State of California’s 
Transportation Development Act of 1971 (TDA). This act provides that a portion of 
state sales tax proceeds be made available for the support and development of 
public transportation. These funds are generated within the County and are 
allocated based on annual claims filed by the District and approved by the Ventura 
County Transportation Commission (VCTC). A portion of these proceeds (at the 
discretion of the District’s Board) may be set aside to fund capital acquisitions and 
is classified as local transportation funding in the non-operating section of the 
statement of activities and changes in net position.  

 
The remaining portion of local transportation funding is used to subsidize current 
operations and is also included in the nonoperating revenue section of the 
statement of activities and changes in net position. Under provisions of the Fixing 
America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, signed into law on December 4, 
2015, Federal planning and capital assistance grants (under Section 5307) are 
made available to local urbanized mass transportation systems on a formula basis. 
Federal operating and matching grants provided to the District under this act are 
included in the non-operating revenue section of the statement of activities and 
changes in net position.  

 
Federal, state, and local operating and capital grants are included in the non-
operating revenue section of the statement of activities and changes in net 
position. 

 
F. GRANT FUNDING  
 

Grants for operating assistance and capital acquisitions are included in their 
respective non-operating and capital contribution sections of the statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Grant funds are claimed on a 
reimbursement basis, and receivables for grant funds are recorded as the related 
obligations are incurred. Grant funds advanced but not yet earned are treated as 
unearned revenue until the respective obligations for which the grants were funded 
are incurred. 

 
G. CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS  
 

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed by 
outside parties to the District. 

 
H. RECLASSIFICATIONS  
 

Certain amounts from the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the 
current year’s presentation. 

  

Draft 11/25/25_7PM



Gold Coast Transit District 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2025 
(With Summarized Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2024) 

 
 

31 

NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 
 
I. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS  
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, the District implemented the following 
GASB Standards: 
 
GASB Statement No. 101 
In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, which 
establishes updated recognition and measurement guidance for leave benefits such 
as vacation, sick leave, paid time off, and other compensated absences. The objective 
of this Statement is to improve consistency and comparability in financial reporting by 
clarifying when and how liabilities for compensated absences should be recognized.  
The implementation of this new accounting standard resulted in recognition of 
additional compensated absence liabilities in the District’s June 30, 2024, financial 
statements. See also Notes 6. 
 
GASB Statement No. 102 
In December 2023, GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, which 
requires governments to disclose vulnerabilities arising from significant concentrations 
and certain constraints that could impact their ability to acquire resources or manage 
spending. The objective of this Statement is to improve transparency and provide 
users of financial statements with more relevant information about potential risks that 
could substantially affect a government’s operations or financial position.  The 
implementation of this statement did not have a significant impact on the District’s 
financial statements. 
 
GASB has released the following statements, which will be implemented in future 
financial statements, if applicable: 
 
GASB Statement No. 103 – Financial Reporting Model Improvements. The requirements 
of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2025. 
 
GASB Statement No. 104 – Disclosures of Certain Capital Assets. The requirements of 
this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2025. 
 
 

NOTE 2 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 
 
As of June 30, 2025, cash and investments were classified in the accompanying 
financial statements as follows: 
 

 
  

Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,654,375   
Restricted - investments 2,697,894     

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 18,352,269   
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NOTE 2 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
At June 30, 2025, cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted of the following: 
 

 
Demand Deposits 
As of June 30, 2025, the carrying amount of the District’s demand deposits was 
$117,770, and the financial institution balance was $470,472. The $352,702 net 
difference represents outstanding checks, deposits-in-transit, and/or other reconciling 
items between the financial institution’s balance and the District’s balance for each 
year. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits  
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will 
not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure 
of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, the District will not be able to 
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party. The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do 
not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit 
risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits The 
California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made 
by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the 
governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must 
equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California 
law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. As of 
June 30, 2025, the District’s deposits were covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation insurance limits or collateralized as required by California law. 
 
  

Cash on hand $ 670               
Demand deposits held with financial institutions 117,770        
Deposits held with Local Agency
    Investment Fund (LAIF) 111,328        
Deposits held with Ventura County Pooled
    Investment Fund (VCPIF) 1,463,810     
Deposits held with California CLASS
    Investment Pool 11,514,935   
Deposits held with money market funds 2,445,862     
Investments 2,697,894     

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 18,352,269   
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NOTE 2 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  
The California State Treasurer, through the Pooled Money Investment Account 
(PMIA), invests its funds to manage the State’s cash flow and strengthen the financial 
security of local public agencies. PMIA’s policy sets safety, liquidity, and yield as the 
primary investment objectives. Through the PMIA, the Investment Division manages 
the LAIF. LAIF allows cities, counties, and special districts to place money in a major 
portfolio and, at no additional cost, use the expertise of Investment Division staff. 
Participating agencies can withdraw their funds from LAIF at any time, as LAIF is highly 
liquid and has a dollar-in, dollar-out amortized cost methodology.  
 
The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF. The fair value of the District’s investment 
in this pool is reported at an amount based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair 
value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of 
the portfolio). The available balance for withdrawal is based on LAIF's accounting 
records. LAIF is not categorized under the fair value hierarchy established by GAAP, 
as it is held at an amortized cost basis, and it is Not Rated under the current credit risk 
ratings format. For financial reporting purposes, the District considers funds in LAIF a 
cash equivalent due to its highly liquid nature and dollar-in, dollar-out amortized cost 
methodology. As of June 30, 2025, the District held $111,328 in LAIF. 
 
Ventura County Pooled Investment Fund (VCPIF)  
The District is a voluntary participant in the Ventura County Pooled Investment Fund 
(VCPIF) that is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of 
the Treasurer of the County of Ventura, California. The fair value of the District’s 
investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District’s prorated share of the fair value provided by the 
VCPIF for the entire VCPIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). 
The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained 
by the VCPIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. For financial reporting 
purposes, the District considers funds in VCPIF a cash equivalent due to its highly 
liquid nature and dollar-in, dollar-out amortized cost methodology. As of June 30, 2025, 
the District held $1,463,810 in VCPIF. 
 
California CLASS Investment Pool 
The District participates in the California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System 
(California CLASS), an investment pool established pursuant to the provisions of the 
California Government Code and managed under the oversight of a Board of Trustees 
composed of participating public agencies. California CLASS is designed to provide 
public agencies with a professionally managed investment vehicle that emphasizes 
safety, liquidity, and yield. 
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NOTE 2 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
California CLASS Investment Pool (Continued) 
As part of the State of California’s SB 125 Transit Funding Program, the District 
received grant funds intended to support transit operations, capital improvements, and 
zero-emission initiatives. These funds were temporarily invested in the California 
CLASS account to ensure liquidity and preservation of capital while awaiting 
programmatic deployment. 
 
The fair value of the District’s investment in California CLASS is reported in the 
accompanying financial statements based on the District’s prorated share of the fair 
value of the entire California CLASS portfolio, as provided by the pool administrator. 
The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained 
by California CLASS, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
 
For financial reporting purposes, the District considers its investment in California 
CLASS a cash equivalent due to its highly liquid nature and dollar-in, dollar-out 
amortized cost methodology. As of June 30, 2025, the District held $11,514,935 in 
California CLASS related to SB125 Funds. 
 
Money‐Market Funds  
Money-market funds are investments whose objective is to earn modest returns while 
maintaining a net asset value (NAV) of $1 per share (the fund’s main goal: preservation 
of principal). A money-market fund’s portfolio is typically comprised of short-term, or 
less than one year, securities representing high-quality, liquid debt and monetary 
instruments with minimal credit risk. Money-market funds are Level 1 investments (with 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets) that are Not Rated under the 
current credit risk ratings format.  
 
For financial reporting purposes, the District considers money market funds to be cash 
equivalents due to their highly liquid nature and $1 per share NAV. As of June 30, 
2025, the District held $2,445,862 in money market funds. 
 
Investments  
The District’s investments as of June 30, 2025, were as follows: 
 

 
 
  

Measurement Credit 2025 12 Months or 13 to 24 2024
Type of Investments Input Rating Fair Value Less Months Fair Value

U.S. Government obligations Level 1 Aaa $ 1,403,509   $ 1,055,642   $ 347,867      $ 1,014,079 
Money market accounts held with debt trustee Level 1 N/A 1,294,385   1,294,385   -                  1,253,310 
Corporate short-term obligations Level 2 AAA -                  -                  -                  334,004    

Total investments $ 2,697,894   $ 2,350,027   $ 347,867      $ 2,601,393 
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NOTE 2 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Authorized Investments and Investment Policy  
The District has adopted an investment policy directing the Fiscal Officer to deposit 
funds in financial institutions to purchase financial investments in accordance with 
California Government Code 53600-53610. The following table represents 
investments authorized by the District’s investment policy. 
 

 
 
Fair Value Measurement Input  
The District categorizes its fair value measurement inputs within the fair value 
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The District has 
presented its measurement inputs as noted in the previous table. 
 
Credit Risk  
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will default on its obligations to 
the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. As of June 30, 2025, the District’s 
investment in the LAIF was not rated, as noted in the previous table, and the District’s 
investment in the VCPIF was rated AAAf/S-1+. 
 
Interest Rate Risk  
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the 
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the 
ways the District can manage its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a 
combination of shorter-term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows 
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity 
as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk  
Credit concentration risk is the risk of loss associated with the magnitude of a 
government's investment in a single issuer. This type of risk arises when a government 
has a significant amount of its investments concentrated in one entity or a small group 
of entities, which could lead to substantial losses if those entities default or experience 
financial difficulties. 
  

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
State on local agency bonds 5-years None None
U.S. treasury obligations 5-years None None
Government sponsored agency securities 5-years None None
Negotiable certificates of deposit 5-years 30% None
Short-term corporate obligations notes 5-years 30% None
Money market mutual funds 5-years 20% 20%
County pooled investment funds None None None
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) None None None
California CLASS Investment Pool None None None
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NOTE 3 RESTRICTED ASSETS AND NET POSITION 
 
As of June 30, 2025, restricted assets and net position include investments totaling 
$2,697,894 in debt proceeds, held in trust by bond trustees specifically for debt service 
obligations. 
 
 

NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 
 
Summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2025 is as follows: 
 

 
 
Depreciation and amortization expense for capital assets for the year ended June 30, 
2025 was $4,041,727. 
  

Balance Deletions/ Balance
July 1, 2024 Additions Transfers June 30, 2025

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 8,981,061     $ -                    $ -                    $ 8,981,061     
Construction-in-progress 372,336        465,501        (113,453)       724,384        

Total capital assets,
  not being depreciated 9,353,397     465,501        (113,453)       9,705,445     

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 43,819,825   -                    -                    43,819,825   
Vehicles and equipment 42,343,447   4,327,053     (2,105,134)    44,565,366   
Intangible assets 39,401          -                    -                    39,401          
Right-of-use assets

Leases 84,067          -                    -                    84,067          
SBITAs 196,180        -                    -                    196,180        

Total capital assets,
  being depreciated 86,482,920   4,327,053     (2,105,134)    88,704,839   

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements (6,190,205)    (1,225,185)    -                    (7,415,390)    
Vehicles and equipment (27,952,534)  (2,757,096)    2,199,471     (28,510,159)  
Intangible assets (39,401)         -                    -                    (39,401)         

Total accumulated depreciation (34,182,140)  (3,982,281)    2,199,471     (35,964,950)  
Accumulated amortization

Right-of-use assets
Leases (49,983)         (16,918)         -                    (66,901)         
SBITAs (85,055)         (42,528)         -                    (127,583)       

Total accumulated amortization (135,038)       (59,446)         -                    (194,484)       
Total accumulated depreciation
   and amortization (34,317,178)  (4,041,727)    2,199,471     (36,159,434)  

Total capital assets,
  being depreciated, net 52,165,742   285,326        94,337          52,545,405   

Total capital assets, net $ 61,519,139   $ 750,827        $ (19,116)         $ 62,250,850   

Description
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NOTE 5 UNEARNED REVENUE 
 
In accordance with TDA statutes and the California Code of Regulations, Title 21, 
Chapter 3, Subchapter 2, Article 5, Section 6649(b), LTF received for operating 
assistance in excess of the amount that the District is eligible to receive is recorded as 
an unearned revenue and is to be recognized as revenue and a reduction of eligible 
LTF during the following fiscal years.  
 
As of June 30, 2025, the District did not record any unearned LTF revenue, and all 
LTF revenue recognized during each fiscal year was received and earned within that 
same year. 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, the District received $14,184,433 through 
California’s SB 125 Transit Program, administered by the California State 
Transportation Agency (CalSTA). This funding is intended to support eligible capital 
improvements, operational transit activities, and zero-emission initiatives under the 
program’s guidelines. 
 
As of June 30, 2025, $3,117,413 had been expended on eligible activities. The 
remaining unspent balance of $11,067,020 was invested in the California CLASS 
investment pool to preserve liquidity and earn interest until deployment. As of the 
reporting date, the District had earned $447,915 in interest income on the unspent SB 
125 funds. Accordingly, the total unearned revenue reported as of June 30, 2025 is 
$11,514,935, as the related conditions for revenue recognition had not yet been met. 
 
 

NOTE 6 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
Employees annually accrue compensated absence time, consisting of vacation and 
sick time, based on job classification and tenure.  These benefits are recognized as 
liabilities when earned and are expected to be paid or used in future periods. 
 
Effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, the District implemented GASB 101 
– Compensated Absences, which establishes a unified recognition and measurement 
model for all types of compensated absences. Under GASB 101, a liability is 
recognized when the leave is attributable to services already rendered, accumulates 
and carries forward to future periods, and is more likely than not to be used or 
otherwise liquidated. 
 
The District conducted a comprehensive review of its compensated absences 
balances as part of the implementation of GASB 101. This review identified additional 
leave liabilities that met the new recognition criteria. As a result, the District restated 
its beginning net position to reflect the cumulative effect of adopting GASB 101. The 
restatement resulted in a decrease in the beginning net position of $74,964. 
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NOTE 6 COMPENSATED ABSENCES (CONTINUED) 
 
Summary of changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2025 is 
as follows: 
 

 
 

NOTE 7 SUBSCRIPTION-BASED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ARRANGEMENTS 
(SBITA) 
 
The District has entered into IT software subscription agreements with various SBITA 
vendors with subscription terms ranging from 3-5 years. Subscription payable is 
measured at the present value of the subscription payments expected to be made 
during the subscription term. These SBITAs qualify as capital assets for accounting 
purposes and have been recorded at the present values of their future subscription 
payments as of their commencement dates using a discount rate of 2.0%. As a result 
of these SBITAs, the District has recorded these SBITA assets with net book value of 
$68,597 as of June 30, 2025.   
 
Summary of changes in SBITA payable for the year ended June 30, 2025 is as follows: 
 

 
The District reported a total payment of $42,528 on IT software subscription 
agreements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The SBITA payable as of 
June 30, 2025 is $71,150.  

 
The future minimum SBITA obligations and the net present value of these minimum 
subscription payments as of June 30, 2025, were as follows: 
 

 
  

Balance Balance Due Within Due in More
July 1, 2024 Net Change June 30, 2025 One Year Than One Year

$ 1,364,537   $ 325,489      $ 1,690,026     $ 1,337,365   $ 352,661           

Balance Balance Due Within Due in More
July 1, 2024 Additions Payments June 30, 2025 One Year Than One Year

$ 113,860      $ -                  $ (42,710)       $ 71,150          $ 43,778        $ 27,372             

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2026 $ 43,778          $ 1,779            $ 45,557          
2027 27,372          684               28,056          
Total $ 71,150          $ 2,463            $ 73,613          
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NOTE 8 LEASES 
 
The District has entered into two lease agreements with the City of Oxnard for the use 
of building space in support of its operations. 
 
The first agreement commenced on January 1, 2017, for a 10-year term for the use of 
the Customer Service Center. The District pays a monthly base rent of $997 during the 
first year, subject to annual CPI adjustments not to exceed 3.0%.  
 
The second agreement commenced on September 1, 2022, for a 3-year term for the 
use of the Operator Breakroom. Monthly base rent is $518 during the first year, subject 
to annual CPI adjustments not to exceed 5.0%.  
 
The lease liabilities are measured using the same incremental borrowing rate of 
4.00%.  As a result of the leases, the District has recorded right-of-use assets with a 
net book value of $17,166 and lease liabilities of $18,529 as of June 30, 2025.  
 
The District recognized amortization expense of $16,918 and principal payments of 
$17,640 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.   
 
Summary of changes in lease liability for the year ended June 30, 2025, is as follows: 
 

 
The future minimum lease payments and the net present value of these payments as 
of June 30, 2025, are as follows: 
 

 
 

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2025, is as follows: 
 

 
  

Balance Balance Due Within Due in More
July 1, 2024 Additions Reductions June 30, 2025 One Year Than One Year

$ 36,169        $ -                  $ (17,640)       $ 18,529          $ 12,615        $ 5,914               

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2026 $ 12,615        $ 453             $ 13,068        
2027 5,914          53               5,967          
Total $ 18,529        $ 506             $ 19,035        

Balance Additions/ Payments/ Balance Due Within Due in More
Long-Term Debt July 1, 2024 Adjustments Amortization June 30, 2025 One Year Than One Year

Certificates of participation $ 19,695,000 $ -                  $ (455,000)     $ 19,240,000   $ 475,000      $ 18,765,000      
Premium 1,310,957   -                  (54,623)       1,256,334     54,623        1,201,711        
Total $ 21,005,957 $ -                  $ (509,623)     $ 20,496,334   $ 529,623      $ 19,966,711      
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Series 2017 Certificates of Participation (COP)  
On March 2, 2017, the District issued Series 2017 Certificates of Participation 
(Certificates) in the par amount of $22,000,000 for the construction of its new 
operations and maintenance facility. The District pledged farebox revenues to repay 
the certificates. The Certificates were issued with coupon interest rates ranging 
between 4.00% to 5.25% and a net premium on the issuance of $1,716,093, which is 
being amortized over the life of the debt service. The Certificates are scheduled to 
mature on July 1, 2047. Interest payments are due on July 1st and January 1st while 
principal payments ranging between $340,000 to $1,350,000 are due on July 1st each 
year.  
 
If any event of default occurs and is continuing, the Trustee by notice to the District, or 
the owners of at least 25% in principal amount of the Certificates by notice to the 
District and the Trustee (except for an event of default as described under clause (c) 
of Section 8.01 of the Lease Agreement, for which no such notice is required), may 
declare the principal and accrued interest with respect to the Certificates to be due and 
payable immediately. Upon a declaration, the principal and accrued interest to the date 
of the Trustee’s declaration of acceleration on the Certificates shall be due and 
payable.  
 
Series 2017 Certificates of Participation (COP) (Continued) 
The Trustee may, and upon the request of owners of a majority in principal amount of 
the Certificates shall, rescind an acceleration and its consequences if all existing 
Events of Default have been cured or waived, if the rescission would not conflict with 
any judgment or decree, and if all payments due the Trustee have been made. As of 
June 30, 2025, the balance of the certificates of participation is $19,240,000, and the 
balance of the unamortized premium is $1,256,334. 
 
Annual debt service requirements for the certificates of participation are as follows: 
 

 
  

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2026 $ 475,000      $ 909,506      $ 1,384,506   
2027 495,000      887,038      1,382,038   
2028 520,000      861,663      1,381,663   
2029 550,000      834,225      1,384,225   
2030 580,000      804,563      1,384,563   

2031-2035 3,360,000   3,559,956   6,919,956   
2036-2040 4,140,000   2,779,225   6,919,225   
2041-2045 5,265,000   1,648,125   6,913,125   
2046-2048 3,855,000   295,625      4,150,625   

Total $ 19,240,000 $ 12,579,926 $ 31,819,926 
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NOTE 10 PENSION PLAN 
 
Summary  
The following balances on the balance sheet will be addressed in this footnote as 
follows: 
 

 
 
Qualified employees are covered under a multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan maintained by agencies of the State of California known as the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), or "The Plan". 
 
A. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN  
 
Plan Description  
The District contributes to the CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan, an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 
participating public entities within the State of California. 
 
Benefits provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and 
GCTD ordinance. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained 
from https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publication. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
As of June 30, 2024 (Measurement Date), the following members were covered by the 
benefit terms: 
 

 
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the 
District’s cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered 
by CalPERS. Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by state statute and 
District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full 
description of the pension plans, including benefit provisions, assumptions, and 
membership information, available on the CalPERS website. 
 
  

Pension related deferred outflows $ 6,804,495          
Net pension liability 17,527,808        
Pension related deferred inflows 317,560             

Miscellaneous
Plan Members Plans

Active members 184                    
Transferred and terminated members 36                      
Retired members and beneficiaries 138                    

Total plan members 358                    
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NOTE 10 PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Benefits Provided (Continued) 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living 
adjustments, and death benefits to Plan members, who must be public employees and 
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-
time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 
50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for nonindustrial disability 
benefits after five years of service. The death benefit is one of the following the Basic 
Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. 
The cost-of-living adjustments for each Plan are applied as specified by the Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2025, are summarized as 
follows: 
 

 
 
Contributions  
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires 
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an 
annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a 
change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ 
annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated 
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The 
employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined 
rate and the contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change 
if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution 
requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution 
requirements are classified as plan member contributions. 
 

  

Classic PEPRA
Tier 1 Tier 2

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5-years or service 5-years or service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 and up 52 - 67 and up
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required member contribution rates 8.00% 8.00%
Required employer contribution rates - FY 2025 10.95% 10.95%

Miscellaneous Plans
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NOTE 10 PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

Contributions (Continued) 
Contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, were as follows: 
 

 
B. PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSES, AND DEFERRED 

OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability  
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2024 (the measurement date), the total 
pension liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2023, total pension 
liability. The June 30, 2024, total pension liability was based on the following actuarial 
methods and assumptions: 
 

 
 
Long‐term Expected Rate of Return  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS considered both short- 
and long-term market return expectations. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ 
asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the next 
20 years using a building-block approach. The expected rate of return was then 
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses of 10 Basis points.  

  

Contributions - employer $ 3,568,677            
Contributions - employee 1,006,895            

Total contributions $ 4,575,572            

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the
requirement of GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.30%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.30% until Purchasing

Power Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing
Power applies, 2.30% thereafter
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NOTE 10 PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

B. PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSES, AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS 
(CONTINUED) 
 

Long‐term Expected Rate of Return (Continued) 
The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows: 
 

 
 

Discount Rate  
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions 
from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. 
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate  
The following presents the net pension liability/(asset) of the Plan as of the 
measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percentage point lower (5.90%) or one percentage point higher (7.90%) than the 
current rate: 
 

 
  

Asset Class
Assumed Asset 

Allocation Real Return 1,2

Global Equity - Cap-weighted 30.0% 4.54%
Global Equity - Non-Cap-weighted 12.0% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.0% 7.28%
Treasury 5.0% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.0% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.0% 1.56%
High Yield 5.0% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5.0% 2.48%
Private Debt 5.0% 3.57%
Real Assets 15.0% 3.21%
Leverage -5.0% -0.59%

100.0%

1 An expected inflation rate of 2.3% is used for this period.
2 Figures are based on Asset Liability Management study.

Discount Rate - 1%Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
Plan Type 5.90% Rate 6.90% 7.90%

CalPERS - Miscellaneous Plan $ 28,747,203        $ 17,527,808        $ 8,275,011               

Net Pension Liability at June 30, 2024 (MD)
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NOTE 10 PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
B. PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSES, AND DEFERRED 

OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS 
(CONTINUED) 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued CalPERS financial report and can be obtained from CalPERS’ 
website under Forms and Publications. 
 
Changes in Net Pension Liability  
The following table shows the changes in the net pension liability for the Miscellaneous 
Plan over the 2024 measurement period: 
 

 
 

  

Plan Total Plan Fiduciary Change in Plan Net
Pension Liability Net Position Pension Liability

Balance as of June 30, 2023 (Measurement Date) $ 76,541,808         $ 59,071,574      $ 17,470,234           
Changes in the year:
Service cost 2,368,359           –                      2,368,359             
Interest on the total pension liability 5,366,984           –                      5,366,984             
Changes of assumptions –                         –                      –                           
Changes in benefit terms –                         –                      –                           
Differences between expected and 
    actual experience 1,867,747           –                      1,867,747             
Benefit payments, including refunds of member

contributions (3,622,725)          (3,622,725)       –                           
Contributions - employer –                         2,950,745        (2,950,745)            
Contributions - employee –                         1,006,895        (1,006,895)            
Net investment income –                         5,635,943        (5,635,943)            
Administrative expense –                         (48,067)            48,067                  
Net Changes 5,980,365           5,922,791        57,574                  
Balance as of June 30, 2024 (Measurement Date) $ 82,522,173         $ 64,994,365      $ 17,527,808           
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NOTE 10 PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
B. PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSES, AND DEFERRED 

OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS 
(CONTINUED) 

 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized pension expense of 
$3,949,341. As of June 30, 2025, the District reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

 
  

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Account Description of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions made after the
measurement date $ 3,568,677            $ –                          

Adjustment due to differences in proportions
Differences between expected and

actual experience 1,621,233            (317,560)              
Differences between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 935,413               –                          

Changes in assumptions 679,172               –                          
Total Deferred Outflows/

(Inflows) of Resources $ 6,804,495            $ (317,560)              

June 30, 2025
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NOTE 10 PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
B. PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSES, AND DEFERRED 

OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS 
(CONTINUED) 

 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (Continued) 
An amount of $3,568,677 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2026. Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as a reduction to pension expense as follows: 
 

 
C. PAYABLE TO THE PENSION PLANS 
 
As of June 30, 2025, the District reported no payables for outstanding contributions to 
the CalPERS pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2025. 
 
 

NOTE 11 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
Summary  
The following balances on the balance sheet will be addressed in this footnote as 
follows: 
 

 
  

Deferred 
Outflows/

Amortization Period (Inflows) of
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 Resources

2026 $ 848,920             
2027 2,095,764          
2028 238,060             
2029 (264,486)            
Total $ 2,918,258          

Description 2025 2024

OPEB related deferred outflows $ 1,377,476           $ 1,369,437           
Net other post-employment benefits liability 1,756,300           1,540,411           
OPEB related deferred inflows 972,557              942,307              
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NOTE 11 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 
 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE OPEB PLAN 
 
Plan Description  
The District provides retiree healthcare benefits to employees who retire with CalPERS 
pension benefits immediately upon retirement from the District. The District’s OPEB 
Plan is a single-employer plan. Eligible retirees and dependents may elect lifetime 
coverage through the District’s healthcare plans. The District pays a portion of the cost 
of health insurance for retirees enrolled in any group plan offered by CalPERS, subject 
to certain restrictions determined by the District. Retirees pay the portion of the 
premium not paid by the District. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may 
be obtained from https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publication. 
 
The District has elected to use the entry age normal cost method with unfunded 
liabilities amortized over 30 years, and continues to fund on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
 
Benefits Provided  
The District offers lifetime post-employment medical coverage to employees who meet 
the eligibility requirements. Eligibility for retiree health benefits requires retirement from 
the District on or after age 50 (age 52 for PEPRA New hires) with at least five years of 
CalPERS service. Eligible employees will receive the PEMHCA minimum benefit. The 
PRMHCA minimum amount for 2023 is $151 monthly with annual increases. A survivor 
of a CalPERS retiree is eligible for benefits if the survivor qualifies for a monthly 
survivor’s pension. 
 
Employees Covered By Benefit Terms  
As of June 30, 2024, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

 
  

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently
receiving benefit payments 19                   

Active plan members 175                 
Total $ 194                 
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NOTE 11 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 
 
A. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE OPEB PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Funding Policy  
The District's funding policy is to contribute to the Trust Fund when possible and pay 
benefits outside of the Trust Fund until the Trust Fund is fully funded.  
 
The ADC is the sum of the service cost and the amortization of the net OPEB liability, 
plus interest (if applicable). For payment of the ADC, however, it comprises three parts: 
the benefit payments paid outside of the Trust Fund, the credit for the implicit subsidy, 
and the contribution to the Trust Fund. If the total of the service cost and amortization 
is less than the total of the benefit payments and implicit subsidy (if benefit payments 
are paid outside of the Trust Fund), the contribution to the Trust Fund will be negative 
and is typically set to zero. 
 
The plan's funding policy will produce high contribution amounts until the unfunded 
amount is fully amortized in 2043, and then will reduce to an amount to cover the 
service cost, with interest, going forward. 
 
Contributions  
The District establishes and amends the contribution requirements. The contribution 
is based on pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2024, the measurement period, the District’s contributions totaling $59,114 included 
$0 placed in the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust Fund (CERBT) irrevocable 
trust, $40,872 in current year premium payments, and an implied subsidy of $45,246. 
 
B. NET OPEB LIABILITY 
 
The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2024, and the total OPEB 
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. 
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NOTE 11 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 
 
A. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE OPEB PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Actuarial assumptions  
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2024, actuarial valuation was determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 

 
 
Discount Rate  
GASB 75 allows the use of a discount rate that is up to the expected long-term rate of 
return on the assets in the Trust set aside to pay benefits, if the plan sponsor makes 
regular contributions to the Trust such that the assets are not depleted at any point in 
the future. If the Plan's actuary determines that contributions are not sufficient to keep 
the Trust funded, a blend of the long-term rate of return and the yield or index rate for 
20-year, tax-exempt municipal bonds will be used for the periods when the Trust funds 
are not sufficient to cover benefit payments. Based on this requirement, and with the 
approval of the plan sponsor, the discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability 
is 4.43%. 
  

Valuation Date June 30, 2024
Measurement Date June 30, 2024
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percentage of payroll
Asset Valuation Method Fair value of assets as of the measurement date
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 4.43%
Long-Term Expected

Rate of Return of Investments 6.40%
Inflation 2.30%
Payroll Increases 2.80%
Healthcare Trend Rates Pre-65 - 7.74% trending down annually 0.25% to

6.06% by 2030, and 3.94% by 2075
Post-65 - 5.10% trending down 0.25% annually
to 4.96% by 2029 and later

Morbidity CalPERS 2021 Study
Mortality CalPERS 2021 Study
Disability CalPERS 2021 Study
Retirement 2021 CalPERS Public Agency Miscellaneous

experience study;
2.7% @55 and 2.0% @62

Percent Married 80% of future retirees would enroll a spouse
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NOTE 11 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 
 
A. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE OPEB PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Discount Rate (Continued)  
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

 
The long-term expected rates of return by asset class are based on the target asset 
allocation outlined in the investment policy for CERBT Strategy 1. These assumptions 
reflect capital market expectations and are cited in CalPERS Investment Committee’s 
March 2022 Agenda Item 7b, which assumes an expected inflation rate of 2.30%. 
 
B. CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY  
 

 
Changes of Assumptions  
As of June 30, 2024, the measurement period, the discount rate increased from 4.31% 
to 4.43%.  
 
Change of Benefit Terms  
As of June 30, 2024, the measurement period, there were no changes in benefits.  
 
  

Investment Class
Target 

Allocation

Long Term 
Expected 

Real Rate of 
Return

Global Equity 49.00% 6.80%
Fixed Income 23.00% 3.70%
TIPS 5.00% 2.80%
REITs 20.00% 6.00%
Others (Commodities) 3.00% 3.40%

Total Plan Fiduciary Net
OPEB Liability Net Position OPEB Liability

Balance at July 1, 2023 $ 2,343,244       $ 802,833          $ 1,540,411           
Changes for the year:

Service cost 179,501          -                 179,501              
Interest 107,470          -                 107,470              
Changes in assumptions 222,920          -                 222,920              
Changes in experience (146,817)        -                 (146,817)             
Changes in benefit terms -                 -                 -                      
Employer contributions -                 59,114            (59,114)               
Actual investment income -                 88,333            (88,333)               
Administrative expense -                 (262)               262                     
Benefit payments            (59,114) (59,114)          -                      

Net changes 303,960          88,071            215,889              
Balance at June 30, 2024 $ 2,647,204       $ 890,904          $ 1,756,300           

Increase (Decrease)
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NOTE 11 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 
 
B. CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY (CONTINUED) 
 
Subsequent Events  
There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in 
this disclosure. 
 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate  
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the 
District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount 
rate: 
 

 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates  
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the 
District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend 
rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the 
current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

 
OPEB plan fiduciary net position  
Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued Classified Employees Retirement Benefits Trust (CERBT) financial 
report. 
  

1% Increase Discount Rate 1% Decrease
5.43% 4.43% 3.43%

District Plan $ 1,475,930      $ 1,756,300      $ 2,086,553      

June 30, 2024 (MD)

1% Decrease Healthcare Cost 1% Increase
6.74% 7.74% 8.74%

District Plan $ 1,394,012      $ 1,756,300      $ 2,205,389      

June 30, 2024 (MD)
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NOTE 11 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 
 
C. OPEB EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO OPEB  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized OPEB expense of $324,218. 
As of June 30, 2025, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

 
The differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are 
amortized over five years. The District reported $86,118 as deferred outflows of 
resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2026. 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows: 
 

 
  

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Account Description of Resources of Resources

OPEB contributions made after the
measurement date $ 86,118                $ –                         

Changes in assumptions 1,129,705           (599,343)             
Differences between expected and

actual experience 152,671              (373,214)             
Differences between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 8,982                  –                         

Total Deferred Outflows/
(Inflows) of Resources $ 1,377,476           $ (972,557)             

June 30, 2025

Deferred 
Outflows/

Amortization Period (Inflows) of
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 Resources

2026 $ 80,571            
2027 108,604          
2028 73,071            
2029 73,708            
2030 81,743            

Thereafter (98,896)          
Total $ 318,801          
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NOTE 12 NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Net investment in capital assets consisted of the following as of June 30, 2025: 
 

 
 

NOTE 13 UNRESTRICTED DEFICIT 
 
As of June 30, 2025, the District had an unrestricted net deficit of ($10,489,043). Due 
to the nature of the deficit from the implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 (net 
pension liability) and No. 75 (net OPEB liability) in the prior fiscal years, the District will 
continue to make its actuarially determined contributions to CalPERS and annually 
review its outstanding net pension and net OPEB liability funding requirements for 
future periods to reduce its deficit position. 
 
 

NOTE 14 STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE (STA) FUNDING 
 
STA funding comes from the Public Transportation Act (PTA), which derives its 
revenue from the state gasoline sales tax. These funds are designated as discretionary 
or formula. The former is appropriated by the legislature. The latter is a formula based 
on population and fares generated. The District utilizes STA funding to fund a 
combination of operations and capital asset purchases.  
 
STA funding received by the District for FY2025 to fund operations was $367,061. 
There was $121,051 of STA funding receivable recognized in due from other 
governmental agencies at June 30, 2025. 
 

  

Net investment in capital assets:
Capital assets - not being depreciated $ 9,705,445       $        
Capital assets, net - being depreciated 52,545,405          
Unspent debt proceeds 1,418,102              
Due in one year:

SBITA payable (43,778)                    
Lease liability (12,615)                    
Certificates of participation (529,623)                

Due in more than one year:
SBITA payable (27,372)                    
Lease liability (5,914)                      
Certificates of participation (19,966,711)      

Total restricted from debt proceeds $ 43,082,939     $      
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NOTE 15 OTHER STATE ASSISTANCE FUNDING 
 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)  
LCTOP is one of several programs that are part of the Transit, Affordable Housing, 
and Sustainable Communities Program established by the California Legislature in 
2014 by Senate Bill 862. The LCTOP was created to provide operating and capital 
assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve 
mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities. Approved projects in 
LCTOP will support new or expanded bus or rail services, expand intermodal transit 
facilities, and may include equipment acquisition, fueling, maintenance, and other 
costs to operate those services or facilities, with each project reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions. Senate Bill 862 continuously appropriates 5% of annual auction 
proceeds to the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund for LCTOP, beginning in fiscal year 
2016. The District requested and received funding for a project in the year ended June 
30, 2025. 
 
State of Good Repair (SGR)  
The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, Senate Bill (SB) 1 (Chapter 5, 
Statutes of 2017), signed by the Governor on April 28, 2017, includes a program that 
will provide additional revenues for transit infrastructure repair and service 
improvements. The District received $50,406 in SGR funding for fiscal year 2025, 
which was used for engine replacements. There was $10,152 of SGR funding 
recognized as due from other governmental agencies as of June 30, 2025. 
 
Other State Assistance received and utilized for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, 
was as follows: 
 

 
 

NOTE 16 DEFERRED COMPENSATION SAVINGS PLAN 
 
For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in a 457 Deferred 
Compensation Program. The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred 
compensation for public employees who elect to participate in the Program. Generally, 
eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their salary until termination, 
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are paid or otherwise 
made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred 
salary for income tax purposes. 
  

LCTOP SGR Total
Beginning net position, July 1, 2024 $ –             $ 10,906    $ 10,906    
Proceeds received 77,359    48,522    125,881  
Capital assets program purchases:

Route 23 operations (77,359)   –             (77,359)   
Replacement buses/engines –             (49,276)   (49,276)   

Total capital asset program purchases (77,359)   (49,276)   (126,635) 

Change in net position –             (754)        (754)        
Ending net position, June 30, 2025 $ –             $ 10,152    $ 10,152    
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NOTE 16 DEFERRED COMPENSATION SAVINGS PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Federal law requires that deferred compensation assets be held in trust for the 
exclusive benefit of participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this 
legislation. Therefore, these assets are not the legal property of the District, and are 
not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors. 
 
The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. 
Since the District has little administrative involvement and does not perform the 
investing function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are not shown on the 
accompanying financial statements. 
 
 

NOTE 17 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss, including torts, theft, damage to, and 
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural 
disasters. The District has purchased various insurance policies to manage potential 
liabilities arising from the previously named sources.  
 
The District participates in the California Transit Indemnity Pool (CalTIP), a joint 
powers agency created to provide liability and physical damage insurance to its 
members through an insurance pool. The District holds property insurance and general 
and automotive liability with CalTIP up to $25 million on liability with a $25,000 self-
insurance retention.  
 
The District purchases blanket insurance coverage from commercial brokers for the 
following: 
 

 
 
The District’s employee practices liability insurance coverage is $2.0 million and 
handled through Navigators Insurance. Also, the District participates in the California 
State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA), a joint powers 
agency created to provide workers’ compensation insurance to its members through a 
risk retention insurance pool. The District holds workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage with CSAC-EIA up to statutory limits. Some of the above insurance policies 
are subject to various deductibles. 
 

  

Insurance coverage limits: 2025
Building and structures $ 32,127,196     
Business and property 3,473,969       
Employment practices 2,000,000       
Crime 2,200,000       
Cyber liability 1,000,000       
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NOTE 17 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 
Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three 
fiscal years, and there were no reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during 
the years ending June 30, 2025. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss 
has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the 
respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims incurred but 
not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2025. 
 
 

NOTE 18 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Excluded Leases – Short‐Term Leases and De Minimis Leases  
The District does not recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources 
for short-term leases. Short-term leases are leases with a maximum possible term 
under the lease contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, 
regardless of their likelihood of being exercised. 
 
Also, de minimis lessor or lessee leases are certain leases (i.e., room rental, copiers, 
printers, postage machines) that, regardless of their lease contract period, are de 
minimis with regard to their aggregate total dollar amount to the financial statements 
as a whole. 
 
Construction Contracts  
The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, 
improvement, or modification of District vehicles and equipment, as well as buildings 
and land improvements. The financing of such construction contracts is being provided 
by a combination of debt, the District’s replacement reserves, and federal and state 
grants. As of June 30, 2025, the District has a balance of $724,384 in construction-in-
progress for two projects. The first project for paratransit buses was completed in early 
fiscal year 2025, and the other is for the Fuel Cell Electric Bus (FCEB) and related 
projects, which is estimated to be completed in fiscal year 2027. The cost of the FCEB 
and related projects to date is $258,883, with the remaining cost to complete the 
project estimated to be approximately $18,000,000. 
 
Operating Fare Revenue Ratio  
To provide relief to transit operators, the State of California has suspended 
enforcement of the California regulations that require that a transit service claimant for 
TDA funds have a system-wide ratio of fare and local revenues to operating cost of at 
least 20% or that the claimant realize a farebox recovery ratio (FBRR) of 20% for fixed 
route passenger service and 10% for paratransit service. GCTD Met both farebox 
recovery ratios with 20% for fixed route and 20% for paratransit. The combined farebox 
ratio was 20%. 
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NOTE 18 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Grant Awards  
Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such 
an audit could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor agencies for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grant. Management of the District 
believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant. 
 
Litigation  
In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from 
outside parties. After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate 
outcome of such matters, if any, will not materially affect its financial condition. 
 
 

NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
In accordance with the provisions surrounding subsequent events, the District’s 
management has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or 
disclosure through REPORT DATE, and the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued.
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Fiscal Year FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY  2020 FY 2019 FY  2018 FY  2017 FY 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Total pension liability:
Service cost $ 2,368,359 $ 2,229,152 $ 2,159,296 $ 1,893,647 $ 1,882,223 $ 1,878,369 $ 1,830,138 $ 1,829,423      $ 1,569,279 $ 1,569,756 
Interest 5,366,984 4,978,252 4,699,885 4,538,545 4,245,655 3,988,180 3,701,748 3,498,403      3,299,586 3,107,585 
Changes in assumptions - 356,325 2,377,097 - (344,098) 2,867,527      - (742,987) 
Differences between expected and actual 1,867,747 95,308 (1,111,456) 917,859 348,824 856,414 131,794 5,749             (243,014) (621,259) 
Benefit payments (3,622,725) (3,399,201) (3,223,633) (3,161,478) (2,748,719) (2,483,737) (2,329,043) (2,214,742)     (1,935,932) (1,912,604) 

Net change in total pension liability 5,980,365      4,259,836      4,901,189      4,188,573      3,727,983      4,239,226      2,990,539      5,986,360      2,689,919      1,400,491      

Total pension liability - beginning 76,541,808    72,281,972    67,380,783    63,192,210    59,464,227    55,225,001    52,234,462    46,248,102    43,558,183    42,157,692    

Total pension liability - ending 82,522,173    76,541,808    72,281,972    67,380,783    63,192,210    59,464,227    55,225,001    52,234,462    46,248,102    43,558,183    

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer 2,950,745      2,829,745      2,498,252      2,412,586      2,113,162      1,899,815      1,721,226      1,635,904      1,585,400      1,301,520      
Contributions - employee 1,006,895      911,503         822,236         885,976         797,278         798,356         786,067         722,714         731,597         660,103         
Net investment earnings 5,635,943      3,449,290      (4,521,405)     11,033,027    2,311,088      2,865,566      3,391,187      4,019,509      171,677         782,090         
Benefit payments (3,622,725)     (3,399,201)     (3,223,633)     (3,161,478)     (2,748,719)     (2,483,737)     (2,329,043)     (2,214,742)     (1,935,932)     (1,912,604)     
Net plan to plan resource movement -                     -                     (100.00)          
Administrative expense (48,067.00)     (40,680.00)     (37,241.00)     (48,610.00)     (65,206.00)     (30,832.00)     (62,043.00)     (52,715.00)     (21,436)          (39,582.00)     
Other miscellaneous income/(expense) -                     -                     100.00           (117,820.00)   -                     

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 5,922,791      3,750,657      (4,461,791)     11,121,501    2,407,603      3,049,268      3,389,474      4,110,670      531,306         791,527         

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 59,071,574    55,320,917    59,782,708    48,661,207    46,253,604    43,204,336    39,814,862    35,704,192    35,172,886    34,381,359    

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 64,994,365    59,071,574    55,320,917    59,782,708    48,661,207    46,253,604    43,204,336    39,814,862    35,704,192    35,172,886    

District's net pension liability $ 17,527,808    $ 17,470,234    $ 16,961,055    $ 7,598,075      $ 14,531,003    $ 13,210,623    $ 12,020,665    $ 12,419,600    $ 10,543,910    $ 8,385,297      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 78.76% 77.18% 76.53% 88.72% 77.01% 77.78% 78.23% 76.22% 77.20% 80.75%

Covered payroll $ 12,934,782    $ 11,997,589    $ 11,275,697    $ 10,920,689    $ 10,670,198    $ 10,526,023    $ 10,177,043    $ 9,898,406      $ 9,268,128      $ 8,714,871      

District's net pension liability as a percentage 
of covered payroll 135.51% 145.61% 150.42% 69.58% 136.18% 125.50% 118.12% 125.47% 113.77% 96.22%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of Benefit Terms: The figures above generally include any liability impact that may have resulted from voluntary 
benefit changes that occurred on or before the Measurement Date. However, offers of Two Years Additional Service 
Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred after the Valuation Date are not included in the  figures above, unless the 
liability impact is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.

In 2022, SB 1168 increased the standard retiree lump sum death benefit from $500 to $2,000 for any death occurring on 
or after July 1, 2023. The impact, if any, is included in the changes of benefit terms.

Changes of Assumptions: There were no assumption changes in 2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date 
(June 30, 2022 measurement date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In determining the 
long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations  as well as the 
expected pension fund cash flows. In addition, demographic assumptions and the price inflation assumption were changed 
in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount 
rate was 7.15% for measurement dates June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2021, 7.65%  for measurement dates June 30, 
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Fiscal Year FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY  2020 FY 2019 FY  2018 FY  2017 FY 2016
Actuarially determined contributions $ 3,568,677   $ 2,950,745   $ 2,829,745   $ 2,498,252   $ 2,412,586   $ 2,113,162   $ 1,899,815   $ 1,721,226   $ 1,635,904   $ 1,585,400   

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
  determined contribution (3,568,677)  (2,950,745)  (2,829,745)  (2,498,252)  (2,412,586)  (2,113,162)  (1,899,815)  (1,721,226)  (1,635,904)  (1,585,400)  

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  

Covered payroll $ 15,690,466 $ 12,934,782 $ 11,997,589 $ 11,275,697 $ 10,920,689 $ 10,670,198 $ 10,526,023 $ 10,177,043 $ 9,898,406   $ 9,268,128   

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered 
  payroll 22.74% 22.81% 23.59% 22.16% 22.09% 19.80% 18.05% 16.91% 16.53% 17.11%
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Fiscal Year FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY  2020 FY 2019 FY  2018*
Measurement Date June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Total OPEB liability:
Service cost $ 179,501 $ 158,277 $ 193,687 $ 44,855 $ 43,130 $ 54,778 $ 53,312 $ 51,885           
Interest 107,470 115,724 96,916 61,956 54,999 75,574 68,455 61,713           
Changes in assumptions 222,920 (377,221) (400,589) 1,548,465 - - -                     
Differences between expected and actual (146,817) 90,898 (20,774) 123,071 7,230 (398,490) -                     
Changes of benefit terms - - - -                     
Benefit payments (59,114) (59,065) (59,375) (27,158) (24,618) (22,526) (19,083) (18,349)          

Net change in plan investment liability 303,960         (71,387)          (190,135)        1,751,189      80,741           (290,664)        102,684         95,249           

Total pension liability - beginning 2,343,244      2,414,631      2,604,766      853,577         772,836         1,063,500      960,816         865,567         

Total pension liability - ending 2,647,204      2,343,244      2,414,631      2,604,766      853,577         772,836         1,063,500      960,816         

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer 59,114           59,065           59,375           27,158           24,618           21,218           86,292           92,280           
Net investment earnings 88,333           48,466           (116,669)        188,005         23,350           38,423           41,336           41,882           
Administrative expense (262)               (219)               (221)               (259)               (323)               (133)               (957)               (356)               
Benefit payments (59,114)          (59,065)          (59,375)          (27,158)          (24,618)          (21,218)          (19,083)          (18,349)          

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 88,071           48,247           (116,890)        187,746         23,027           38,290           107,588         115,457         

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 802,833         754,586         871,476         683,730         660,703         622,413         514,825         399,368         

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 890,904         802,833         754,586         871,476         683,730         660,703         622,413         514,825         

District's OPEB liability $ 1,756,300      $ 1,540,411      $ 1,660,045      $ 1,733,290      $ 169,847         $ 112,133         $ 441,087         $ 445,991         

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
  the total pension liability 33.65% 34.26% 31.25% 33.46% 80.10% 85.49% 58.52% 53.58%

Covered payroll $ 14,047,643    $ 11,495,703    $ 13,299,813    $ 10,920,689    $ 10,628,408    $ 10,384,621    $ 10,244,305    $ 9,904,665      

District's net OPEB liability as a percentage of 
  covered payroll 12.50% 13.40% 12.48% 15.87% 1.60% 1.08% 4.31% 4.50%

*Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only eight years are shown.

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes
  Measurement Date June 30, 2019 There were no changes of benefits terms.
  Measurement Date June 30, 2020 There were no changes of benefits terms.
  Measurement Date June 30, 2021 There were no changes of benefits terms.
  Measurement Date June 30, 2022 There were no changes of benefits terms.
  Measurement Date June 30, 2023 There were no changes of benefits terms.
  Measurement Date June 30, 2024 There were no changes of benefits terms.
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Fiscal Year FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY  2020 FY 2019 FY  2018
Actuarially determined contribution $ 230,212 $ 230,001 $ 180,301 $ 173,240 N/A ** N/A N/A N/A
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
  determined contribution 86,118 59,114 59,065 59,375 24,618 21,218 86,292 92,280         

Contribution deficiency (excess) 316,330       170,887       121,236       113,865       N/A N/A N/A N/A

Covered employee payroll 14,047,643  11,495,703  13,299,813  10,920,689  10,628,408  10,384,621  10,244,305  9,904,665    

Contributions a percentage of covered-
  employee payroll 2.25% 1.49% 0.91% 1.04% N/A N/A N/A N/A

Valuation date 6/30/2024 6/30/2023 6/30/2021 6/30/2021 6/30/2019

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal, level percentage of payroll
Amortization method Straight-line amortization over the Average Future Working Lifetime for assumption changes and experience gains/losses
Amortization period Asset gains/losses are amortized over 5 years.
Asset valuation method Market value of assets as of the measurement date
Inflation 2.30%
Projected salary increases 2.80%
Discount Rate 5.43%
Retirement age 2.7% @55 and 2.0% @62
Mortality CalPERS 2021 Experience Study

  *Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of implementation for GASB 75. therefore, only eight years are shown.
** There were no actuarially determined Contributions calculated in GASB 75 reports prior to fiscal year June 30, 2022.
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Gold Coast Transit District 
Schedule of Changes in Local Transportation Funding of the District 

Years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 
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2025  2024
Revenues

Local transportation funding $ 17,773,797  $ 19,367,275  
Investment earnings 16,239         17,236         

Total revenues 17,790,036  19,384,511  

Expenses
Operating 17,729,954  20,269,631  
Transfers out debt payments 129,556       333,615       

Total expenses 17,859,510  20,603,246  
Change in net position (69,474)        (1,218,735)   

Net position:
Beginning of year 1,528,235    2,746,970    

End of year $ 1,458,761    $ 1,528,235    
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This part of the District’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and 
required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health. 
 
 PAGE 
  
Financial Trends  

These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the District’s 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 65 

  
Revenue Capacity  

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most 
significant own-source revenue, water sales. 70 

  
Demographic Information  

This schedule offers demographic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the District’s financial activities take place. 72 

  
Operating Information  

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the service 
the District provides. 77 
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Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Fiscal Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Current Assets 15,531,471$      11,335,824$      9,882,036$        8,364,115$        7,644,376$        13,528,315$      12,445,955$      12,529,170$      12,431,821$      12,111,656$      17,908,697$      

Noncurrent Assets 33,964$             8,087,811$        31,046,771$      49,660,043$      61,511,570$      5,915,487$        5,922,727$        5,483,819$        2,533,632$        2,601,393$        2,697,894$        

Capital Assets 22,375,098$      24,938,691$      31,814,958$      27,500,223$      9,300,205$        65,195,340$      63,382,037$      63,733,870$      62,311,614$      61,519,139$      62,250,850$      

Total Assets 37,940,533$  44,362,326$  72,743,765$  85,524,381$  78,456,151$  84,639,142$  81,750,719$  81,746,859$  77,277,067$  76,232,188$  82,857,441$  

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,301,199$        3,062,166$        4,785,604$        6,160,099$        4,719,702$        3,392,613$        3,528,402$        5,328,340$        9,692,621$        8,868,085$        8,181,971$        

Current Liabilities 7,406,526$        10,432,628$      9,983,839$        13,600,652$      6,792,702$        5,382,388$        4,130,059$        3,887,501$        3,645,425$        3,693,632$        14,820,739$      

Noncurrent Liabilities 8,095,313$        8,765,770$        34,633,007$      36,677,528$      35,739,868$      36,212,987$      36,849,923$      31,078,369$      39,854,316$      39,902,893$      39,636,766$      

Total Liabilities 15,501,839$  19,198,398$  44,616,846$  50,278,180$  42,532,570$  41,595,375$  40,979,982$  34,965,870$  43,499,741$  43,596,525$  54,457,505$  

Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,338,334$        2,785,253$        2,045,261$        2,234,625$        1,651,368$        758,789$           415,413$           5,869,851$        1,513,795$        1,524,499$        1,290,117$        

Net Investment in Capital Assets 22,375,098$      24,938,691$      29,389,675$      43,538,224$      39,419,681$      42,360,891$      40,977,211$      41,772,869$      40,589,914$      40,363,153$      41,664,837$      

Restricted 6,562,550$        8,087,811$        9,426,367$        9,113,669$        7,849,670$        5,944,030$        5,909,245$        5,416,007$        2,491,956$        2,601,393$        2,697,894$        

Unrestricted (7,536,089)$       (7,585,661)$       (7,948,780)$       (13,480,218)$     (8,277,436)$       (2,627,330)$       (3,002,730)$       (949,399)$          (1,125,719)$       (2,985,297)$       (9,070,941)$       

Total Net Position 21,401,559$  25,440,841$  30,867,262$  39,171,675$  38,991,915$  45,677,591$  43,883,726$  46,239,477$  41,956,151$  39,979,249$  35,291,790$  
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Fiscal Years 2015 to 2025 
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Fiscal Year 2015 2025 % Change $ Change
Current Assets 15,531,471$ 17,908,697$   15% 2,377,226$   
Noncurrent Assets 22,409,062$ 64,948,744$   190% 42,539,682$ 
Deferred Outflows or Resources 1,301,199$   8,181,971$     529% 6,880,772$   

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 39,241,732$     91,039,412$      132% 51,797,680$     

Current Liabilities 7,406,526$   14,820,739$   100% 7,414,213$   
Noncurrent Liabilities 8,095,313$   39,636,766$   390% 31,541,453$ 
Deferred Inflows or Resources 2,338,334$   1,290,117$     -45% (1,048,217)$  

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 17,840,173$     55,747,622$      212% 37,907,449$     

Net Investment in Capital Assets 22,375,098$ 43,082,939$   93% 20,707,841$ 
Restricted 6,562,550$   2,697,894$     -59% (3,864,656)$  
Unrestricted (7,536,089)$  (10,489,043)$ 39% (2,952,954)$  

Total Net Position 21,401,559$     35,291,790$      65% 13,890,231$     
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Gold Coast Transit District 
Detailed Revenues and Expenses 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Fiscal Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

OPERATING REVENUES & (EXPENDITURES)
Operating Revenues 3,369,769$    3,482,127$    3,403,877$    3,357,045$    3,481,222$    1,242,945$    4,459,112$    3,384,914$    3,430,505$    3,721,985      
Operating Expenditures (20,547,884)$ (22,113,345)$ (23,853,669)$ (25,387,071)$ (27,671,728)$ (26,602,341)$ (28,198,098)$ (31,761,399)$ (34,495,188)$ (36,355,276)$ 
Depreciation Expense (2,843,634)$   (2,919,180)$   (2,801,731)$   (2,569,688)$   (3,384,578)$   (3,797,278)$   (3,393,698)$   (3,630,346)$   (3,801,267)$   (4,041,727)$   

Total Operating Income/(Loss) (20,021,749)$ (21,550,398)$ (23,251,523)$ (24,599,714)$ (27,575,084)$ (29,156,674)$ (27,132,684)$ (32,006,831)$ (34,865,950)$ (36,675,018)$ 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES & (EXPENDITURES)
Local Transportation Funds, Net 10,601,709$  13,338,152$  13,804,353$  15,384,232$  15,760,751$  14,596,719$  13,624,467$  19,024,255$  19,367,275$  18,327,324$  
State and Local Funds 207,973$       153,094$       180,450$       709,242$       1,275,869$    523,605$       1,251,201$    1,397,759$    2,555,522$    6,132,005$    
Federal Funds 4,930,720$    4,335,128$    4,347,696$    4,341,003$    16,723,497$  12,913,641$  15,497,082$  7,745,225$    11,062,007$  7,908,107$    
Investment Earnings 15,815$         22,295$         43,227$         44,887$         92,631$         25,383$         (88,456)$        41,885$         243,642$       173,435$       
Other Income/(Expense), Net 1,421,897$    465,139$       2,074,064$    925,319$       (834,292)$      (696,539)$      (795,859)$      (485,619)$      (339,398)$      (553,312)$      

Total Non-Operating Income/(Loss) 17,178,114$  18,313,808$  20,449,790$  21,404,683$  33,018,456$  27,362,809$  29,488,435$  27,723,505$  32,889,048$  31,987,559$  

NET INCOME/(LOSS)* (2,843,635)$   (3,236,590)$   (2,801,733)$   (3,195,031)$   5,443,372$     (1,793,865)$   2,355,751$     (4,283,326)$   (1,976,902)$   (4,687,459)$   
*Before Capital Contributions
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Change in Revenues and Expenses 

Fiscal Years 2015 to 2025 
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Fiscal Year 2015 2025 % Change $ Change

OPERATING REVENUES & (EXPENDITURES)
Passenger Fares 4,022,983$      3,721,985$      -7% (300,998)$        
Operating Expenditures (19,381,448)$   (36,355,276)$   88% (16,973,828)$   
Depreciation Expense (2,405,787)$     (4,041,727)$     68% (1,635,940)$     

Total Operating Income/(Loss) (17,764,252)$       (36,675,018)$       106% (18,910,766)$       

NON-OPERATING REVENUES & (EXPENDITURES)
Local Transportation Funds 8,869,456$      18,327,324$    107% 9,457,868$      
State Funds 174,425$         6,132,005$      3416% 5,957,580$      
Federal Funds 5,469,611$      7,908,107$      45% 2,438,496$      
Investment Earnings 12,449$           173,435$         1293% 160,986$         
Other Income/(Expense), Net 832,524$         (553,312)$        -166% (1,385,836)$     

Total Non-Operating Income/(Loss) 15,358,465$         31,987,559$         108% 16,629,094$         

NET INCOME/(LOSS) (2,405,787)$         (4,687,459)$         95% (2,281,672)$         
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Budgetary Comparison 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025 
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2025 Approved/Final 
Budget

2025 Actual Variance % Variance

REVENUES
Passenger Fare 2,150,000$                   2,152,280$                      2,280$                       0.11%
Special Transit 384,000$                       371,096$                         2,398,133$               -3.36%
Auxiliary Trans 300,000$                       1,198,609$                      416,220$                  299.54%

Non-Transportation 696,970$                       487,946$                         273,366$                  -29.99%
Local Grants & Reimbursements 20,631,299$                 21,184,826$                   (2,857,502)$             2.68%

State Grant Reimbursements 5,775,005$                   6,132,005$                      (1,500,510)$             6.18%
Federal Grants & Reimbursements 8,696,270$                   7,908,107$                      (788,163)$                 -9.06%

TOTAL REVENUES 38,633,544$                 39,434,869$                   801,325$                  2.07%

EXPENSES
Labor 14,624,401$                 14,736,530$                   112,129$                  0.77%

Fringe Benefits 11,269,021$                 12,123,296$                   854,275$                  7.58%
Services 2,580,550$                   2,788,900$                      208,350$                  8.07%

Materials & Tools 3,618,300$                   3,332,942$                      (285,358)$                 -7.89%
Utilities 450,000$                       409,058$                         (40,942)$                   -9.10%

Casuality & Liability 1,340,000$                   2,524,343$                      1,184,343$               88.38%
Misc 484,502$                       433,843$                         (50,659)$                   -10.46%

Leases 24,998$                         6,363$                              (18,633)$                   -74.55%
Bond Payment 1,384,270$                   867,823$                         (516,447)$                 -37.31%

Members Contributions 2,857,502$                   2,857,502$                      -$                           0.00%
TOTAL EXPENSES 38,633,544$                 40,080,601$                   1,447,057$               3.75%

Surplus/(Deficit), before depreciation -$                                (645,732)$                        (645,732)$                 
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Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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*Total source funding omitted operations

Fiscal Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Operating Revenues 3,369,769$   3,482,127$   3,403,877$   3,357,045$   3,481,222$   1,242,945$   4,459,112$   3,384,914$   3,430,505$   3,721,985$   

Non-operating revenues:
   Local Transportation Fund 10,601,709$ 13,338,152$ 13,804,353$ 15,384,232$ 15,760,751$ 14,596,719$ 13,624,467$ 19,024,255$ 19,367,275$ 18,327,324$ 
   State Funds 207,973$      153,094$      180,450$      709,242$      1,275,869$   523,605$      1,251,201$   1,397,759$   2,555,522$   6,132,005$   
   Federal Funds 4,930,720$   4,335,128$   4,347,696$   4,341,003$   16,723,497$ 12,913,641$ 15,497,082$ 7,745,225$   11,062,007$ 7,908,107$   
   Investment Earnings 15,815$        22,295$        43,227$        44,887$        92,631$        25,383$        (88,456)$       41,885$        243,642$      173,435$      
   Other Income/(Expense), Net 1,421,897$   465,139$      2,074,064$   925,319$      (834,292)$     (696,539)$     (795,859)$     (485,619)$     (339,398)$     (553,312)$     

TOTAL Source Funding 17,178,114$     18,313,808$     20,449,790$     21,404,683$     33,018,456$     27,362,809$     29,488,435$     27,723,505$     32,889,048$     31,987,559$     
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Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Fiscal Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Operating Revenue 3,369,769$       3,482,127$       3,403,877$       3,357,045$       3,481,222$       1,242,945$       4,459,112$       3,384,914$       3,430,505$       3,721,985$       
Operating Expenses 20,547,884$     22,113,345$     23,853,669$     25,387,071$     27,671,728$     26,602,341$     28,198,098$     31,761,399$     34,495,188$     36,355,276$     

Total Operating Income/(Loss) (17,178,115)$   (18,631,218)$   (20,449,792)$   (22,030,026)$   (24,190,506)$   (25,359,396)$   (23,738,986)$   (28,376,485)$   (31,064,683)$   (32,633,291)$   
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Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Year Unemployment
Rate (3)

2016 857,386 $47,397,620 $55,282 5.20%
2017 859,073 $50,550,958 $58,844 4.50%
2018 856,598 $52,515,048 $61,307 3.80%
2019 842,886 $54,749,053 $64,715 3.60%
2020 835,223 $56,728,142 $67,422 8.70%
2021 833,652 $61,619,080 $73,375 6.20%
2022 832,871 $61,627,308 $73,994 3.70%
2023 829,590 $64,783,900 $78,091 4.30%
2024 823,119 $62,100,100 $80,257 4.60%
2025 * * * *

* Data is unavailable.

Sources:
[1] US Census Bureau (www.census.gov)
[2] Bureau of Economic Analysis (www.bea.gov)
[3] Bureau of Labor Statistics (www.bls.gov)
[1] County of Ventura's Fiscal Year 2024 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Population (1) Per Capita
Personal Income (2)

Personal Income
(in thousands) (2)
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Principal Employers 

Fiscal Years 2014 and 2024 
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Employer 2024 Employees (1) Rank 2014 Employees (2) Rank
Naval Base Ventura County 20,000                                     1           14,575                                     1           
County of Ventura 9,953                                        2           8,597                                        2           
Amgen 5,500                                        3           5,900                                        3           
Conejo Valley Unified School District 3,320                                        4           1,935                                        7           
Ventura Unified School District 2,899                                        5           1,818                                        9           
Oxnard Union High School District 2,825                                        6           
Bank of America 2,804                                        7           
Oxnard School District 2,635                                        8           
Blue Cross of California 2,500                                        9           2,913                                        4           
Community Memorial Hospital 2,000                                        10        2,000                                        6           
Simi Valley School District * * 2,229                                        5           
St. John's Regional Medical Center * * 1,840                                        8           
Los Robles Regional Medical Center * * 1,615                                        10        

Notes:
* Data unavailable.

Source:
[1] 2024 The List, Ventura County Employers, Pacific Coast Business Times, April 2024
[2] 2014 Ventura County Real Estate and Economic Outlook as of January 2014
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Taxable Sales by City 

Fiscal Years 2014 and 2025 
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Taxable Sales
(in thousands) Rank

Percentage of 
Total

Taxable Sales
(in thousands) Rank

Percentage of 
Total

City of Camarillo 1,608,352$            6 8.15% 1,332,082$       6 8.27%
City of Fillmore 336,019                  8 1.70% 785,258             7 4.87%
City of Moorpark 408,811                  7 2.07% 339,979             8 2.11%
City of Ojai 187,076                  10 0.95% 110,605             10 0.69%
City of Oxnard 5,149,863               1 26.10% 5,250,372          1 32.58%
City of Port Hueneme 163,320                  11 0.83% 86,007                11 0.53%
City of San Buenaventura 2,529,485               9 12.82% 2,129,830          3 13.22%
City of Santa Paula 286,924                  5 1.45% 227,847             9 1.41%
City of Simi Valley 2,015,841               3 10.22% 1,473,823          5 9.15%
City of Thousand Oaks 3,194,838               4 16.19% 2,551,014          2 15.83%
Incorporated 15,880,529            80.48% 14,286,817       88.65%
Unincorporated 3,851,760               2 19.52% 1,828,337          4 11.35%
Countywide 19,732,289$          100.00% 16,115,154$     100.00%

California 930,280,959$        615,821,874$   

2024 2014
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Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Fiscal Year
Transportation Development Act

(TDA) Direct Rate County of Ventura
2016 0.25% 7.50%
2017 0.25% 7.25%
2018 0.25% 7.25%
2019 0.25% 7.25%
2020 0.25% 7.25%
2021 0.25% 7.25%
2022 0.25% 7.25%
2023 0.25% 7.25%
2024 0.25% 7.25%
2025 0.25% 7.25%
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Fiscal Years 2015 and 2025 
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2015 2025
Passengers:

Fixed Route 3,908,847                3,583,780                
Paratransit 84,604                      105,359                   

Total 3,993,451                3,689,139                

Revenue Miles:
Fixed Route 2,111,023                2,023,532                
Paratransit 581,041                   840,731                   

Total 2,692,064                2,864,263                

Revenue Hours:
Fixed Route 199,418                   181,373                   
Paratransit 36,876                      51,878                      

Total 236,294                   233,251                   

Passengers per Mile:
Fixed Route 1.85                          1.77                          
Paratransit 0.15                          0.13                          

Total 2.00                          1.90                          

Passengers per Hour:
Fixed Route 19.60                        19.76                        
Paratransit 2.29                          2.03                          

Total 21.90                        21.79                        

Bus - Fixed Route:
Cost per Boarding 3.36                          7.93                          

Bus - Paratransit:
Cost per Boarding 26.01 51.53                        
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Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Function 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Administration 15            16            11            10            11            14            16            16            15              12              
Planning & Marketing 10            10            9               9               9               9               10            10            9                 8                 
HR -                -                3               4               4               4               4               4               4                 3                 
Paratransit 1               1               1               1               1               2               2               2               2                 50              
Maintenance 21            21            21            21            21            22            21            22            22              23              
Non-Vehicle Maint 6               6               7               9               9               13            12            11            11              11              
Operations 136         136         135         135         130         128         130         130         126           126           
Transit Supervisors 12            12            12            12            12            13            13            13            13              16              
Total 201         202         198         200         196         205         207         206         200           249           
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Fiscal Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Land 8,959,491$     8,981,061$     8,981,061$     8,981,061$     8,981,061$     8,981,061$     8,981,061$       8,981,061$       8,981,061$     8,981,061$     
Construction in Progress 3,555,785$     9,472,693$     29,893,204$   43,876,566$   -$                  -$                  38,297$           129,813$         372,335$        724,384$        
Buildings and Improvements 6,986,572$     7,000,268$     7,000,268$     7,000,268$     50,529,426$   50,299,775$   43,819,825$     43,819,825$     43,819,825$   43,819,825$   
Vehicles and Equipment 30,081,587$   30,992,512$   31,129,559$   30,830,711$   37,533,698$   39,593,598$   42,806,073$     41,212,274$     42,343,448$   44,565,366$   
Intangible assets 39,401$         39,401$         39,401$         39,401$         39,401$         39,401$         39,401$           39,401$           39,401$         39,401$         
Leases -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  84,067$           84,067$           84,067$         84,067$         
SBITAs -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    230,141$         196,180$        196,180$        

Subtotal 49,622,836$    56,485,935$    77,043,493$    90,728,007$    97,083,586$    98,913,835$    95,768,724$       94,496,582$       95,836,317$    98,410,284$    

Less: Accumulated Depreciation and (24,644,744)$  (25,439,164)$  (27,383,450)$  (29,216,437)$  (31,888,246)$  (35,531,798)$  (31,967,042)$    (32,184,968)$    (34,317,178)$  (36,159,434)$  
                 Amortization

Total Net Capital Assets 24,978,092$    31,046,771$    49,660,043$    61,511,570$    65,195,340$    63,382,037$    63,801,682$       62,311,614$       61,519,139$    62,250,850$    
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Gold Coast Transit District 
Change in Capital Assets 

Fiscal Years 2015 and 2025 
 
 

79 

 
 
 

Fiscal Year 2015 2025 % Change $ Change
Land (1) 8,959,491$         8,981,061$    0% 21,570$          
Construction in Progress (2) 3,042,653$         724,384$       -76% (2,318,269)$    
Buildings and Improvements (3) 6,752,515$         43,819,825$  549% 37,067,310$   
Vehicles and Equipment (4) 28,179,582$       44,565,366$  58% 16,385,784$   
Intangible Assets 39,401$              39,401$        0% -$                   
Leases -$                       84,067$        N/A 84,067$          
SBITAs -$                       196,180$       N/A 196,180$        

Subtotal 46,973,642$          98,410,284$   110% 51,436,642$     

Less: Accumulated Depreciation and (24,598,544)$      (36,159,434)$ 47% (11,560,890)$  
                Amortization

Total Net Capital Assets 22,375,098$          62,250,850$   178% 39,875,752$     
(1) FY2014-15 GCTC aquired new property to be used for new Adminstration & Operation Facilities
(2) CIP varies as projects begin and end
(3) FY2018-19  construction completed and GCTC opened a new Administration & Operations Facility
(4) Increase due to increase cost and number of revenue vehicles over the fiscal years
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Gold Coast Transit District 
Ratio of Outstanding Bonds by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Fiscal Year

Long-term Debt
Series 2017 

Certificates of 
Participation[1]

Total Outstanding 
Debt

Personal Income 
for Ventura County 

(in thousands)[2] Population[2]
Debt per 
Capita[3]

2025 20,496,334$                                   20,496,334$                 * * *
2024 21,005,957                                     21,005,957                    62,100,100                 823,119           25.52         
2023 21,440,957                                     21,440,957                    64,783,900                 829,590           25.85         
2022 21,960,203                                     21,960,203                    61,627,308                 832,871           26.37         
2021 22,404,826                                     22,404,826                    61,619,080                 833,652           26.88         
2020 22,834,449                                     22,834,449                    56,728,142                 835,223           27.34         
2019 23,244,072                                     23,244,072                    54,749,053                 842,886           27.58         
2018 23,640,646                                     23,640,646                    52,515,048                 856,598           27.60         
2017 23,697,220                                     23,697,220                    50,550,958                 859,073           27.58         
2016 -                                                    -                                   47,397,620                 857,386           -             

Notes:
* Data is unavailable

Sources:
[1] Long-term Debt Series 2017 Certificates of Participation implemented in FY 2017.
[2] Personal Income is disclosed on the Ventura County Population Trends Table.
[3] Debt per Capita is Total Outstanding Debt divided by Population.
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Item #13 
DATE December 3, 2025 

TO GCTD Board of Directors 

FROM Austin Novstrup, Planning Manager 
Robert Lucio, Mobility Management Coordinator 

SUBJECT Fixed-Route & ACCESS Flexible Services Quarterly Update 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This quarterly report covers the 1st Quarter (July 1 through September 30) of Fiscal Year 2025-26. This 
report includes a summary of performance and operating statistics for both fixed-route and ACCESS 
Flexible services.   

II. FIXED-ROUTE DATA

Ridership for the first quarter of FY 2025-26 decreased by 6% compared to the same period last year. 
Following the strong rebound that brought total ridership back to—and in some cases above—pre-
pandemic levels, a slowdown in growth was anticipated. Despite this emerging trend, total ridership 
remains higher than the 25-year historical average. The District also continues to benefit from the fare 
adjustments implemented in FY 2024-25, with fare revenue increasing by more than 10% during this 
quarter. 

1st Quarter FY 25-26 
 Systemwide Ridership & Performance 

Fixed-Route Ridership 
1st Qtr 

FY 2025-26 
1st Qtr 

FY 2024-25 
Difference % 

Change 
Total System Boardings  854,921 907,941 (53,020) -5.8%
Average Daily Passengers Weekdays 11,316 11,831 (516) -4.4%
Average Daily Passengers Saturdays 5,779 6,488 (708) -10.9%
Average Daily Passengers Sundays  5,317 6.080 (763) -12.6%
Wheelchair Boardings  6,598 6,134 464 7.6% 
Bicycle Boardings  19,796 20,410 (614) -3.0%     
 Performance Measures 
Passengers Per Revenue Hour   19 20 -1 -6.4
Fare Revenue Per Service Hour   $20.05 $19.22 $2.32 11.8% 
Total Fare Revenue $1,005,519 $871,498 $111,260 12.4% 
On-Time Performance  85.6% 82.5% Goal > 90% 
% Systemwide Boarding as Free Transfers 11.0% 13.2% Goal < 20% 
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1st Quarter FY 25-26 
Ridership by Route  

Route Route Name 

1st Quarter 
FY 2025-26 

Unlinked 
Passengers 

1st Quarter 
FY 2024-25 

Unlinked 
Passengers 

Change % Change 

1 Port Hueneme - Oxnard Transit Center  107,012  125,142  (18,130) -14%
2 Colonia - Downtown Oxnard  16,030  18,694  (2,664) -14%
3 J St - Centerpoint Mall - Lemonwood  30,855  33,226  (2,371) -7%
4 North Oxnard - Ventura Rd - St. John's  74,624  77,168  (2,544) -3%
5 Hemlock - Seabridge - Wooley  15,932  18,578  (2,646) -14%
6 Oxnard - Ventura - Main St  214,822  220,765  (5,943) -3%
7 Oxnard College - Centerpoint Mall  13,113  14,608  (1,496) -10%
8 OTC- Oxnard College - Centerpoint Mall  22,341  22,194  148 1%

10 Pacific View Mall - Telegraph -Saticoy  22,882  24,231  (1,349) -6%
11 Pacific View Mall - Telephone - Wells  65,320  65,737  (417) -1%
15 Esplanade - El Rio - St. John's  12,327  14,359  (2,032) -14%
16 Downtown Ojai - Pacific View Mall  59,595  65,761  (6,166) -9%
17 Esplanade - Oxnard College  43,383  45,294  (1,911) -4%
18 Trippers  15,344  13,457  1,887 14%
19 OTC- 5th St - Airport - Gonzales Rd  16,644  17,318  (673) -4%
21 Port Hueneme - Ventura  - Victoria Ave  77,177  81,575  (4,398) -5%
23 Oxnard College - Naval Base - Esplanade  47,519  49,835  (2,316) -5%

Total GCTD System (no combined routes)  854,921  907,941  (53,020) -6%

 

Local Route Minimum Standard > 15 Notes: Route 18 (school trippers) not shown in graph. 
Trunk Route Minimum Standard > 20 
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1st Quarter Complaints/Commendations by Type 

Type Issue FY25-26 
1st Quarter 

FY24-25 
1st Quarter 

FY25-26 
YTD 

Scheduling On-Time Performance 1 1 1 
Operations Operator Conduct 

Driving Complaints 
Passed by 
Commendations 

29 
12 
27 
13 

9 
7 
9 
4 

29 
12 
27 
13 

Bus Stop Issues 9 1 9 
Other Other* 11 7 11 
Totals 102 38 102 

*Service suggestions, fare disputes, disturbances, bus did not show, or other system issues

III. FIXED-ROUTE SERVICE SUMMARY

In the first quarter of FY 25-26 ridership on decreased by just under 6% over the first quarter of FY 24-
25. This appears to be the continuation of trend that began in the third quarter of FY25. Ridership losses
were observed on all but one route. The most impacted routes are Routes 1, 2, 5 and 15 which all
recorded a 14% decrease with Route 1 seeing over 18,000 fewer riders in the period. Weekday ridership
fell by only 5% while weekend ridership fell by more than 10%. It is likely that reductions in weekend
service frequencies on some routes is contributing to this trend.

However, given the timing of the shift, the specific routes most affected, and the sharper decline in 
weekend ridership, it is likely that increased immigration enforcement activity within the GCTD service 
area has been a significant contributing factor. As a result of the overall decline, only half of all routes are 
currently meeting the established service standard for passengers per hour. Nevertheless, total ridership 
remains consistent with long-term historical averages. 

Systemwide on-time performance increased year over year from 82.5% to 85.6%. This improvement can 
be attributed to reduced traffic delays following the completion of major construction projects, schedule 
adjustments implemented over the past year, and the continued diligence of operations staff in 
maintaining schedule reliability. In addition, the recent reduction in ridership has alleviated previous 
concerns about bus crowding. Planning staff continue to monitor peak-period ridership and will 
recommend adjustments to tripper and booster services as needed to prevent overcrowding. 

IV. FLEXIBLE SERVICES DATA

GO ACCESS’s flexible services include the federally mandated ADA paratransit service to complement 
Gold Coast Transit District’s fixed route services. In addition, the flexible services provide service to 
seniors, 65 years of age and older, congregate transportation to Senior Nutrition meal sites, Health 
Zones, and other transportation options to assist with mobility in the community. The program helps 
passengers preserve their independence through this advance-reservation demand response 
transportation, which studies show is essential to protecting the quality of life for mobility-impaired 
members of the community.  These efforts are intended to improve the overall customer experience by 
presenting GCTD’s transportation network as an integrated system that helps our customers connect 
with people, places, and opportunities, one trip at a time.  
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       1st Quarter FY 2025-26 
GO ACCESS Ridership & Performance 

Paratransit Ridership 
1st Qtr 

FY 2025-26 
1st Qtr 

FY 2024-25 Difference % Change 

Total System Boardings 29,319 27,776 +1,543 +5.6%
   Average Daily Passengers Weekdays 379 364 +15 +4.1%
   Average Daily Passengers Saturdays 202 180 +22 +12.2%
   Average Daily Passengers Sundays  185 163 +22 +13.5%

Performance Measures 
1st Qtr 

FY 2025-26 
1st Qtr 

FY 2024-25 Difference % Change 

Passengers Per Revenue Hour   2.11 2.16 -.0.05 -2.3%
On Time Performance (Arrive within the window) 87.1% 87.9% -0.8 -0.9%
    Early (Before start of pick up window) 7.6% 3.3% 4.3 +132.2%
    Late  (After end of pick up window) 5.2% 8.8% -3.6 -40.6%

1st Quarter – Feedback 

Type Issue 1st Quarter 
Comments 

1st Quarter 
Verified 

Comments 

YTD 2025-26 
Verified 

Comments 
Scheduling Travel Time 4 2 2 

Schedules 6 5 5 
Operations Operator 12 7 7 

Other 
Dispatch/Reservations 
Policies 

5 
2 

4 
0 

4 
0 

Commendations 6 6 6 
Other 5 1 1 

Totals 40 25 25 

V. FLEXIBLE SERVICES SUMMARY

SAFE RIDES: Late-Night Safe Rides a demonstration service introduced in May 2021 to encourage fixed 
route use by providing customers with reliable, safe public transit service late at night.  Though designed 
to assist late-shift employees, especially those within the food, hospitality, and service sectors – as a 
general public dial-a-ride (GPDAR) the service is available to anyone.  The GPDAR service provides 
transportation throughout the entire GCTD service area.  Service hours expanded to coincide with when 
the first fixed route bus goes out of service from 7 PM to midnight.  Average monthly trips exceed 1,200 
boardings, and the concept has been very well received.  

In July 2024 GCTD launched a new pilot service Sunrise Safe Rides in the early morning hours from 4:30 
AM to 7 AM. Fare is $5.The service has been well-received by our passengers. Sunrise Safe Rides 
continues to build on its success from the prior year. Between July and September 2025, boardings 
averaged 405 per month, compared to 86 during the same period in FY 2024–25—a substantial increase 
as the program has matured and gained visibility. This growth reflects strong early adoption and 
consistent demand from early morning commuters.  

FLEXIBLE SERVICES: During the first quarter of FY 2025–26 (July–September), total Flexible 
Services averaged over 9,750 monthly boardings, reflecting a 5.6% increase compared to the same 
period in FY 2024–25, which averaged around 9,250 boardings. This upward trend suggests a positive 
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start to the new fiscal year, with ridership recovering from last year’s mid-year decline. While boardings 
remain slightly below FY 2023–24 levels, the current year’s performance indicates a stabilization in 
service demand and consistent utilization across months. Service has been enhanced through the 
implementation of best practices, ongoing adjustments, and safety training. This has empowered our 
team to effectively utilize the available tools for our ongoing success. 

IX. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the GCTD Board of Directors receive and file this report. This report is 
for information only.  

GENERAL MANAGER’S CONCURRENCE 

_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Rauschenberger 
General Manager 

Attachment 1: 1st Quarter FY 2025-26 Fixed-Route Service Performance Evaluation 
Attachment 2: 1st Quarter FY 2025-26 Flexible Services Performance Evaluation  



Attachment A:Fixed-Route Service Performance Evaluation FY 25-26 1st Quarter

Route # Service Type Total Revenue 
Hours Total Passengers Passengers per 

Revenue Hour Quartile

1  Trunk 4,697 107,012 23 4
6  Trunk 9,537 214,822 23 4

11  Trunk 3,280 65,320 20 4
21  Trunk 4,066 77,177 19 4
16  Trunk 3,164 59,595 19 3
3  Local 1,657 30,855 19 3

19  Local 896 16,644 19 3
4  Local 4,094 74,624 18 3

17  Trunk 2,691 43,383 16 2
23  Trunk  2,957 47,519 16 2
2  Local 1,076 16,030 15 2
8  Local 1,631 22,341 14 2
7  Local 964 13,113 14 1
5  Local 1,176 15,932 14 1

10  Trunk 2,059 22,882 11 1
15  Local 1,457 12,327 8 1

Excluded Routes 
18 Booster 201 15,344 76

Trunk

Local

Route # Service Type Total Revenue 
Hours Total Passnegers

Systemwide 
Operating Cost Per 

Hour
Total Cost Cost Per Passenger Average Fare Per

Passenger
Subsidy Per 
Passenger Quartile

1 Trunk 4,697 107,012 166.20$  780,669$  7.30$  $1.10 6.20$  4
6 Trunk 9,537 214,822 166.20$  1,585,060$  7.38$  $1.18 6.20$  4

11 Trunk 3,280 65,320 166.20$  545,133$  8.35$  $1.13 7.22$  4
16 Trunk 3,164 59,595 166.20$  525,835$  8.82$  $1.29 7.54$  4
21 Trunk 4,066 77,177 166.20$  675,769$  8.76$  $1.22 7.54$  3
19 Local 896 16,644 166.20$  148,915$  8.95$  $1.20 7.75$  3
3 Local 1,657 30,855 166.20$  275,349$  8.92$  $1.12 7.80$  3
4 Local 4,094 74,624 166.20$  680,478$  9.12$  $1.11 8.01$  3

17 Trunk 2,691 43,383 166.20$  447,278$  10.31$  $1.25 9.06$  2
23 Trunk 2,957 47,519 166.20$  491,420$  10.34$  $1.27 9.07$  2
2 Local 1,076 16,030 166.20$  178,864$  11.16$  $1.07 10.08$  2
8 Local 1,631 22,341 166.20$  271,094$  12.13$  $1.20 10.93$  2
7 Local 964 13,113 166.20$  160,228$  12.22$  $1.10 11.12$  1
5 Local 1,176 15,932 166.20$  195,501$  12.27$  $1.12 11.15$  1

10 Trunk 2,059 22,882 166.20$  342,211$  14.96$  $1.23 13.73$  1
15 Local 1,457 12,327 166.20$  242,142$  19.64$  $1.09 18.55$  1

Excluded Routes 
18 High School Trippers 201 15,344 166.20$  33,340$  2.17$  1.355$  0.82$  

15

Economic Measure: Subsidy Per Passenger

Routes that connect residential areas to major commercial and employment centers and travel on both arterial and residential streets.

Fixed Route Service Evaluation Report

Ridership Measure: Passengers Per Revenue Hour

Passengers per Revenue Hour Target

20Routes that link 2 or more major or regional commercial and employment centers and travel on arterial roads or highways.

Port Hueneme - Oxnard Transit Center
Oxnard - Ventura - Main St
Pacific View Mall - Telephone - Wells
Port Hueneme - Ventura  - Victoria Ave
Downtown Ojai - Pacific View Mall
J St - Centerpoint Mall - Lemonwood

FY 25-26 1st Quarter 

Systemwide Performance Target & Description

Hemlock - Seabridge - Wooley
Pacific View Mall - Telegraph -Saticoy
Esplanade - El Rio - St. John's

Route Name

High School Trippers

Esplanade - Oxnard College
Oxnard College - Naval Base - Esplanade
Colonia - Downtown Oxnard
OTC- Oxnard College - Centerpoint Mall
Oxnard College - Centerpoint Mall

OTC- 5th St - Airport - Gonzales Rd
North Oxnard - Ventura Rd - St. John's



FY 2026 FY 2025
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
WEEKDAY SATURDAY SUNDAY MONTHLY MONTHLY COST/

BOARDINGS BOARDINGS BOARDINGS BOARDINGS BOARDINGS TRIP
July 374 203 190 9,818 9,242 $ 50.50
August 381 194 177 9,860 9,609 $ 47.78
September 382 212 190 9,641 8,925 $ 47.73

29,319 27,776

ADA
% of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 

prior FY
QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

32% 2.15 12% 9,317 8,286 87%

SENIOR NUTRITION PROGRAM
% of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 

prior FY
QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

2.9% 2.81 154% 847 334 85%

SENIORS
% of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 

prior FY
QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

43.7% 2.22 1% 12,809 12,638 86%

TRANSFERS
% of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 

prior FY
QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

0.1% 1.46 -46% 25 46 96%

CAMARILLO DIRECT CONNECT
% of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 

prior FY
QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

3.5% 1.09 -1% 1,024 1,039 88%

HEALTH ZONES
% of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 

prior FY
QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

0.8% 2.05 10% 247 225 89%

LATE NIGHT SAFE RIDES
% of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 

prior FY
QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

12.6% 2.03 -9% 3,692 4,067 89%

GO NOW
% of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 

prior FY
QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

0.4% 0.34 -87% 130 984 85%

SUNRISE SAFE RIDES % of TTL Pass/VSH %  Change from 
prior FY

QTR 1 FY 2026 
BOARDINGS

QTR 1 FY 2025 
BOARDINGS

OTP

4.1% 2.22 673% 1,214 157 86%

SERVICE AVAILABLE TO GENERAL PUBLIC NOT REQUIRED TO BE PROVIDED

GOLD COAST TRANSIT DISTRICT FLEXIBLE SERVICES
ALL SERVICES

1st QTR BOARDINGS:
SERVICE REQUIRED TO BE PROVIDED UNDER FTA REGULATIONS

Eligibility:  Certification of mobility disability.  Service started July, 1996

SERVICE AVAILABLE TO SENIORS/DISABLED NOT REQUIRED TO BE PROVIDED

Eligibility:  62+; no fare transportation to the nearest congregate meal site.  Service started October, 1999

Eligibility:  65+.  Service started October, 1999

Eligibility:  ADA or 65+;  CAMARILLO transfers started October 1999.  SP DAR in 2001, TO in 2002

Eligibility:  ADA or 65+;  Started in 2018

Attachment B:Flexible Services Performance Evaluation FY 25-26 1st Quarter

Eligibility:  Temporary medical or mobility impairment; No age restriction; Started in 2013

Eligibility: Must be at least 16 to ride without adult.  Started in 2021

Eligibility: Must be at least 16 to ride without adult.  Started in 2023

Note: Pilot started May/June 2023, no 
fare collected until July 2023.

Note: Pilot started July 2024.



Item #14DATE 

TO 

FROM 

December 3, 2024

GCTD Board of Directors 

Vanessa Rauschenberger, General Manager

SUBJECT Discuss Future Agenda Items 

SUMMARY 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors provide input to staff on future agenda items that 
they would like staff to review and/or report on in a future meeting. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Below are some of the future agenda items planned. To help staff prioritize timing of reports, 
staff seeks input on these items or other items that the Board is interested in discussing. 

Future Agenda Items 
• Draft Budget
• Strategic Plan Update Review
• Redevelopment of 301 Property
• Other Items?

Future Routine Items 
• Monthly Financial Statements & Procurement Reports
• Monthly Operations & Maintenance Update
• Quarterly Fixed-Route & Paratransit Performance Reports
• Bi-Annual Service Plan & Outreach Updates

CONCLUSION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors provide input to staff on future agenda 
items that they would like staff to review and/or report on in a future meeting.    
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	The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF. The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported at an amount based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation t...
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